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CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANGE AT A GLANCE

2006-07
PHYSICAL
Crude Qil (MMT) (including Condensate) 5.804
Gas (BCM) 2.148
FINANCIAL
Income from Operations (Turnover) 119,010
Statutory Levies 52,509
Operating Expenses 18,107
Profit Before Interest Depreciation & Tax {(PBIDT) 48,394
Recouped Costs 21,335
Operating Income (PBIT) 27,059
Exchange Loss / (Gain) (2,527)
Interest Payment 318
Profit Before Tax 29,268
Corporate Tax 12,635
Net Profit 16,633
Less: Share of Profit/ (Loss)- Minority Interest (ONGC) -
Group Profit After Tax (PAT) 16,633
Dividend -
Tax on Dividend -
Share Capital 10,000
Net Worth (Equity) 43,736
Borrowings 132,347
Working Gapital 29,438
Capital Employed 159,451
Internal Resources Generation 4,774
Plan Expenditure 71,519
Expenditure on Employees 666
Number of Employees 110
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE RATIOS
PBIDT to Turnover (%) 40.66
PBDT to Turnaver (%) 4252
Profit Margin (%) 13.98
ROCE (PBIDT to Capital Employed) {%) 30.35
Net Profit to Equity (%) 38.03
BALANCE SHEET RATIOS
Current Ratio 2.56:1
Debit Equity Ratio 3.03:1
Debtors Tumover Ratio (Days) M
PER SHARE DATA
Earning Per Share (Rs.) 224.44
Dividend (%) -

Book Value Per Share (Rs.) 437

4.584
1.755

81,707
39,997
14,534
27,178
11,204
15,972
(1,005)
40
16,937
8,234
8,703
(309)
9,012

3,000
21,877
159,242
74,399
140,105
21,158
63,306
602

90

33.26
34.44
11.03
19.40
41.01

7.271
7.251
18

300.40

733

(Rupaas in million, Unlass otharwise Stated)

2004-05

3714
1.349

60,258
28,191
9,709
22,358
7,670
14,688
264

13
14,411
6,797
7,614

7,614
1,050
147
3,000
12,227
116,610
42,371
81,084
6,275
43101
346

85

37.10
36.64
12.64
27.57
62.27

5.30:1
9.54:1
46

253.79
35
408

2003-04

3.345
0.523

35,023
16,524
3,821
14,678
6,134
8,544
913

64
7,567
3,283
4,284

4,284

3,000
8,720
87,581
23,364
63,645
4,887
23,422
322

63

41.91
39.12
12.23
23.08
4913

3.63:1
10.04:1
13

142.82

patll

2002-03

0.183
0.070

2,328
770
406

1,152
231
9
164

30
127
137
590

3,000
5,022
70,534
11,372
52,853
835
49,683
Il

51

49.48
41.15
25.34

2.18
11.75

2.99:1
14.05:1
267
19.66
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME & RETAINED EARNINGS

REVENUES

Sales

Crude Qil

Gas

Condensate

Construction Contract Revenue
Transportation and Other Services
Sub Total

Oiher Income

Imterast Income

Lease Ingome

Other Income
Increase/{Decrease) in Stock
Total Income from Operations
COST & EXPENSES
Operating, Selling & General

(a) Production, Transportation & other Operating Expenses

(b) Royalties

(c) Value Added Tax & other Taxes

(d) Construction Contract Expenditure
(e) Provisions & Write Offs

(f) Prior Period Adjustments (Net)

Sub Total (a to f)

Depletion, Depreciailon & Amortisation
(a) Depletion

(b) Depreciation

(c) Amortisation

(d) Others

Sub Total (a to d)

TOTAL COST & EXPENSES

Operating Income Before Financial Cost & Tax
Financial Costs

Exchange Loss / (Gain)

Interest Payment

Sub Total

Profit Bafore Tax

Corporate Tax (Net)

Net Profit

Less: Share of Profit/ (Loss)- Minority Interest (ONGC)
Group Profit After Tax

Dividend

Tax on Dividend

Retalned Earnings for the Year

2006-07

102,426
8,004
1,841
3,269

115,540

2,273
435

365

397
119,010

12,531
51,130
1,379

1,409
4,167
70,616

12,590
2,678
5,275

792

21,335

91,951

27,059

(2,527)

318
(2,209)
29,268
12,635
16,633

16,633

16,633

2005-06

64,415
6,668
1,466
2,174
3,199

71,922

3,127
271
373

14

81,707

7,256
39,061
936
2,699
394
4,185
54,531

4,615
1,170
4,272
1,147
11,204
65,735
15,972

(1,005)
40
(965)
16,937
8,234
8,703
(309)
9,012

9,012

2004-05

47,696
4,552
833
5,430

58,511
1,418

332

(3)
60,258

5,060
27,781
410
4,253
13

383
37,900

2,952
883
3,769
66
1,670
45,570
14,688

264

13

21
14,411
6,797
1,614

7,614
1,050

147
6,417

(Rupeas in million)

2003-04

30,881
1,469
97

32,447
814

1,720
42
35,023

3,824
16,289
235

(3)
20,345

2,424
919
1,119
1,672
6,134
26,479
8,544

913
64
977
7,567
3,283
4,284

4,284

4,284

2002-03

140
41

50
231
1,407
921

164

30
194
727
137
590
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

RESOURGES
A. Own
1. Net worth
(a} Equity
i) Share Capital
ii) Reserves & Surplus
Sub Total
(b) Less: Intangible Assets
Net Worth
2. Minority Interest (ONGC)
3. Long Term Liability- Deferred Tax Liability
Total Own Funds (1+2+3)
B. Quiside
Loans
Oil Industry Development Board
il and Natural Gas Corporation Limited
Non Recourse Deferred Credit
Bank Loans / Overdraft
Total Outside Resources
TOTAL RESOURCES (A+B)

DISPOSITION OF RESOURCES
A. Block Capltal
1. Fixed Assets
2. Producing Properties (Net of Depletion)
Less: Liability for Abandonment Cost
Net Produging Property
3. Goodwill
Total Block Capital (1+2+3)
B. Working Capital
(a} Current Assets
i} Inventories
i) Debtors (Net of Provision)
iiiy Cash & Bank Balances
iv) Loans & Advances and Others
Sub Total
Less:
(b) Current Liabilities and Provisions
Working Gapital (a - b)
C. GAPITAL EMPLOYED (A + B)
D. CAPITAL WORKS IN PROGRESS

E. EXPLORATORY/ DEVELOPMENT WELLS IN PROGRESS

TOTAL DISPOSITION (C TO E)

Asal

31" March,

2007

10,000
33,736
43,736

43,736

9,759
63,495

130,941

1,406
132,347
185,842

50,774
56,056
4,503
51,553
27,686
130,013

3,649
11,203
12,125
21,306
48,283

18,845
29,438
169,451
14,149
12,242
185,842

As at
31" March,
2006

3,000
18,977
21,977

21,977
6,708
6,635

35,320

61
157,618
1,519
44
159,242
194,562

17,247
36,806

2519
34,287
14,172
65,706

2,163
3944
2,563
77,589
86,269

11,870
74,398
140,105
43,746
10,711
194,562

As at
31" March,
2005

3,000
9,227
12,227

12,227
4,253
16,480

157
115,469
984
116,610
133,090

12,013
15,947
15,947
10,753
38,713

1,175
7,566
7.083
36,402
52,226

9,855
4231
81,084
45,476

6,530

133,090

As at
31" March,
2004

3,000
5,720
8,720

8,720
1,734
10,454

253
84,849
2,479
87,581
98,035

12,716
15,904
15,904
11,661
40,281

885
1,211
8,267

21,901
32,264

8,500
23,364
63,645
30,770

3,620
98,035

(Rs. in million)

As at
31" March,
2003

3,000
2,096
5,06

74
5,022
1,822
5,844

349
67,313
2,872
70,534
71,378

14,323
15,497
15,497
11,661
a4 481

882
1,701
3.627

10,869
17,079

5,707
11,372
52,853
23,910

615
71,378



TOTAL INCOME*

Rs. in Million

119,010

81,707

60,258

Fpe—t]

35,023

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07

NET PROFIT (PAT)*

Rs. in Million

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07

PRODUCTION OF OIL AND GAS*

2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07

- T ® OIF (In MMT) = Gas {In BCM)

*“Congolidated
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of your Company, | take immense pleasure in presenting to you the 42™ Annual Report on the working of the
Company forthe financial year ended 31" March, 2007, together with the Audited Statements of Accounts, the Auditors' Report and the Review of
the Accounts by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

1.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

+  Company secured equity participation in 9 oil and gas projects in & countries.

+  Export of crude oil from Sakhalin-1 project in Russia commenced from September, 2006 and peak production of over

250,000 bbl/day with Company's share of 50,000 bbl/day was achieved in March, 2007.

Crude oil production from Block 5A in Sudan started in May, 2006.

Gas discoveries made in Blocks A-1 and A-3, Myanmar in which Gompany helds 20% share.

Qil discovery made in North Ramadan Block in Egypt, in which Company holds 70% share.

Successfully completed drilling of four wells including a high pressure complex gas well in Farsi Offshore Block in Iran which

resulted in discovery of oil and gas.

«  Company's consolidated production of il plus Oil-Equivalent Gas {0+ 0EG) increased from 6.339 MMTOE to 7.952 MMTOE,
up 25%.

«  Company's consolidated gross revenue increased frorm Rs. 81,707.28 million to Rs. 119,009.55 million, up 46%.

= Company eamed consolidated net profit of Rs.16, 632.87 million, up 85% from Rs. 9,011.96 million.

- & & »

FINANCIAL RESULTS
ONGC Videsh Limited
(Rupees in million)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06
Total Income _ 31,791.81 20,857.71
Expenditure _ 17,386.76 12,312.39
Profit Before Tax 14,405.05 8,545.32
Provision for Tax (including Deferred Tax) ' 3,879.49 | 2,050.82
Profit After Tax ' 10,525.56 6,494.50
Transferto General Reserve ' 1,052.55 649.45
Paid-up Equity Share Capital ' 10,000.00 3,000.00
Net Worth : 31,9347 14,098.23
Eaming Per Share of Rs. 100 each (Rs.) 142.03 216.48

Dividend

No dividend has been proposed for the financial year 2006-07, as the Company has decided to keep its internal resources for funding of
its growing operations requirements.

Consolidated Accounts

The Consolidated Accounts incorporate accounts of ONGC Nile Ganga BV (Subsidiary), ONGG Narmada Limited (Subsidiary), ONGG
Amazon Alaknanda Limited (Subsidiary) and ONGC Mittal Energy Limited (Jointly Controlled Entity) and form parts of the Annual Report
and Accounts.

(Rupess in million)

Particulars | 2006-07 2005-06
Total Income _ 118,008.55 81,707.28
Expenditure _ 89,74158 64,770.27
Profit Before Tax _ 2026797 16,937.01
Provision for Tax (including Deferred Tax) | 12,635.10 8,234.17
Profil Aiter Tax _ 16,632.87 8,702.84
Share of Profit/{Loss)- Minority Interest of ONGC | 0.00 | {309.12)
Group Profit After Tax _ 16,632.87 9,011.96
Paid-up Equity Share Capital | 10,000.00 3,000.00
Net Worth _ 43,735.65 21977.47
Eaming Per Share of Rs. 100 each (Rs.) 224.44 300.40



4.2

4.3

4.4

45

4.6

RESERVES

Details of balance proven Oil and Gas reserves held by your Company, including that of the wholly-owned subsidiaries are placed at
Note-16 of Schedule'25' to Consolidated Accounts. In brief, your Company's balance proven reserve holding is as under:

Ason 317 March, 2007 As on31*March, 2006
0il (including Condensate) (In MMT) | 05744 | 92.823
Gas (InBCM) | 98.886 | 113.367
Total (In MMTOE) 194.630 206.190

NEW ACQUISITIONS

Block BC-10, Brazll

Your Company through its wholly owned subsidiary Company, ONGC Nile Ganga BV (ONGBY) acquired 15% Participating Interest (P1) in
a despwater offshore Block BG-10 in Brazil on 25th April, 2006. Block BC-10 is located in the Campos Basin approximately 120 km
southwest from the city of Vitoria off the coast of Brazil with a water depth of around 1800 meter. The other partners inthe Block arg Shell
with 50% Pl as operator and Petrobras with 35% PI. As per current estimates, OVL's net cash outflow in this project till first cil production
from the project would be approx USD 478 million, against which the Gompany has invested approx USD 205 million till 31 March, 2007
including acquisition cost of about USD 170 million. The Blockis currently being developed using sub-sea wells which will be connected
via sub-sea manifolds, flowlines, and risers to a Floating Production, Storage and Offloading Vessel (FPS0). The production of oil from
the projectis expected to beginin late 2009,

Blocks 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 35A and 36, Cuba

During the year, your Company acquired 30% Pl from Repsol-YPF of Spain, in deep water exploration Blocks 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 35A and
36 located in Cuba. The Blocks are spread over nearly 12,000 sq km in Cuba's Exclusive Economic Zone (EEZ). The supplementary
agreement with Government of Guba for assignment of stakes in the Block was signed on 23" May, 2006. The transaction is effective
from 1" January, 2005. The other partners in the Blocks are Repsol-YPF with 40% Pl as operator and Norsk Hydro with 30% PI. Your
Company's share of investment in the Blocks for remaining work commitment and the past cost is about USD 31.50 million, against
which the Company has invested approx USD 16 million till 31% March, 2007 including payment of USD 7.50 million to Repsol-YPF
towards past cost. During the year operator completed the acquisition, processing and interpretation of seismic data. Currently, there is
proposal to enter into fourth exploration period having a commitment of drilling of one well.

Block 127, Vietnam

Your Company secured through participation in Licensing Round, 100% Pl with Operatorship in Block 127, Vietnam. The PSC for the
Block was signed in Hanoi, Vietnam on 24" May, 2006. Block 127 is an offshore deepwater Block, located at water depth of more than
400 meters with 9,246 sq km area. Your Company's investments during the 3-year first exploration period would be about USD 56.5
million, including signature bonus of USD 2 million. Your Company has invested approx USD 2 million till 31* March, 2007 in the Block.
In the event of a commercial discovery made in the coniract area, PetroVietnam at its option may hold a Pl of up to 20% in the Block.
Your Company has awarded a contract for 1,150 sq km 3D seismic survey in the Block. Currently, the acquisition of 30 seismic dataisin
progress in the Block.

Block 128, Vietnam

Your Company secured through participation in Licensing Round, 100% PI with Operatorship in Block 128, Vietnam. The PSC for the
Block was signed in Hanoi, Vietnam on 24" May, 2006. Block 128 is an offshore deepwater Block, located at water depth of more than
400 meters with 7,058 sq km area. As per current estimates, OVL's investment during the 3-years first exploration period would be about
LSD 49.70 million ingluding signature bonus of USD 2 millin. Your Gompany has invested approx ISD 2 million ill 31* March, 2007 in
the Block. In the event of a commercial discovery made in the contract area, PetroVietnam at its option may hold a Pl of up to 20% inthe
Block. Your Gempany has awarded a contract for 1,500 sq km 3D seismic survey in the Block. Currently, the acquisition of 3D seismic
dataisin progress inthe Block.

Block 34 and 35, Guba

Your Company signed a Production Sharing Contract on 10" September, 2006 at Havana with CUPET, the State il Gompany of the
Republic of Guba for two offshore exploration Blocks 34 and 35 with 100% PI located in Exclusive Economic Zone of Cuba. As per
current estimates, your Company's investment would be approx USD 46.45 million during the 24-month first exploration period for
deepwater Blocks 34 and 35. Acquisition of 2D seismic data has been completed and acquisition of 3D seismic data is planned during
the third quarter of 2007-08. Further, the interpretation of the existing seismic data is being carried out.

Mansarovar Energy Project, Colombla

Mansarovar Energy Colombia Limited (MECL), a 50:50 joint venture comprising a subsidiary of your Company i.e. ONGC Amazon
Alaknanda Limited (OAAL) and a subsidiary of Sinopec International Petroleum Bxploration and Production Carporation (SIPC) has
acquired Omimex de Colombia Ltd. (Omimex) from Texas based Omimex Resources, Inc. The signing of the agreements / transfer of
shares was done on 20" September, 2006. The transaction Is effective from 1 April, 2006. MECL is currently producing oil at 20,000

181



4.7

L]

49

5.2

bbis/d. MECL's assets constifule a 100% interest in the light oil Velasquez fee mineral property and a 50% interest in the Nare and
Cocorna assoclation contracts whare tha Colomblan national oll company, Ecopetrel $.A. (Ecopetrol) holds the remalning 50%. MECL
aso owns 100% of the Velasquez-Galan pipeline, which runs 189 km from the Velasquez property to Ecopetrol's Barrancabermeja
refinery. Your Company has Invested approx USD 437.5 mllllon toward cost of acquistion. During 2006-07, your Company's share of
production was about 0.287 MMT of oil.

OPL 279, Nigeria

ONGC Mittal Energy Limited (OMEL), a joint venture company incorporated by OVL along with Mittal Investments Sarl in Cyprus, has
besn awarded axploration Block OPL 279 In Nigeria. The PSC for the block has been exscuted and the effactive date of the PSC has been
determined ta be 23" February, 2007. While presently, OMEL holds 60% Pl in OPL 279 with a local Nigerian company, EMO helding
40% P! In the Block. OMEL plans to farm out a portlon of Pl to Infemational Ol Company({les) subject to reaching agrasmants for the
same / approvals of the Nigerian authorities. The EMQ would be carried by other participants in their respective share of participation.
The estimated OVL's shars of Investmant through OMEL would ba apprax USD 73 milllon Intha block during the exploration phasa.

OPL 285, Nigeria

OMEL has also besn awarded sxploration Block namaly OPL 285 In Nigeria. The PSC for the block has been axecutad and the effective
date of the PSC has been determined to be 23" February, 2007. While prasently, OMEL holds 90% Pl In OPL 285 with a local Nigarian
company, EMO holding 10% Pl in the Block. OMEL plans to farm out a portion of Pl to Intemational Qil Company(ies) subject to reaching
agreements for the same/ approvals of the Nigerian authorities. The EMO would be carried by other participants in their respective share
of participation. The estimated OVL's share of investment through OMEL would be approx USD 46 million in the Block during the
exploration phase.

Contract Area 43, Libya

Your Company participated in Libya's 3rd Bid Round in 2006 and was awarded contract Area 43; the Exploration and Production Sharing
Agreement (EPSA) was signed with National Oil Gorporation of Libya on 5" March, 2007. The Coniract Area consisting of four blocks
measuring total area of 7,449 sq km located In Cyrenalca offshore In the Medlterranean Saa. The block boundarles extend from the
coastline to the water depth of about 2,200 meters. The minimum work programme comprises acquisition of 1,000 lkm of 2D, 4,000 sq
km of 3D selsmic data and drilling of one exploratory well during the exploration phass of five years. Presently, about two third of the
Contract Area has sparse coverage of 2D seismic data acquired earlier. As per curmrent estimates, your Gompany's investment would be
approx USD 71 mllllon during the exploration phasa. The exploration activities In the block are expacted to start soon.

EMISTING FROJECTS

Block06.1, Vietnam

Your Company with 45% PI, British
Petroleun {Operator) with 35% Pl and
PetroVietnam, a Vietnamese Government-
owned entity with 20% PI, have developed
the Lan Tay field in Block 06.1, Vietnam.
The figld started commercial productionin
January, 2003, Your Company's share of
the davelopment expanditure was
estimated at USD 228 million, against
which about USD 192 million has been
Investad tlil 31* March, 2007, Currently as
part of Phase | development, installation
of a comprasslon module on the Lan Tay
Platform hag been taken up. During 2006-
07, your Company's share of production
from the project was about 1.842 BCM of
gas and 0.030 MMT of condensata.

Sakhalin-1, Russia Lan Tay Paform, Biock 051, Visnam

Sakhalin-1Is a larga oll and gas fla/d In far

east offshore in Russia. Your Company

halds 20% Pl In the field; a subsidiary of Exxon-Mobil| as the operator holds 30% PI; Sodeco, a consortlum of Japanese companies holds
30% Pl and balance 20% P! is held by two subsidiaries of Rosneft, a Russian Government entity. Your Company's net cash outflow in this
project was approved at USD 1,556 million (excluding carry finance), which has been invested by the company. With the start of exports
of Sakhalin -1 crude oil from September, 2008, the project started to generate a positive cash flow. With the completion of facilities for
Phase | Chayvo, the planned peak production for the current phase of 250,000 barre/s per day was achieved in March, 2007. During
2006-07, your Comparty's share of production was about 0.955 MMT of ail and 0.306 BCM of gas.
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Exploration Block-8, Irag

Your Company Is the sola llcenses of Block-8, a large onland exploration Block
in Iraq spread over 10,500 sq lkan. The minimum expenditure obligation for the
first phase of exploration Is USD 15 millllon, agalnst which an Investmant of
about USD 1.6 million has been made till 31 March, 2007. Though, the work
relating to archival, reprocessing and imterpretation of the existing seismic data
has been completed, due to prevailing conditions in Irag, your Company
notified the force majeurs situation to the Ministry of Oil, Iraq in April, 2003. As
per information obtained, all pre-war comtracts are to be reviewed by the
constitutionally elactad Iraql Govemment. As this contract Is one of the few
contracts which were ratified by the Government of Iraq by passing a separate
law and your Company had completed a part of the committed work
programme and was to commence acquisition of additional geismic data
befors the notification of force majsure, It expacts the llcensa to ba revalldated
in its favour by the Govemment of Iraq.

Exploration Block A-1, Myanmar

Block A-1 ig an exploration Block in offshore Myanmar. Your Company
holds 20% P! In the Block, GAIL {Indla) Limited, another Indlan PSU holds
10% PI, Daewoo International Corporation of Korea as the operator holds
60% Pl and KOGAS of Korea holds the balance 10% PI. Your Company's
share of investment in exploration phase till March 2007 was about USD 45
million. Commercial quantity of natural gas has been discovered in two of Orian Platform, Sakhalin-1, Russia

the fields, Shwe and Shwe Phyu, in the Block. Consortium's request for

axtonslon of exploration perlod for additional 5 years il 31" October, 2011 has been allowed by the Myanmar Oll and Gas
Emterprise. The Shwe and Shwe Phyu field appraisals have been completed by the consortium and the Initially In-Place reserves
cartifled by an Independent firm, for the Shwa and Shwe Phyu gas flelds are 3.84 TCF. So far, a total of 15 wells have baen drlied In
the block, out of which 9 wells have been gas bearing. As intimated by the Government of Myanmar, the Gas from the Block would
be exported to China for which nagotiations are currently In prograss.

Farsl Offshora Exploration Block, Iran

Farsi is an offshore exploration Block in Iran spread
over 3,500 sq km Your Company holds 40% Pl as
operator and the remalning Pl Is held by Indlan O
Cormporation Limited (40% PI) and Qil India Limited
(20% PI). Apalnst your Company's currently
estimated share of investment of about USD 35.6
milllon In the exploration phase, actual expenditure of
about USD 32 milion has been incurred till
31" March, 2007 mainly on reprocessing and
interpretation of historical seismic data, acquisition
of new 2D and 3D seismic data and drilling of four
walls. Your Company successfully completed drilling
of four wells including & high pressure complex gas
well In the Block, thereby sirengthening Its .
credentials as a capable and efficient operator in the

trans-national environment; mere significantly the Shei 8. S. Butofs, Managing Director (jeft) & Shri U. . Base, Director (T&FS),
campaign resulted in discovery of oil and gas, the | OMGC af Drilling Alg “Nedamath”, Fersi Offshore Block, iran

assessment of which is currently in progress. The

project being under Exploration Service Contract, your Company is required to establish the commerciality of the discovery and if
accepted, submita proposal for entering into contract for the development phase.

Exploration Blocks NC-188 and NG-188, Libya

Your Company holds 49% Pl In exploration Blocks NC-188 and NC-189 In Libya with Turkdsh Petroleum Overseas Company (TPOC),
subsidiary of National il Gorpany of Turkey, holding the remaining 51% Pl with Operatorship. Your Company's share of investment in
the exploration phase is currently estimated at about USD 30 million, out of which about USD 15 million has bean investad till 31* March,
2007. As exploration phasa of fiva years was completed on 21* February, 2005, the Government of Libya has granted Its approval for
further extenslon for three years w.e.I. 12" June, 2006 to complete the remalning work obligations of drilling two wells In Block NG-189
and one well in Block NC-188. Currently, the operator is planning to drill two wells and acquire 500 LKM of new 2D seismic data in
Block NG-189.
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Exploration Block-XXIV, Syrla

Your Company holds 60% Pl in the Block-XXV, Syria with IPRMEL (operator) holding the remaining 40% PI. Your Gompany's share of
Investment In the axploration phase Is astimated at about USD 36.02 milllon, against which about USD S milllon has been Invested till
31" March, 2007. The reprocessing of existing selsmic data, acquistion, processing and Interpretation of additional selsmic data has
been carried out during the year. The first and second exploratory well drilled in the block proved to be dry. Currently, an assessment of
the datais in progress.

Block 54, Sudan

Your Company holds 24.125% Pl In Block 5A In Sudan. Your Company pariners Malayslan National OIl Company, Petronas with
67.875% Pl and Sudanese Government Company, Sudapet with 8% P1. The Block is jointly operated by White Nile Petroleum Operating
Company (WNPOC) a consortium of Petronas and Sudapet. Two flelds |.e Thar Jath and Mala, have basn put on production In Block 5A.
Production of oil from the project started in May, 2006. Your Company's share of production, during the year 2008-07 was 0.270 MMT
of oll. At present, a cluster of flaids-Mala Satalltes Is baing put on development with first oll targeted for March 2008. Extensive
exploration is 220 going on in the Block. Your Company has already committed investment of USD 424 million in the Block, out of which
USD 323 million has been invested till 31* March, 2007.

Your Gompany holds 23.5% P in Block 5B in Sudan along with Malaysian National il Company, Petronas (39% Pl), Sudanese
Government Company, Sudapst (13% PI) and Swadish ol company Lundin Petroleum AB (24.5% PI) as pariners. Tha Block Is Jointly
operated by White Nile Petroleum Operating Company (WNPOC) a consortium of Petronas and Sudapet. In view of the security
clearance aftar the peace agreement In Sudan, flald activitles were planned during the year 20056, Howaver, due to difficult terraln,
swampy and uncertain conditions and gecurity issues, only acquisition of 500 |km of 20 seismic data could be completed as against
the planned acquistion of 1,100 [km of 2D selsmic and drilling of 3 wild cat wells. Your Company has committed Investmant of
USD &6 million in this Block, outof which USD 37 million has been invested till 31 March, 2007,

Najwat Najem, Qatar

Najwat Najem Is a proven oll bearing structure located offshora North East Qatar, spread over an area of about 120 sq km. Your Company
holds 100% stake in the Block as operator underthe Appraisal, Development and Production Sharing Agreement with the Government of
the State of Qatar, Your Company's Investmant during the appralsal / delineation phasa Is currantly astimated at about USD 66.5 milllan,
out of which about USD 12 milllon has besn Invested til 31 March, 2007. The reprocessing and Interpretation of 200 sq km of 3D
seismic has been completed at ONGC's Geodata Processing and Imerpretation Centre at Dehradun. The wel| locations for drilling of two
appraisal wals have been idertified and the drilling operations in the block has commanced from 8" July, 2007.

North Ramadan, Egypt

Your Gompany holds 70% Pl in the North Ramadan Block (Block 6), Egypt with the remaining 30% PI being held by IPR Energy Red Sea
Inc {IPR). The Block Is located In tha Gulf of Suaz, covering an area of about 290 sq km. Your Company and IPR wil| jointly devslop the
Block with IPR taking the lead during exploration phase. Your Gompany's share of investment in the first exploration phase of three years
would be about USD 31.41 million, against which about USD 12 million has been invested till 31* March, 2007. During the year, the
consortium announced the discovery of ol in the first exploration well North Ramadan-1A drilled in the Block. Further appraisal of
the discovery and completion of remaining work programme is currently under progress.

Block81-1, Libya

Block 81-1 measuring 1,809 sq km is an onshore exploration Block located in Ghadames Basin in south-west Libya.
Your Company holds 100% P! with opsratorship In the Block. Your Company's estimatad /committed Investment during exploration
phase is approx USD 32.10 million, out of which USD 7 million has been invested till 31* March, 2007. Gurrently, the interpretation
of the existing seismic data is being carred out. Further, the coniract for acquisition of 2D and 3D seismic data in the Block has
been awarded.

BlockA-3, Myanmar

Your GCompany holds 20% Pl in exploration Block A-3 with an area of 6,780 sq km in Myanmar offshore with bathymetry uplo
1500 m located south of the Block A-1. Your Company is participating in the Block along with Daewoo International Corporation
who is the operator with 60% Pl, GAIL with 10% Pl and KOGAS with 10% PI. Your Company's share of investment in the Block upto
31" October, 2007 i3 estimated to be approx USD 33.80 million out of which about USD 20 million has been invested till 31% March,
2007. Commerclal quantity of natural gas has been discoverad In the Block In Mya fisid. The Block Is currently In the first ona year
extenslon of expleration perlod from 1% November, 2006 untll 31* October, 2007 In which as planned, four more wells have aready been
drilled. The Mya - 2 and Mya 3, appraisal wells, proved to be gas bearing but the other two exploratory wells were dry. As intimated by
the Government of Myanmar, the Gas from the Block would be exported to Ghina along with the Block A-1 gas for which negotiation is
in progress.
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Pipeline Project, Sudan

An agreement was signed by your Company with the Ministry of Energy & Mining (MEM), Government of Sudan (GOS) on 30" June,
2004, for construction of a 127, 741-km multl-product pipeline from Khartoum refinery to Port Sudan. The project was executad on
Build, Own, Lease and Transfer (BOLT) basis at a base lump sum price of USD 194 million subjectto variations, and was to be completed
within 16 months from signing of the agreement. Payment of the [ump sum price along with |eass rental would be racelved In 18 aqual
gemi annual ingtalments, with first instaiment due in December 2005. Qil India Limited, the other partner in the project, has 10% Pl inthe
project. Your Company's share of Investment / expenditurs In the project was USD 112 milllon (net of USD 33.25 milllon belng
non-recourse financing by the EPC contractor). Your Company completed the construction and handed over the pipeling to GOS on
31" August, 2005, two months ahead of the scheduled completion date. The pipeline has since been commissioned and is being
operated by the Government of Sudan. Frst four repayment instaliments have been received.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
ONGC Nile Ganga BY

Greater Nile il Project (GNOP), Sudan

ONGC Nlle Ganga BV (ONGBV) halds 256%
Plin Greater Nile Qil Project {(GNOP), Sudan;
the other partners In this project ara China
National Petroleum Corporation {(40% PI},
Petronas Carigali Overseas Sdn Berhad, a
subsidiary of the Malaysian National Oil
Company, Petronas (30% P1) and Sudapet,
the National Oil Company of Sudan (5% PI).
ONGBY's share in oil production from GNOP
was 3.157 MMT during 2006-07.

Al FuratProject, Syria

ONGBY and Fulin Investments Sarl, a
subsidlary of China National Petroleum
Company International (CNPCI}, holds
33.33% to 37.5% Pl In four Production
Sharing Contracts (PSCs) comprising 36
producing flelds In Syrda from Petro-
Canada. The project is being rmanaged
through a Dutch joint venture company, named Himalaya Energy (Syria) B.V., wherein ONGBY and Fulin Investments Sarl, hald 50%
shareholding each. ONGBV was funded by ONGC and OMEL, in the ratio of 55:45. A sum of about USD 158 million was invested by
ONGC and about USD 65 million by your Company through OMEL to acquire the stake. During the year, the parent company ONGC
transferred its share in the project to your Company w.e. . date of acquisition. The fields are operated by Al Furat Petroleum Company
(AFPC), jointly owned by Syrian Petroleumn Company, the National Oil Company, and Shell, the other partner in the fields. OVL's share in
the production of cruds oll during 2006-07 was about 1.085 MMT.

Driing Rig at Grearer Nive O Profect, Sudan

Block BG-10, Brazll

ONGC BV holds 15% Pl in the deepwater offshore Block BG-10in Brazil through its wholly owned subsidiary ONGG Gampos Ltda. As per
plan ONGC Campos Ltda. would eventually be merged with another wholly ownad subsldlary company of ONGBV l.a. ONGC Do Brasl|
Bxploracao Petrolifera Lida. incorporated in Brazil. Other details about the Block have been mentionad at para 4.1,

ONGC Narmada Limited

Block-2, Nigerla-S&o Tomé & Princlpe, JDZ

ONGC Narmada Limited {ONL), Company's 100% subsidiary incorporated in Nigeria, holds 13.5% Pl in deep water exploration Block-2
in Nigeria-S&o Tomé & Principe, Joint Development Zong (JDZ). The other partners in the Block include Sinopec (28.67% PI), Addex
Petroleum (14.33% PI), ERHC Enengy Inc. (22% PI), Equator Exploration (9% PI}, Amber (5% Pl), Foby (5% P} and A & Hatman (2.5% PI)
with Sinopec as the operator. ONL's share of investment, inclusive of the carry obligations to A & Hatman, til March, 2007 is estimated to
ba apprax USD 17 milllon. The exploration work In the Block Is currently under progress.

ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited

Mansarover Energy Project, Colombla

ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited (DAAL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of your Gompany incorporated on 8" August, 2006 in Bermuda.
OAAL is engagad in exploration and production activities and holds staka in E&P project in Colombia through holding 50% shares in
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Mansarover Energy Golomnbia Limited (MECL), a 50:50 Joint Venture company with Sinopec of China. Other details about the project
have been mantioned atpara 4.6.

In view of exemptlon granted by the Central Government under Section 212(8) ofthe Companiss Act, 1956 (Act), the annual accounts of
OVL's subsidiaries i.e. ONGBY, ONL, OAAL and ONGG Do Brasil Exploracao Petrolifera Lida., a3 required under Section 212(1) of the Act
have not basn attached with the accounts of the Company. As per the terms of exemption, the raquistte Information In respect of
subsidiaries is attached to the Annual Accounts.

JOUMT VENTURE COMPANY - OMGE MITTAL ENERGY LIMITED

Your Company along with Mittal Investments Sari (MIS) promoted ONGC Mittal Energy Limitad (OMEL), 2 joint venture company
incorporated in Cyprus. Your Gompany and MIS each holds 50% shares of OMEL currently. However, the ultimate shareholding of OMEL
is proposed to be in the ratio of 51{0VL): 49(MIS) of 98% as between the promaters with 2% shares to be held by a financial institution.
OMEL holds Plin the AFPC Syrian Assets thraugh ONGBV. Further, OMEL holds stake in two exploration Blocks namely OPL 279 and OPL
285 in Nigeria.,

OVERSEAS OFFICES

Your Company during the year opened fts offices In Havana (Cuba}, Caracas (Venezuela) and Astana (Kazakhstan). Other overseas
offices of your Company are located in Ho Chi Minh City (Vietnam), Dubai (UAE), Yuzhno Sakhalingk (Russia), Baghdad (Irag), Tehran
(Iran), Tripoli (Libya) and Doha {Qatar). ONGC Nile Ganga BV, has its registared office in Amsterdam (Ths Netherlands}, and its office
in Khartoum (Sudan}. ONGG Narmada Limited and ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited have their registered offices in Lagos (Nigeria)
and Bermuda.

INFORMATION TECHNOLDBY

Your Company kaeps ltself abraast of tha advancements In the flald of Information technology so as to adopt them to the axtent raquirad
in its pursuit of achieving operational excelence. During the year 2006-07, a state-of-the-art Corporate Data Centre was set up which
would Interpret the selsmic data for varlous projects. The hardwara Installad Includes high-and work stations to specifically cater to
G&G (Geological & Geophysical) requirements, application servers, data storage facility with scalability for future requirements.
Tha latest Industry software for G&G/ reservoir applications has been installad on abave hardwars,

HUMAN REEDURCE DEVELDFMENT

Your Company has been operating with optimally
required manpower seconcded from the parent
company. The total manpower of your Gompany
was 110 as on 31* March, 2007 as compared to 80
as on 31" March, 2005. Besldes, 36 ONGC
executives were posted /seconded to various
overseas projacts

BOARD OF DIRECTORE
- Shri A. K. Jain, Joint Secretary, Ministry of
Patrolsum and Natural Gas, Jolned as a

nominge Director of your Gompany on
4" December, 2006.

- Shri Anupam Mathur and Shri Joeman
Thomnas tack over as Director (Commercial) Team OVL In field as part of 43" Rafsing Day celebration
and Director (Exploration) of your Gompany
on 20" Fabruary, 2007 respactivaly.

= Your Directors axtend a warm welcoma te Shrl A. K. Jaln, Shri Anupam Mathur and Shrl Josman Thomas.

- As required under Section 255 and 256 of the Companies Act, 1956, Shri A. K. Hazarika, Director, ShriD. K. Pande, Director, and
Sh U. N. Bose, Director retire by rotatlon at the ensulng Annual General Masting, and baing ellgible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the said meeting.

ALIDITORS

M/s Baira Sapra & Co., Charterad Accountants, New Delhiwere appeinted as the Statutory Auditors of your Company by the Comptroller
& Auditor General (C&AG) of India for the financial year 2006-07.

The comment of the C&AG, along with reply of the Management, is annexed and forms part of this report.
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STRATUTOAY DISCLOSURES

{h None of the amployees of your Company |s drawing remuneration exceading lImits lald down under the provislons of Section
217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975.

{i}  Noneofthe Directors of your Company is disqualified under the provisions of Section 274 (1) (g) of the Companies Act, 1958.

{i)  Information required under Section 217(1}{e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies {Disclosure of Particulars in
the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 regarding Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
earnings and outgo during the financial year 2006-07 is given beiow:

a) that the sources of energy used by the Company are Elecricity and Mator Spirit (Petrol);

b} that the Board, as part of its existing internal control measures, is striving for the conservation of electricity and petrol
undler the supervision of Managing Director on a continuous basis and is satisfied that the utilisation of enengy is
optimum for the operations of the Company in India; and

c) the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, in regard to technology absorption are not applicable to the Gompany.

d) {Rupees In mililon)
= Foreign Exchange earned 92328.27
» Forelgn Exchange outgo 95605.22
SECAETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

Secretarial Compliance Report confirming compliance te the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and
applicable rules thereunder, though not mandatory, obtained from a practicing Company Secretary, is annexad and forms part of the
Directors' Report,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AMALYEIS NEPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, is annexed
and forms part of the Directors' Report.

CORFORATE COYERMANGE REPORT

The Company strive to attain high standards of corporate
governance. Heneg, though not mandatory, a separate section
on Corporate Governance Is annexed and forms part of the
Directors' Report.

DIRECTORS" RESFONSIRILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to provislons of Sectlon 217(2AA) of the Companles Act, 1956, the following statement relating to Annual Accounts for the
financial year ended 31* March, 2007 is made:

{i) Theapplicable Accounting Standards had been followed in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year 2006-07.
The Company has not taken any material departure from the applicable Accounting Standards;

{i} The Directors had selected such accounting policies as described in Schedule-25 to the Annual Accounts and applied them
consistent'y as stated in the Annual Accounts and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Gompany as at 31 March, 2007 and of the profit of the Gompany for the year ended
on that dats;

{iif) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of tha Companles Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
otherirregularities; and

{iv) TheDirectors had praparedtha Annual Accounts on a “going concem” basls.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The details of Audit Committee are given separately in the Gorporate Govemance Report,

1
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19, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Directors of your company acknowledge with deep appreciation the valuable guidance and support extended by the Government of
India, especially the Ministry of Petroleumn & Natural Gas, Ministry of Finance, Ministry of External Affairs, Indian Embassies / High
Commissions abroad and the Reserve Bank of India etc. Your Directors would alse like to take this opportunity to express their
appreciation to the dedicated and committed team of employees for their valuable contribution. Your Directors recognise that the
achievements of your Company would not have been possible without the unstinted and total support from the Parent Company,
Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited.

On behall of the Board of Directors

et

New Delhi (R. S. Sharma)
23" August, 2007 Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INTRODUCTION

ONGC Videsh Limited (OVL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC), a Public Sector
Enterprise/Undertaking (PSE/PSLU) of the Government of India, under the administrative control of the Ministry of Petroleum &
Natural Gas (MOP&NG). OVL is engaged in exploration and production of oil and gas outside India. OVL was incorporated as
Hydrocarbons India Private Limited, on 5" March, 1965 with registered office in New Delhi to perform international exploration and
production business. The Company was rechristened as ONGC Videsh Limited w.e.f. 15" June, 1989. With the widening of the energy
supply gap from domestic production, participation in overseas oil and gas assets for equity oil was revived in the mid ninety's.
OVL participated in few exploration projects, which could not bear good results. In January, 2000, OVL was granted special
empowerment by the Government. The special empowerment facilitated better and smooth functioning of the Company in the
internaticnal environment as evidenced by a string of successful acquisitions post January, 2000. OVL now participates in 26 E&P
projects in 15 countries namely Vietnam (3 projects), Russia (1 project), Sudan (3 projects), Iran (1 project), Iraq {1 project), Libya
(4 projects), Myanmar (2 projects), Syria (2 projects), Qatar {1 project), Egypt (1 project), Cuba (2 projects), Nigeria Sao Teme Principe
JDZ (1 project), Brazil (1 project), Nigeria {2 projects) and Colombia (1 project). Out of the existing 26 projects, OVL is operator in
10 projects and joint operatorin 2 projects in 9 countries.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Energy security is fast rising to be part of the sovereign agenda of nations. Developing economies who are witnessing impressive
growth in their GDP are progressively driving their policies to augment energy security. The sheer nature of global oil economy manifest
with geo political bearings, encourage the oil companies and their governments to coordinate their efforts in ensuring energy security for
their nations and their own benefits. The last financial year witnessed rise of NOCs giving serious competition to International oil
companies. The year also witnessed sustained high oil prices and consequently high priced oil acquisitions. OVL is mandated by
Government of India and is identified as the nodal agency to acquire equity oil & gas overseas. The Company met with a fair set of
success in as much as it concluded 9 acquisitions during the year which included one oil producing project in Colombia and one
discovered oil blockin Brazil. The remaining 7 acquisitions were of exploration blocks and OVL is the operator in 5 of them.

Global 0il & Gas Demand,/ M&A activities in 2006

The global oil demand which is ¢lose to 86 million barrels per day is projected to reach 120 million barrels per day by 2030, and itis said
that Asia shall be the largest contributor to the incremental demand. Countries in Africa and Middle East, would be ceniral to the shift
towards commercial energy with rapid urbanisation drive, resulting in market forces to draw new dimension of returns and deal making.
Emergence of National Oil Companies, higher interest in private equity holdings, large drives of buybacks and consolidation have cast
significant impact on the acquisition activities; in case of both the reserves and equity. The M&A market analysis of 2006 illustrates that
gas deals have occupied dominating share over the oil deals . The average deal value during last year rose by 18% and large number of
deals ranged in USD 250 millionto 1 billion, and among the top 10 deals the last involved a transaction of USD 3.5 billion. **

**Sources: PWC and Herold

International Industry Environment

The effect of high oil prices was prominent on cost of inputs. Factor inputs in the E&P industry became costly In case of services and
equipment. These had a bearing on the operations of the Company as well. A higher interest in the E&P sector atiracted by high oil prices,
saw transaction in areas such as tar sands in Canada, heavy oil extraction and seam gas exploitation. The Company focused on the
conventional oil and gas deals and bidding rounds, and had only wider look at some of the opportunities in heavy oil and tar sands,
as technology in these areas is under limited domain and in future if these opportunities become largely available it may be a good move
1o enterthese areas also.

During the last year when many major companias opted to share higher returns with the stake holdars and buyback, many also invested
in oil and gas reserves, largely through acquisitions and mergers, therefore, narrowing the opportunity spread and raising the
expectations of the sellers. The increasingly larger bids on premiums and bonuses pulled the unit cost of acquisition by nearly 25% more
than the previous year. Though the Company did not remain insulated from the phenomenon by and large its costs were economical.

STRENGTH AND WEAKNESS

Your Company now has a good global presence; 15 countries, in oil exploration, development and production. It has oil and gas
production from 6 projects and 5 projects have signatures of oll or gas discoveries. The Company is now carefully building a portfolio
thatis well balanced.

With the moving tides of the industry and carefully crafted strategy, the Company has been able to keep track on the pulse of the market
and has buitt its credentials and reputation in the market. As a part of mitigating the risks of the industry environment, your Company has
forged alliances with some of the leading oil and gas companies like Petrobras, ENI, Rosneft, thus adding to existing alliances and
partnerships with BP, Shell, Exxon, Norsk Hydro, Repsol, TPOC, PDVSA, PetroVietnam, CNPC, Sinopec and Petronas.

Further, being a Public Sector Undertaking, there are some limitations for the Company, in terms of decision making process, attracting
the besttalentin the industry. The Company has submiitted its proposal to MOP&NG for enhancement of empowerment of its Board.
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OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

In the last two years, many countries like Libya, Nigeria, Vietnam, Syria, Yemen, Angola, Brazil, have offered acreages through bidding
rounds. Your Company has been participating in nearly all of them, and has won some acreages. The Company expects good resufts out
of the exploration prospect overthe next couple of years. If proved successful in these ventures, the Company shall be adding reserves
through drill-bit thereby reducing its overall cost considerably.

The Company has also been able to seize opportunities by leveraging the farm in opportunities provided by the parent company ONGC,
to certain International Oil Companies and has been able to get participating interest in acreages of these 10Cs in third countries thus
increasing its presence abroad and paving way to induct technology and expertise through such alliances.

The performance of the Company hinges on oil prices on the revenue side and factor cost of raw material, equipment, services etc. on
the input side. Volatility in oil price and high input costs could materially affect the performance of the Company. Though most of the
projects of the Company have production sharing contracts, the entitiement and cost oil recoveries getinfluenced by changes in oil price
or input costs. The worst case scenario is when the oil prices move down at a fast pace but the input costs take a longer lag in
plummeting down.

OUTLDOK

New Ventures

The company, in last few years has adopted a balanced portfolio approach, by maintaining a combination of producing, discovered and
exploration assets. The exploration assets are expected to add to GCompany's reserves and production in future beside acquisition of
attractive assets. Your Company intends to maintain this trend and shall focus on all the three types of assets.

Exploration

Your Gompany has set up a state of art data center and has constituted a knowledge team to scan and identify value in the existing
exploration assets, assets with discovery and in new opportunities so as to enhance the reserve base of the Gompany.

Internalional Alliances

The Company has also forged alliances to attain a collaborative approach on value creation and knowledge sharing. The Company shall
continue to engage more and more in such alliances through agreements and Joint Ventures.

Geographic spread

The Company has presence in 15 countries and in some it has been able to enhance participation in more than cne project.
The Company shall endeavor to strengthen its presence in some of the attractive oil and gas rich countries and would also attempt to
mark entry in other hydrocarbon rich countries.

Economic Packaging

Your Company through its JV with Mittal Investment Sarl viz. OMEL, has attempted to acquire two attractive exploration blocks in Nigeria
bundled with an economic package, where in retum for oil and gas acreage the JV shall also invest a calibrated sum on the basis of
resuftant oil production, in projects in the downstream and power sectors orin infrastructure sector such as railways.

RISK3 AND CONCERNS

The Company participates and operates in varied environments, both politically and geographically, where exploration, production and
development is more challenging technologically, operationally and financially. The strengthening of rupee when it gives us comfort an
purchase of assets, adversely affect our earnings in rupee terms. In the projects and countries where we have large investments, the
risks and losses due to expropriation, change in fiscal regime, additional taxes and increase in government share or restrictions on
exports of oil could materially affect our performance. However, due to prime importance of oil and gas industry in these countries, their
Govemments would not in their own interest like to destabilize the oil companies. Most of our intemational investments in the past had
been in the form of joint ventures where we were not the operator, In the course of such investments, we were dependent to an extent on
the operating partner, including forthe success of the joint venture. We may sometime disagree with actions proposed to be taken by the
operating partner. However, this is the format in which international E&P industry works to fake care of sharing of exploration risks.
Further, of late, the Company is acting as operatorin several projects.

Some of our projects are in countries where there are unresolved unrests and larger issues of governance and territorial/ethnic divisions;
some also have terrorism and reactionary protests on continued basis. Though your Company has not been the target, yet in future it
may face the threat from these as closely as any one operating in such hostile environments. Further, the business involves high
exploration and technology risks and there are inherent HSE risks in the oil & gas business.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUAGY

The Company has adequate internal audit and internal ¢ontrol systems to ensure that all transactions are authorised, recorded and
reported correctly. Tha intemnal control system consists of regular operative performance evaluation and devising corrective measures
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thereof and comprehensive internal and external audit including audit by C&AG. The internal auditors for the year 2006-07,
independently evaluated adequacy of internal control system. The audit observations are periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors.

PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE

Reserve Accretion

During the year, the reserve accretion of 31.419 MTOE was reported from GNOP & Block 5A in Sudan and new properties acquired
during the yeari.e. Mansarovar Energy Projectin Colombia and BG-10 project in Brazil. However, the reserves in respect of Sakhalin-1,
Russia Project based on the declaration of commerciality accepted by consortium members and approved by Russian authorities have
been revised downwards during the year by 19.309 MTOE. Further, there was slight reduction in the reserves of AFPGC Block of Syria by
0.53 MTOE due fo correction in the reserves reported earlier. Hence, there was a net accretion of reserve of 11.58 MTOE during the year.

Produetion

Crude oil production during the year was 5.804 MMT as against 4.584 MMT in the previous year. Gas production during the year was
2.148 BCM as against 1.755 BCM in the previous year. During the year, export of crude oil from Sakhalin-1 project in Russia
commenced from September 2006 and peak production of over 2,50,000 bbl/day with Company's share of 50,000 bbl/day was
achieved in March, 2007. Crude oil production from Block 5A in Sudan also started in May, 2006. Further, the Company acquired a
producing assetin Colombia.

XFive Year Plan

During 10" Plan period (2002-03 to 2006-07) the actual production of Qil and Gas (0-+0EG) was 23.475 MMTOE as compared to the
target of 10.14 MMTOE.

Plan Qutlay

Your Company made planned expenditure of Rs. 251,031 million during the X Plan period against the Plan outlay of Rs. 135,500 million
{185%). Most of the plan expenditure was towards Company's core activity i.e. exploration, production of oil and gas and acquisition and
development of new fields. The Xl plan outlay for the Company has been worked out to Rs. 453,340 million.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The consolidated gross revenues of the Company increased from Rs. 81,707.28 million to Rs. 118,009.55 million, up 46% during the
year. The consolidated net profit of the Company also increased to Rs. 16,632.87 million, up 85% from Rs. 9,011.96 million.

The Consolidated financial results of OVL, including wholly owned subsidiary companies viz. ONGBY, ONL, OAAL and Jointly Controlled
Entity viz. OMEL, for the year 2006-07 as compared to 2005-06 and the position of major items in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31“March, 2007 and 31* March, 2006 is given below:

(Rupeaes in million)

Parliculars YE Mar'07 YEMar06 Change%
INCOME
Sales Income 115,539.95 77,921.87 48%
Others 3,469.60 3,785.41 -8%
Total 118,009.55 81,707.28 46%
EXPENDITURE
Royalty 51,130.17 39,060.77 31%
Operating Expenses 13,909.33 10,891.11 28%
Recouped Cost 21,335.02 11,204.13 90%
Interest & Exchange Loss & Provisions -300.22 -571.08 40%
Total 85,574.30 60,584.93 41%
Profit Before Tax 33,435.25 21,122.35 58%
Prior Period Adjustment 4,167.28 4,185.34 0.4%
ProvisionforTax -  CurrentTax 9,858.89 5,886.38 67%
- Deferred Tax 2,776.21 2.347.79 18%
Minority Interest 0 -309.12 100%

Profii After Tax 16,632.87 9,011.86 B3%
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(Rupees in million)

Particulars YE Mar'07 YEMar'06 Change%
Sources of Funds
Share Capital 10,000.00 3,000.00 233%
Reserves and Surplus 33,735.65 18,977.47 78%
Loans: From ONGC 130,941.59 | 157,617.69 -17%
From Others 140598 1,624.15 13%
Minority Interest 0.00 6,708.24 -100%
Deferred Tax Liability 9,781.21 6,634.78 47%
Liability For Abandonment 4,503.49 2.518.82 79%
Total 190,367.92 197,081.15 3%
Application of Funds _
Fixed Assets {Nef) 50,774.72 | 17,247.08 194%
Producing Property 56,056.26 36,805.76 52%
Expenditure on Wellsin progress & Capital WIP 26,390.56 54,457 .22 -52%
Goodwill 27,685.89 14,172.16 95%
Current Assets (Net) 29438271 74,398.93 -60%
Deferred Colombian Taxes 22.22 - -
Total 190,367.92 = 197,081.15 -3%
Important Ratios

2006-07 2005-06
Net Profit to Revenue (%) 13.98 11.03
Net Profit to Capital Employed (%) 10.43 6.43
Net Profit to Net Worth (%) 38.03 41.01
Debt Equity 3.03:1 7.25:1
EPS (Rs.) 224.44 300.40

HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company follows the HR policies of its parent company ONGC. However, being international operator, the Company provides
necessary training / conducts development programmes to imbibe the necessary skills required to operate in the intemational
environment. Further, the Company deputes its personnel along with other international experts, in joint venture projects with major oll
and gas companies which enable them to upgrade their skills interms of new technologies, working in international environment etc. The
Company has been operating with optimally required manpower seconded from the parent company. The total manpower of the
Company was 110 as on 31* March, 2007 as compared to 90 as on 31 March, 2006. Besides these, 36 ONGC executives were posted
/saconded to various overseas projects.

ENVIRONMENT

The Company conducts its business in a mannerthat is compatible with the environmental and economic needs of the societies in which
it operates. In the projects operated by the Company, it complies with all applicable environmental laws and regulations. The major non-
operated projects, in which OVL is a partner, are operated by global companies like Exxon Mobli, BP. Shell etc. who maintain very high
HSE standards.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company, being operating overseas, understands its responsibility to contiribute to the communities and economies of the countries
in which it operates. The Company is committed to create a positive and lasting social impact by developing successful parinerships
built on mutual trust and respect, ultimately, raising the standard of living and the stability of the communities in which the Company
operates. The Company makes valuable contribution in many ways: through payment of tax revenues to governments; by investing in
education and fraining and improving employment opportunities for nationals; providing medical/sports/agricultural facilities to the local
community etc.

Further, with the objective to ensure access by every citizen to information under the control of the Gompany and in order to bring in
transparency and accountability, an appropriate mechanism has been set up at registered office of the Company in New Delhi in line with
the requirements of Right to Information Act, 2005.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Staternents in this management discussion and analysis may be ‘forward looking' within the meaning of the applicable Laws and
Regulations. Actual performance may deviate from the explicit orimplicit expectations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Recently, the Department of Public Enterprises has recommended that there should be a separate section on Comporate Governance inthe Annual
Report. As OVL continues to make efforts fowards achieving good governance and responsible management practices, the details of
compliance on Corporate Governance by the company are provided in the following sections:

2.1

23

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Gompany's vision is to be a world class E&P Gompany having an Qrganization & Gulture committed towards Sustainable Growth &
Superior Profitability through pursuit of International Opportunities & Exgellence in Execution. lts corporate philosophy on Corporate
Governance is to conduct its business in an efficient, transparent, ethical and responsible manner. The Company believes that good
comorate governance goes beyond compliance of the provisions of various laws and therefore incorporates itin its conduct all across.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Company is managed by the Board of Directors, which formulates strategies, policies and reviews its performance periodically.
As per Article of Association (A0A) of the Company, the number of Directors shall not be less than three and more than fifteen. As per
AOA, ONGC, the parent company appoints the Chairman and all part time Directors and the President of India appoints all full time
Directors including Managing Director on the Board of the Company.

The Chairman & Managing Director of ONGC, the parent company, is also the Chairman of the Company. The Managing Director who is
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and three whole-time Directors i.e. Director (Finance), Director (Commercial) and Director
{Exploration), manage the business of the Gompany under the overall superintendence, control and guidance of the Board. In addition,
Joint Secretary, Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance and Joint Secretary (Exploration}, Ministry of Petroleum and
Natural Gas, Government of India, are part-time Directors on the Board. The two posts of whole time Directors i.e. Director (Commercial)
and Directors (Exploration) onthe Board of OVL were created by the Govemment during the year, pursuant to which Shri Anupam Mathur
and Shri Joeman Thomas took over as Director (Commercial) and Director (Exploration), respectively on 20" February, 2007.

During the year (4" December, 2006), Shri A. K. Jain, Joint Secretary (Exploration), Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, alsc joined as
apart-time Director on the Board of the Company.

Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board /Commities Meelings

The meetings are convened by giving apprepriate advance notice after obtaining approval of the Chairman of the Board / Committee.
Detailed agenda, management reports and other explanatory statements are circulated in advance in the defined agenda format
amongst the members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions at the meetings. To address specifi¢ urgent need,
meetings are also being called ata shorter notice. In case of exigencies resolutions are also sometimes passed by circulation.

Where it is not practicable to attach any document or the agenda is of confidential nature, the same is tabled with the approval of
Managing Director. In special and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplemental item(s) on the agenda are permitted. Sensitive
subject matters are discussed at the meeting without writien material being circulated.

The agenda papers are prepared by the concerned offigials, sponsored by the concerned functional Directors and submitted for
obtaining approval of the Managing Director, well in agvance. Duly approved agenda papers are circulated amongst the Board members
by the Company Secretary. The meetings of the Board /Committee are generally held in New Delhi.

The Board/Committee is given presentations covering Exploration, Production, Operations, Financial, Human Resources, Marketing and
operations of Joint Vertures / Subsidiaries of the Company etc. at the pre-scheduled Board/Committee meetings.

The members of the Board/Committee have complete access to all infermation of the Company. The Board is also free to recommend
inclusion of any matter in agenda for discussion. Senior management officials are called to provide additional inputs to the items being
discussed by the Board/Committee, as and when necessary.

Recording minutes of proceedings at the Board / Committee Meeting

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board / Committee megting are recorded. Draft minutes are approved by the Chairman of the
Board/Committee. These minutes are confirmed in the next meeting of the Board/Committee. The finalized minutes of the proceedings of
the meetings are enteredin the Minutes Book.

Follow-up mechanism

The guidelines for the Board/Committee Meetings facilitate an effective post meeting follow-up, review and reporting process for the
action taken on decisions of the Board and Committee. The follow-up Action Taken Report (ATR) on the decisions/
instructions/directions of the Board / Committee is submitted to the Board/Committee regularly.
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25  Board Meetings

Nine Board Meetings were held during the financial year on the following dates:

17" April, 2006 15" June, 2006
14" August, 2006 11" October, 2006
5" January, 2007 26" February, 2007

17" July, 2006
8" December, 2006
26" March, 2007

The minimum and maximum interval between any two Board meetings was 28 days and 59 days, respectively.

2.6  Composition and Attendance

The compaosition of the Board, details of attendance etc. are as under:

Name of the Designation | Academic No. of
Diractors Qualifications Board
Maeeting
held during
the tenure
Whole-Time Directors
Shri R. S. Butola Managing -MBA 9
| Director -CAlIB
Shri D. K. Sarraf Director -B. Com (Hons.) 9
(Finance) -M. Com
-AICWA
| | -ACS |
Shri Anupam Mathur | Director -B.E. (Mech.) 2
(Commercial)
(w.e.f. 20"
. Feb., 2007) _
Shri Josman Thomas = Director -M.Sc. in 2

(Exploration) ~ Applied
(wef 20" Geology
Feb., 2007)

Non-Executive Part-Time Diraclors

Shri R. S. Sharma, Chairman -FAICWA 9
Chairman & Managing | (w.e.f. 30" -GAlIB
Director, ONGC May, 2006, -Advance

earlier Financial

Director since | Management

3"April, 2002) Programme in
Qil and Gas
from University
of Texas,
Dallas (USA)

No. of
Board
Meeling
atiended

Atlendence
at the

last AGM
{18" Sept.,
2006)

No

Yes

N.A.

N.A.

Yes

Details of
Diractorship
held in

in other
Companies

Membaership
held in
commitieas
including
OVL**



Shri Subir Raha,
Ex-Chairman &
Managing Director,
ONGC

Shri Sunjoy Joshi,
Ex-Joint Secrefary,
Ministry of
Pefroleumn &
Natural Gas

Shri Talmiz Ahmad,
Ex- Additional
Secretary,

Ministry of
Petroleum &
Natural Gas

Shri Arvind Mayaram,
Joint Secretary,
DEA, Ministry

of Finance

Shri A. K. Jain,
Joint Secretary,
Ministry of
Petroleum &
Natural Gas

Dr. A. K. Balyan,
Director

(Human Resource),
ONGC

Shri N. K. Mitra,
Director (Offshore),
ONGC

Shri A. K. Hazarika,
Director (Onshore),
ONGC

Chairman
(upto 24"
May, 2006)

Director

(Upto 30"
July, 2006)

Director

(Upto 14"
June, 2006)

Director

Director

(wef 4"
Dec., 2006)

Director

Director

Director

-Bachelor in 1 1 N.A.

Electronics &
Telecom
-MBA From
Leeds
-Strategic
Management
Programme
from Henley
University

-Indian 1 1 N.A.

Administrative
Services (IAS)
-Master's

Degree in
English Literature

-IAS 1 0 N.A.

-IAS 9 9 Yes

-Master's
Degree in

Political Science

-1AS 4 4 N.A.

-PG. in Business
Administration
-Diplomain
International

_ Trade

-M.Sce. in 9 6 Yes
Chemistry

-M.Tech from IIT

Delhi

-PHD in

Chemistry from

_ Germany

-B.Sc. (Hons.) 9 6 Yes
-Pefroleum

Engineering

-B.E. (Mech.) 9 9 Yes

NA.

N.A.

N.A.

£,
S A
"f X "
NA.
NA.
NA.
1
1
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Shri D. K. Pande, Director -B.Sc. (Hons.), 9 5 Yes 1 -
Director Gold Medalist

(Exploration), -M.SC. (Hons.) in

ONGC Geology

Shri U. N. Bose, Director -B.E. (Mech.) 9 6 Yes 2 -
Director (T&FS),

ONGC

* The other directorships do not include directorships of Companies registered under Section 25 of the Gompanies Act, 1956, Forgign
CGompanies and Private Limited Companies.

** Membership of only the Audit Committees and Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievance Committees of all Public Limited Companies have
been considered.

Notes:

{0 Directors are not related to each other;

(i) Directors do not have any pecuniary relationships ortransactions with the Company;

(iy  Thedirectorships/Committee memberships are based on the latest disclosure received from Directors;

{ivy  None of the Director is a Member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees, across all the companies in
whichhe is a Director.

2.7  Resume of Directors proposed to be Re-appointed
The brief resume of Directors including nature of their experience in specific functional areas and names of companies in which they hold
directorship and membership/chairmanship of Board/Committee, who have been appointed during the year or are retiring by rotation
and seeking re-appointment are as below:

Name ShriA. K. Jain Shri Anupam Mathur ShriJoeman Thomas
Date of Birth - 16" October, 1962 20" August, 1949 14" December, 1951
Data of Appointment 4" Dacember, 2006 20" February, 2007 20" February, 2007
Quallfication - Indian Administrative Services -B.E. {Mech.) - M.Sc. in Applied Geology
- PG. inBusiness Administration
- Diploma in International Trade
No. of Shares held Nil Nil Nil
Experlence In specific Currently holding the position of Experience in designing, Having the experience of
Functional Areas Joint Secretary (Exploration) in engineering, construction more than 30 years inthe
the Ministry of Petroleum and and installation of offshore up stream E&P sector.
Natural Gas. Previously served Platforms and handled Risk Aswell as contributed for
on various positions in the Management related work as the growth of OVL through
Govemment. well as headed various the acquisition of several
projects in OVL. oil fields and producing
properties.
Directorship held in other - Oil India Limited - Himalaya Energy (Syria} BV - ONGC Narmada Ltd.
Companies - Balmer Lawrie Investments {Foreign Company) {Foreign Company}
- Al Furat Petroleum Gompany | - ONGC Amazone
{Foreign Company) Alaknanda Ltd,
- Mansarovar Enargy {Foreign Company)
Colombia Ltd.
(Foreign Company)
- Greater Nile Petroleum
Operating Co.
{Foreign Company)
- DNGC Nile Ganga BY
(Foreign Company)
Membership/Chairmanshipof = Member Audit Committee - Oil Nil Nil

Committees including OVL*

India Limited



Name ShriA. K. Hazarika ShriD. K. Pande ShriU. N. Bose
Date of Birth 30" September, 1952 13" January, 1951 7" November, 1952
Date of Appointment 18" October, 2004 1*October, 2005 1" October, 2005
Qualification -B.E. {(Mechanical) - B.Sc. {Hons. ), Gold Medalist - B.E. (Mechanical)
-M.Sc. (Hons.)
No. of Shares held One (As Nominee of ONGC) One {As Nominee of ONGC) One (As Norminee of ONGC)
Experignce in specific Enriched and wide experience of Having diverse and rich experienceof | Having experience of more
Functional Areas about 30 years of several field and about 30 years in varipus fields than 30 years in various
staff assignments in various including hydrocarbon explorationand | fields including deviation/
disciplines including Regional development, Basin Analystand Field | horizontal drilling,
Cementing, In-charge, Head/Chief Operations; In-charge of exploratory | implemented drilling
Woell Services, handled varipus and development activitiesin acreages | programmesin high
important & complex responsibilities. | held by ONGC, R&D Institutes; guided | pressure/high dip and
Baen with ONGC since 1977 and and facilitated evaluation of overseas | technology solutions to
prior to that he served Qil India Limited. | acreages of ONGC Videsh, pioneerin | resolve difficultareadrilling
He currently holds the full time post implementation of deepwater project | campaignin deep and ultra-
of Director (Onshore) in ONGC. ‘Sagar Samridhi'; his initiative led to deep areas; contributed
discoveries in KG, Assam Arakanand | technical papersand
Western Offshore basins; a sports developed high-end
lover and participated in 4" Antarctica | fraining facilities for rig
Indian Expedition. supervisors.
He currently holds the fulltime postof | He currently holds the full
Director {Exploration) in ONGC. time post of Director (T&FS)
inONGC.
Directorship held - il and Natural Gas - Dil and Nafral Gas - Oil and Natural Gas
in other Companies Gorporation Limited Corporation Limited Corporation Limited
- ONGC Tripura Power Company - Petrochemical Open Standard - Energistics (Foreign
Private Limited Consortium (POSGC) Company)
- ONGC Teri-Biotech Limited {Foreign Company)
Membership/ Nil Nil Nil
Chalrmanship of
Committees Including OVL*

*Membership / Chairmanship of only the Audit Gommittees and Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievance Committees of all Public limited
companies have been considered.

3.
3.1

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Composition of the Audit Commitiee
The present composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Shri Arvind Mayaram - Chairman
ShriR.S. Sharma - Member
ShriN. K Mitra - Member

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956. Chairman of the
Committee, Shri Arvind Mayaram, a Govemment nominee on the Board, w.e.f. 15" June, 20086, is an IAS officer, Joint Secretary in the
Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance, Government of India. All members of the Committee have requisite financial and
management experience. Director (Finance) and Internal Auditor are the permanent invitees to Committee's meetings. Representatives
of Statutory Auditors were invited to attend and participate in the meetings. Functional Directors, Executives of Finance and other
departments are invited on need basis. The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last AGM of the Company. Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

Role of the Audit Commlitiee

The role of the Audit Committee includes the following:

a.  Overseeing financial reporting processes and the disclosure of financial information to ensure that the financial statements are
correct, sufficient and credible;
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3.3

3.4

b.  Recommending to the Board, audit fees payable to Statutory Auditors appointed by C&AG and approving payments for any
other services;

¢.  Reviewing with the management, the reports of Statutory Auditors, Govemment Audit and Intemal Audit, adequacy of internal
control systems and recommending improvements to the management;

d.  Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, approving intemal audit plans and efficiency of the functions, including the
structure of the internal audit department, staffing, reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audits;

e.  Discussionwithinternal auditors any significantfindings and follow-up thereon;

£ Discussion with the Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, the nature and scope of audit, as well as post-audit
discussion including their observations to ascertain any area of concem.

Minutes of the Audit Commiitee

Minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee are approved by the Chairman of the Committee and are noted by the Board of Directors
inthe subsequent megting.

Meetings and Attendance
Two meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the financial year on the following dates:

15™ June, 2006 26" February, 2007
Both the meetings were attended by allthe members of the Committee.

EQUITY SHARES HELD BY DIRECTORS (AS ON 31" MARCH, 2007)

ShriR. 8. Sharma, ShriR. §. Butola, Dr. A. K. Balyan, Shri N. K. Mitra, Shri A. K. Hazarika, Shri D. K. Pande and Shri U. N. Bose hold one
share each of the company as nominee of Oil and Natural Gas Gorporation Limited.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS OF THE BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Gompany is committed o conduct its business in accordance with the highest standards of business ethics and comply with
applicable laws, rules and regulations. A code of conduct, evolved in line with the parent Company ONGC was adopted by the Board
applicable to all Members of the Board and Senior Management who have confirmed compliance with the Code of Gonduct for the year
under review. A copy of the Code has been placed on the Company's website www.ongcvidesh.com.

Adeclaration signed by Chairmanis given below;
“I hereby confirm that:

The Company has obtained from the Members of the Board and Senior Management, affirmation that they have complied with the Code
of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management in respect of the financial year 2006-07.”

e

R.S.Sharma
Chairman

SUBSIDIARY MONITORING FRAMEWORK

All subsidiaries of the Company, except two subsidiaries in Brazil, are Board managed with their Boards having the rights and obligations
to manage such campanies in the best interest of their stakeholders. Brazilian companies being having limited activities are managed
through administrators as permitted under the local laws. Being 100% shareholder, the Company nominates its representatives on the
Boards of subsidiary companies and monitars the performance of its subsidiaries periodically.
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List of the Company's direct and indirect subsidiary companies as on 31*March, 2007 is given below:

Sl.No.  Name of the Subsidiary Date of incorporation/ Country in which
_ Acquisition Incorporated
it ONGC Nile Ganga BV 12" March, 2003 Netherlands
2, ONGC Narmada Limited ' 7" Decemnber, 2005 Nigeria
3. ONGG Do Brasil Exploracao Petrolifera Ltda. 7" July, 2006 ' Brazil
4. ONGG Amazon Alaknanda Limited _ 8" August, 2006 Bermuda
8. ONGC Compos Lida. 16™ March, 2007 Brazil
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS

Location, date and time, where the AGMs were held during the preceding 3 years:

Year  Loealion Date Time (IST)
2003-04 6" Floor, Jeevan Bharat, Tower-Il, 124, Indira Chowk, New Delhi - 110001 | 28" September, 2004 04:00 p.m.
2004-05 6" Floor, Jeevan Bharati, Tower-Il, 124, Indira Chowk, New Delhi - 110001 | 19" September, 2005 02:00 p.m. |
2005-06 | 6" Floor, Jeevan Bharati, Tower-Il, 124, Indira Chowk, New Delni - 110001 | 18" September, 2006 04.00 p.m

During the year two extraordinary general meetings of the Company were also held on 15" June, 2006 and 17" July, 2006 to increase the
Authorised Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 5,000 million to Rs. 10,000 million and divestment of wholly owned subsidiary
company 'ONGC Bonny Brahmaputra Limited incorporated in Nigeria in favour of Company's, joint venture company 'ONGC Mittal
Energy Limited' respectively.

DISCLOSURES

Materlal Contracts/Related Party Transactions

The Company has not entered into any material financial or commercial transactions with the Directors or the Management or their
relatives or the companies and firms, etc., in which they are either directly or through their relatives interested as Directors and/or
Partners except with certain PSUs, where the Directors are Directors without the required shareholdings. The Company has obtained
declarations from all concerned in this regard, which were noted by the Board.

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 24 of Schedule 26 to the Accounts in the Annual Report. Being a State
enterprise, no disclosure has baen made in respect of the transactions with state enterprises including subsidiary companies in line with
Accounting Standard {(AS) 18 on Related Party Disclosures.

The Company has not incurred any expenditure during the year 2006-07, which was not for the purpose of the business of the
Company or which was of personnel in natura and incurred by the Board of Directors and Senior Management.

Details of administrative and office expenses as a percentage of total expenses and reasons for increase:
(Rupees in million)

Particulars 2006-07 | 2005-06 Reasons for increase

Total expenses * 10,389.07 { 7,537.25

Administrative and Office Expenses 787.14 | 503.80

Administrative and Office Expenses asa 7.58% | 6.68% Administrative and office expenses have
percentage of Total Expenses increased marginally due to increase in the

business activities of the Company.
*Includes Production, Transportation, Selling & Distribution Expenditure and Provisions & Write Off (Net).

COMPLIANCES

The Gompany has complied with applicable rules and the requirement of regulatory authorities and no penalties or strictures were
imposed onthe Company during last three years. All statutory fillings were within stipulated time with various authorities.
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

. Annual Report; Annual Report containing inter-alia, Audited Accounts, Consolidated Financial Statements, Directors' Report,
Auditors' Report, and other important information is circulated to the members and others entitied therete. The Management
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Reportforms parts of the Directors' Report in Annual Report.

. News Release, Presentatlon elc.; The official news releases are displayed on the Company's website www.ongcvidesh.com.

. Webslte: The Company's website is www.ongcvidesh.com. Full Annual Report is also available on the web-site in a
user-friendly manner.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

-Date c 18" September, 2007
-Tima : 12:00:Noon
-Venue : 6" Floor, Jeevan Bharati,

Tower-l, 124, Indira Chowk,
New Delhi - 110001

SHARE OWNERSHIP PATTERN AS ON 31" MARCH, 2007

Catagory No. of shares held Parceniage of shareholding

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation 100,000,000 100%
Limited and its nominees

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
No case and/or suit of any material or substantial nature has been pending against the Company.

MAJOR PROJECTS
The listof projects af OVL, including held through subsidiaries/ joint venture company, as on 31* March, 2007 is as below:

Block 06.1, Viemam
Block 127, Vietham
Block 128, Vietham
Block 8, Iraq
Sakhalin-1, Russia
Block A-1, Myanmar
Block A-3, Myanmar
Farsi Offshore Block, Iran
Block NC-188 & NC-189, Libya
. Block81-1,Libya
. Block 43, Libya
. GNOPBlock1, 2 &4, Sudan
. Block 5A, Sudan
. Block 5B, Sudan
. Pipeline Project, Sudan
. Block XXIV, Syria
. Al Furat (4 PSAs), Syria
. Block-2, Nigeria Sao Tome & Principe, JDZ
. Block6, Egypt
. Najwat Najem Structure, Qatar
. Block BC-10, Brazil
. Block25, 26,27, 28,29, 35A & 36, Cuba
. Block34 &35, Cuba
. Mansarover Energy Project, Colombia
. OPL-279, Nigeria
. OPL-285, Nigeria
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RISK MAMAGEMENT

The framework for risk assessment and minimisation thereto has been evaluated and further improvements, if any, suggested by
experts shall be incorporated.

AUDIT QUALIFICATION

The auditors observations have been suitable replied / explained in the Annual Report. The Company is pursuing towards the regime of
unqualified financial statements.

TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

No specific training programmes were arranged for Board members. However, at the Board / Committee meetings, detailed
presentations are made by senior executives/ professionals/ consultants an business related issues, risk assessment, strategy effect of
regulatory changes etc.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has not yet established a Whistle Blower Policy forthe employees. Nonetheless, no employee has been denied access to
the Audit Committee.

FEETO STATUTORY AUDITORS

The fee paid / payable to the Statutory Auditors for the year was Rs. 0.6 million (previous year Rs. 0.3 million), plus Rs. 0.15 million
(previous year Rs. Nil) as fee for review of half yearly accounts.

i
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 619(4)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 ON THE ACCOUNTS OF ONGC VIDESH LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2007 AND MANAGEMENT REPLY

The preparation of financial statements of ONGC Videsh Limited for the year ended 31* March 2007 In accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956 is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The statutory auditor appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 613(2) of the Cempanies Act, 1956 is responsible for expressing opinion on these
financial statements under section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 based on the independent audit in accordance with the auditing and
assurance standards prescribed by their professional body, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This is stated to have been done by
them vide their Audit Reports dated: 21* June, 2007.

|, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have conducted a supplementary audit under section 619(3)(b) of the Companies Act,
1956 of the financial statements of the ONGC Videsh Limited for the year ended 31.03.2007. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independertly without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to the inquiries of the statutory auditor and
company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight
the following significant matters under section 619(4) of the Companies Act, 1956 which have come to my attention and which in my view are
hecessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related Audit Report.

Comment on Profiiabllity
Exploratory Wells in progress (Schedule 6) Rs. 3,610.71 Million

This includes Rs. 87.38 Million in respect of well'Shwe Phyu-4/4A' of Block A-1, Myanmar which after drilling was treated as 'abandoned' dueto
Casing failure and was, therefore, required to be written off as per the Accounting Policy No. 2.3.1 of the GCompany.

Non-writing off of the well has resulted in the overstatement of “Exploratery wells in progress™ and profit of the Company by Rs. 87.38 Million.

For and on the behalt of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

8d/-
Date : 6" August, 2007 (Saroj Punhani)
Place: New Delhi Principal Director of Commercial Audit &

Ex-officio Member, Audit Board-ll, New Delhi

o

New Delhi, (R. S. Sharma)
23" August, 2007 Chairman

Management Reply

Accounting adjustments in respect of the comment will be carried out in 2007-08.
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Members,

ONGG Videsh Limited,
601 “Kailash”,

26, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
New Delhi-11000

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have examined the compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance by ONGC Videsh Ltd. (non-listed public sector enterprise) for
the yearended 31" March, 2007 as stipulated in 0.M. No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 22™ June, 2007 of the Ministry of Heavy Industries and
Public Enterprises, Department of Public enterprises.

The compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us by the managsment, we certify that, except
the composition of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee with regard to independent Directors, the Company has complied with
the guidelines on Corporate Govemnance as stipulated in the OM mentioned above. Further, as informed to us, the company has initiated
steps in regard to modifying the terms of reference of Audit Committee as per Guidelines; implementation of measures for risk
management and review of compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For A.N. Kukreja and Co.
Company Secretaries

(A.N. Kukreja)

New Delhi Proprietor
10" September, 2007 CP 2318
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To,

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

The Board of Directors,
ONGC Videsh Limited,
601 "Kailash”,

26, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
New Delhi-110001

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2007.

We have examined the registers, records and documents of ONGC Videsh Ltd. (the Company) as required to be maintained under the Companies
Act, 1956 (the Act) and the rules made there under, and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Gompany forthe finangial year ended
on31"March, 2007 (financial year). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Company, we report that
inrespect of the aforesaid financial year:

1.
2.

10.

1.

12.

13.

The Companyis 2 “Govemnment Company” as defined in Section 617 of the Act. ltis an unlisted public company.

The Company has kept and maintained all registers as required to be maintained under the provisions of the Act and the rules made there
under and all entries have been duly recorded.

The Company has duly filed the requisite forms and returns with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana, under the Act
and the rules made there under.

The Board of Directors duly met 9 times in respect of which meetings, proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly
recorded and signed in the minutes book maintained for the purpose.

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee as required under Section 292A of the Act. The Audit Committee met 2 times in respect of
which meetings notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the minutes book maintained for the
purpose.

The Directors have disclosed their interest in other firms/companies to the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and
the rules made thereunder.

The Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2006 was held on 18" September, 20086.
The resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in minutes book maintained for the purpose.

Two extraordinary general meetings were held during the financial year after giving due notice to the members of the Company and the
resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in the minutes book maintained for the purpose.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and the appointments of Directors including Managing Director and whole
time Directors have been duly made in accordance with the provisions of Articles of Association of the Company read with relevant
provisions of the Act.

The Company has altered the provisions of Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association with respect to increase of
authorised share capital from Rs. 500 crores to Rs. 1,000 crores by creation of 5,00,00,000 shares of Rs. 100 each during the year
under reportand amendments thereof have been duly filed with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana.

The Company made right issue of 7,00,00,000 shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid raising the paid up capital from Rs. 300 crores to
Rs.1,000 crores during the financial year and complied with the provisions of the Act.

The Company has:
2) duly complied with requirements of Section 217 of the Act.

b) made application under Section 212(8) of the Act tothe Gentral Government seeking exemption from provisions of Section 212 ofthe
Act in relation to its subsidiary companies. The approval/directions of the Geniral Government under Section 212(8) of the Act
are awaited.

The Company has not received any money as security from any of its employees during the financial year as envisaged under Section
417 of the Act.
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14.  The Company has notinvited/accepted any deposits falling within the purview of Section 58A of the Act during the financial year.
15.  The Company has complied with the provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder in regard to investment of funds including
inter-corporate loans, guarantees and investments.
16.  The Company has not made any secured borrowings during the financial year ended on 31*March, 2007.
17.  The Company was notrequired to appoint Cost Auditor under Section 233B of the Act.
18.  The Company has deposited both employees' and employer's contribution with the ONGC Employees Contributory Provident Fund Trust
within the prescribed time pursuant to section 418 of the Act.
19.  The Company being a “Govemment Gompany” is exempt from the provisions of Section 295 of the Act. An amount of Rs. 0.98 million
on accounts of loans/advances was, however, outstanding from the whole ime Directors atthe end of financial year.
20.  There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company and no fines or penalties or any other
punishment was imposed on the Company, its Dirgctors and Officers during the financial year for offences underthe Act.
For A. N. Kukreja & Co.
Company Secreiaries
{A.N. Kukreja)
New Delhi Proprietar

10" July, 2007 CP 2318
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AUDITORS' REPORT

The Members

ONGC Videsh Limited,

601 "Kailash”,

26, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
New Delhi-110001

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of ONGC VIDESH LIMITED, New Delhi as at 31 March, 2007, the Profit & Loss Account and
the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended as on 31% March, 2007, annexed thereto. These financial Statements are the responsibility of
the company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

1.

31

3.2

4.1

42

4.3

44

45

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003, as amended by Companies (Auditer's Report) (Amendment) Order,
2004 issued by the Ceniral Government in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraph 4 and 5 of the said Order to the extent applicable to the Company, is annexed.

Categorization of expenditure on project in Development & Exploratory Wells in Progress, Producing Properties, and Capital Work in
Progress, allocation of cost incurred on them, depletion of producing properties on the basis of proved developed hydrocarbon
reserve, provision for abandonment cost and impairment, allocation of depreciation on fixed assets (including support equipment
and facilities) are made according to evaluation by the management, techni¢al and/or otherwise on which, we have plaged reliance.

Further to our comments in the Annexure refarred io in paragraph 1 above, we repori as follows:

That the incorporation of Company's share of Assels, Liabilities and Expenses in the Joint Ventures is based on unaudited
financial siatements as provided by the respeclive operators of Joint Venturas, except in case of Farsi Block (Iran), Sudan
Pipalins, Block A-1 (Myanmar), Block A-3 (Myanmar), Block 5A (Sudan) and Block 5B (Sudan) which are audited as par the
respaclive joint operating agreemanis (Refer Note No. 3 of the Schedule-26).

Attention is invited to Note No. 17(ji) of Schedule-26 regarding expense hsad-wise details as required by Schedule Vi to the
Companies Act, 1956.

We have cobtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary, for the
purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination
of the books.

The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with this by report are in agreement with the books
of accounts.

In our opinion and based on the information given to us, the Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement
referred to in this report comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section {3C) of Section 211 of the Companies
Act, 1956.

Based on the written representation made by all the Directors of the GCompany which was taken on record by the Board of Diractors
of the Company and the information and explanations as made available, none of the Directors of the Company is disqualified
as on 31* March, 2007 from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956.
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4.6  Subject o above and other comments in Para 1 and Para 3 above, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, said Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement read together
with significant accounting policies and notes to accounts as required by the Companies Act, 1956 give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(8  Inthe case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2007; and
(b}  Inthe case of Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c)  Inthe case of Cash Flow Statement for the cash flow of the Company for the year ended on that date.

For BATRA SAPRA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(K. 5. KAMATH)
New Delhl Partner

21" June, 2007 M. No. 44492
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1)

2)

3)

4

5)

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

{Referred to In Paragraph 1 of our report of even date of ONGC Videsh Limied, New Delhl as at 31" March, 2007)

In respect of fixed assets:

a) The company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, in¢luding quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets in India and in respect of ventures outside India, except fixed assets of non-operated Joint Ventures
situated outside India in respect of which the details are maintained as per the information made available by the
respective operators.

b) The management has carried out the physical verification of fixed assets situated in India and operated ventures outside India
during the year. Periodic physical verification of fixed assets is being carried out by the operators of the respective non-operated
Joint Ventures which appears to be reasonable. According to the information and explanation given to us, the reconciliation of the
physically verified assets with the book records is in progress. Discrepancies noticed on physical verification and consequential
adjustment with regard to discrepancies will be carried out on completion of reconciliation. As per the information and
explanations givento us, the same is not material.

¢)  Inouropinion, and according to information and explanations given to us, a substantial part of fixed assets has not been disposed
of by the company during the year and thus going concern status of company is not affected.

Inrespect of its inventories:

a)  The company does not have any inventory in India. Physical verification of inventory has been performed by the management in
respect of the operated Joint Venture (Farsi Project, Iran). According to the information and explanation given to us,
no discrepancy was observed on such physical verification. In our opinion, the physical verification has been carried out by the
management at reasonable intervals in respect of operated Joint Venture {Farsi Project, Iran). The inventory held by the company
representing company's share of participating interest in joint ventures outside India is incorporated in the boaks of accounts on
the basis of information provided by respective operator. However, Physical verification of such inventory has been performad by
the operators of the respective non-operated projects.

b)  In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management in respect of operated Joint
Venture (Farsi Project, Iran) are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.
However, Physical verification of the inventory in respect of non-operated projects has been performed by the operators of the
respective non-operated projects.

c) The Company is generally maintaining proper records of inventory. According to the information and explanation given
to us, no discrepancy was observed on physical verification of inventory performed by the management in respect of operated
Joint Venture (Farsi Project, Iran). However, the inventory held by the company representing company's share of participating
interest in joint ventures outside India is incorporated in the books of accounts on the basis of information provided by
respective operator.

According to the information and explanations givento us in respect of loans:

a} The company has not granted any loan secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Hence the provisions of clause {jii) (b), {c} and (d) of the paragraph
4 ofthe order as amended are not applicable to the company.

b)  The company has not taken any loan secured or unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Hence the provisions of clause §ii) (f) and (g) of the paragraph 4 of the
Order; as amended, are not applicable to the company. The loans taken from Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited, the 100%
holding company, is not covered under the provisions of this clause.

According to information and explanation given to us, the internal control system in respect of inventory and fixed assets purchased by
the company forthe operated ventures outside India is commensurate with nature and size of its business. Certain sales are made by the
parent company through proper procedure laid down by the company. Based on information and xplanation given to us, the company's
internal control system with respect to purchase of inventory and fixed assets and sales is commensurate with nature and size of its
business. However, all purchases of fixed assets and inventory in respect of the non-operated Joint Ventures are made outside India by
the respective operators. Since it is not practically viable or appropriate to check the internal control system being prevalent in respective
project sites, we are unable to comment on the adequacy of suchinternal control system with respect to nature and size of business.

a)  According to information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions during the year, which are required to be entered
inthe register maintained in pursuance of Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

b)  Accordingly the provisions of the clause v (b) of paragraph 4 of the order (as amended) are not applicable to the company.
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6) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Consequently, the provisions of Section 58A, 58AA or any other relevant
provision of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 are not applicable to the company.

7 As per the information and explanation provided to us, though the company has a system of internal audit, carried out through an
outside agency for its corporate office which is commensurate with the size of and nature of its business, the system needs to be
further strengthened.

8) The company has not maintained cost records as prescribed by the Gentral Government under clause (d} of sub section (1) of Section
209 of the Companies Act, 1956. We are informed that the company has applied for exemption from applicability of the relevant
provisions to the Department of Company Affairs, since the operations of the company are in joint ventures overseas, the operators of
which are not required to maintain and provide to the company the records that are required to be maintained under the aforesaid
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as per respective agreements governing such joint ventures.

9) a)  Providentfund contributions are transferred by the company to its parent company, ONGC. ONGC is responsible for depositing the
same with appropriate authority. According to information given to us, there are no undisputed statutory dues pending as on last
day cf current financial year.

b)  Asperinformation and explanation provided to us, no dues of income tax/ sales tax/ wealth tax/ custom duty/ excise duty/ cess are
pending on account of any dispute.

10)  The company has no accumulated losses atthe end of the current financial year and has not incurred cash losses during the current and
inthe immediately preceding financial year.

11)  Aspertheinformation and explanation given by the management, we are of the opinion that company has not defaulted inthe repayment
of dues to anyfinancial institution, banks and debenture holders.

12)  According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not given any loans and advances on the basis of security by
way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities and accordingly paragraph 4 (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

13)  In our opinion, the company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ society. Therefore, clause 4 (i) of the Order is not
applicable.

14)  The company is not dealing in or frading in shares, securities, debentures and cther instruments. Therefore, the provisions of the clause
(xiv) of paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable.

18)  According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not given any guarantee for loan taken by others from bank and
financial institutions.

16)  According to information and explanation given to us, term loans were broadly applied by the company for the purpose for which loans
were obtained.

17)  Acconding to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of books of accounts and other records, funds
raised on shortterm basis have, primafacie, not been used during the year for long term investment.

18)  Weare informed that the company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to companies, firms or other parties covered inthe
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

19)  Company has not issued any debentures during the year; hence the question of securities to be created for debentures issued does
notarise.

20)  Thecompany has notraised any money by way of public issue during the year.

21)  According to information and explanation given to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief, no fraud on or by the company was
noticed or reported during the year.

For BATRA SAPRA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(K.S. KAMATH)

Now Delhi Partner

21" June, 2007 M. No. 44492
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH, 2007

SOURCES OF FUNDS

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (Refer Note 12 of Schedule 26}
LIABILITY FOR ABANDONMENT COST

TOTAL

APPLIGATION OF FUNDS

FIXED ASSETS

Gross Block

Less: Depreciation

Net Block

PRODUGING PROPERTIES (NET)
DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATORY WELLS IN PROGRESS
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
INVESTMENT

GURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANGES
Imterest Accrued

Inventories

Sundry Debtors

Cash and Bank Balances

Loans and Advances

LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities
Provisions

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Accounis

(Jagdish Prasad) (D. K. Sarraf)
Company Secretary Director (Finance)
New Delhl

217 June, 2007

2 =~ on on

10
1
12
13

14
15

(Rupsees in million)

As at As at
31" March, 31" March,
2007 2006
10,000.00 3,000.00
21,993.47 11,008.23
31,993.47 14,098.23
- 4418
132,347.57 156,349.50
132,347 57 156,393.68
B,702.86 4,391.42
4,503.49 2,518.82
175,547.39 177,402.15
60,006.70 15,026.16
10,968.47 5,466.75
49,038.23 9,559.41
31,818.00 21,672.50
5,386.60 8,181.58
11,218.66 4354491
51,149.40 29,891.07
11.66 660.33
1,937.67 651.26
5,408.40 1,827.06
4,066.91 1,642.47
21,739.82 66,995.68
33,164.46 71,776.80
6,156.54 7,186.80
71.42 37.32
6,227.96 7,224.12
26,936.50 64,552.68
175,547.39 177,402.15
(R. S. Butola) (R. S. Sharma)
Managing Diractor Chalrman

As per our report of even date attached
For BATRA SAPRA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

(K. 5. KAMATH)
Partner (M. No.44492)



PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2007

INCOME

Sales
Other Income
Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks

EXPENDITURE

Production, Transportaticn, Selling and Distribution Expenditure
Deprecigtion, Depletion and Amorfisation

Financing Costs

Provislons and Write-Offs (Net)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Adjustments relating to Prior Period (Net)
Provislon for Taxation

Current Year Tax

Deferred Tax

Fringe Benefit Tax

Wealth Tax

Earlier Years Tax

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

Add: Profit brought forward from last year
Balange Available for Appropriation
Transier to General Reserve

Balance Carried to Balance Sheel

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Schedules referrad to above form an integral part of the Accounts

(Jagdish Prasad) (D. K. Sarraf)
Company Secratary Director (Finance)
New Delhl

21" June, 2007

(Rupaes In million)

Schadule 2006-07 2005-06
16 28,634.54 11,945.94
17 2,760.30 8,897.35
18 396.57 14.42

31,791.81 20,851.11
19 9,038.85 7,157.85
20 10,530.38 490563
21 (1,864.40) (1,253.65)
22 1,350.22 378.40
19,066.05 11,18%.23
12,736.76 9,668.48
23 (1,668.29) 1,123.16
1,539.42 556.53
2,311.43 1,583.07
15.08 8.40
13.55 13.55
0.00 (110.73}
10,525.56 6,494.50
9,675.34 3,830.29
20,200.90 10,324.79
1,052.55 649.45
19,148.35 9,675.34
20,200.90 10,324.79
25
26
(R. 5. Butola) (R. 5. Sharma)
Managing Diractor Chalrman

As per our report of even date attached
For BATRA SAPRA & COMPANY
Charlered Accountants

(K. S. KAMATH)
Partner (M. No.44492)
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SCHEDULE-1

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
100,000,000 (Previous year 50,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100 each

Issued, Subscribed, Called and Paid Up

100,000,000 (Previous year 30,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100 each
fully pald up In cash (The entlre share capital Is held by Oll and Natural Gas
Gorporation Limited and its nominegs)

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-2

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve

Goneral Reserve

Opening balance

Less: Adjustment for Employess Benefits
Add:Transfer from Profit and Loss Account
Forelgn Exchange Translation Reserve
Profit and Loss Account

Opening Balance

Add: Addition during the year

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-3

LOANS

SECURED LOANS

Overdraft from Bank
(Secured by Fixed Deposits with Bank}

UNSECURED LOANS

Long Term

Indian Rupee Loans

From Oil Industry Development Board

(Guaranteed by Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited)
From Qil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited

Forelgn Currency Loans

Non- Recourse Deferred Gredit

(In respect of Joint Verrture)

TOTAL

Repayable within one year

1,248.81
13.42

1,052.55

9,675.34

9,473.01

As al
31* March,
2007

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

As at
31* March,
2007

174.08
2,267.94
383.10

19,148.35

21,993.47

As at
31* March,
2007

0.00
130,941.59
1,405.98

132,347.57

240.80

{Rupeas in million)

As at
31° March,
2006

5,000.00

3,000.00

{Rupeas in million)

As at
31° March,
2006
174.08
599.36
0.00
649.45 1,248.81
0.00
3,830.29
5,845.05 9,675.34
11,098.23

{Rupees In million})

As at
31" March,
2006

4418

61.25
154,769.53
1,518.72

156,393.68
296.68



Transfer from Development & Exploratory Wells-in-Progress

SCHEDULE-4
FIXED ASSETS
PARTICULARS
Asal
1* April,
2006
Land {Leasehold) 1,354.16
Building 569.41
Plant & Machinery 12,862.16
Computars 6250
Vehiclos 126.58
Furniture & Fitings and 50.80
Equipments
15,025.1
Intanglblss - Sotiware 0.45
TOTAL 15,026.18
Previous year 7,715.68
The above Includes the = 13,637.42
Company's Share In
Joint Venture Assels
Previous year 5,390.08
SCHEDULE-5
PRODUGING PROPERTIES
Gross Cost
Opening Balance
Acquisition Cost
Expenditure during the year
Estimatad Abandonment Costs
Toial Gross (A)

Less: Depletion
Opening Balance
Depletion for the year
Toial Depletion (B)

BROSS BLOCK
Additions Deletions/
during the = adjusiments
yoar during the
year
0.00 0.00
1,287.68 0.00
40,117.12 48,35
18.90 356
25.87 .00
3,481.13 1.82
45,030.70 57.13
757 0.00
45,038.27 57.13
1,262.76 12.28
45,034.19 57.09
7,258.92 1158

NET PRODUCING PROPERTIES (A - B)

Asal
ar
March,
2007
1,364.16

1,067.0¢
62,929.93
T1.04
149.45
3,530.1

59,993.68

8.02
§0,006.70
15,026.18
58,614.52

13,637.42

Upto
31" March,
2006
0.00
1837
5,346.37
40.20
4236
19.23

5.466.53

022
5,466.75
4,070.05
5,448.95

4,056.87

DEPRECIATION

For Deletlons/ Upto
the Adjugtments 3
yoar during the March,
yoar 2007
0.00 0.00 0.00
62.62 0.00 80.99
5249.18 033 10,696.22
11.88 207 §0.01
18.56 225 58.67
157.74 127 175.70
5,400.93 5.92 10.960.59
7.66 0.00 7.8
5,507.64 5.92 10,963.47
1,402.74 6.04 B.A466.70
5,502.95 5.41 10,946.49
1,387.52 5.44 5,448.95

As at

31" March,

2007

24,176.68

2,333.77

1,984.32

8,787.41

1,984.67

39,266.85

2,504.18

4,944.67

7,448.85

31,818.00

(Rupees In milllon)
NET BLOCK

Asal Asat
8 31
March, March,
2007 | 2006
1.364.16 1,354.18
187610 | 55104
23N | 751579
78 | 22.30
078 | 84.22
335451 | 3167
490300 | 955018
014 0.23
49,038.23 9,559.41
9,559.41 3,705.63
47,668.03 8,188.47
8,188.47 2,333.21

(Rupees In milllon})

As al

31" March,

2006

6,109.89

11,495.52

44214

3,610.31

2,518.82

24,176.68

901.00

1,603.18

2504.18

21,672.50
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SCHEDULE-6
As at
31* March,
2007
DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATORY WELLS IN PROGRESS
A. Development Wells in Progress
Cpening Balance 5,719.68
Addition during the year B,758.65
Adjustments during the year (2,220.27)
Less: Transfer to Producing Properties 7,482.17
Davelopment Wells In Pragress (A) 1,775.89
B. Exploratory Wells in Progress
Opening Balance 2,461.90
Addition during the year 3.330.63
Adjustments during the year (0.63)
Wells written back during the year 1,353.69
Less: Transfer to Producing Properties 1,305.23
Less: Wells written off during the year 94235
Less: Provision for Wells drilled under Service Comract 1,287.30
Exploratory Wells In Progress (B) 3.610.11
DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATORY WELLS IN PROGRESS (A-+B) 5,386.60
SCHEDULE-7
As al
31* March,
2007
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Bleck 06.1, Vietnam 1,412.50
Block 127, Vietnam 9254
Block 128, Vietnam 892.54
Sakhalin-1 Project, Russia 7.403.75
Block-XXV, Syria 19.81
Block 5A, Sudan n.0d
Bleck 5B, Sudan 1,046.95
Block 6, North Ramadan, Egypt 31.76
Block A1, Myanmar 32.46
Block A3, Myanmar J8.38
Block 81/1, Libya 268.92
Najwat Najem Oil Structure, Qatar 327.75
Block 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 36 and 35 (Part}, Cuba 346.91
Others 103.89
TOTAL _11,218.66

{Rupees in million)

As at
31" March,
2006

3,019.93
3,296.67
3,013.39
_ 361031
5,719.68

1,284.75
1,576.84
815.67
0.00
0.00
1,215.36
0.00
2,461.90

8,181.58

{Rupess in million)

As at
31" March,
2006

223.63
0.00
0.00

36,307.15
19.81
5,294.38
1,046.95
31.76
0.00
24,56

268.92

327.75
0.00
0.00

43,544.91



SCHEDULE-8

INVESTMENTS

Long Term Investments (Fully Paid Up)
Trade Investments in Shares Unquoted
in Wholly Owned Subsidiaries:

ONGC Nile Ganga BY

40 Class 'A' & 100 Class 'B' {Previous year 40 Class 'A' & 100 Class B')

Shargs of Euro 453.78 Each
ONGC Narmada Limited

20,000,000 (Previous year 20,000,000) Shares of Nigerian Naira 1 Each

ONGC Bonny Brahmaputra Limited

NIl (Previous year 20,000,000) Shares of Nigerian Nalra 1 Each

ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited

12,000 (Previous year NIl Equity Shares of USD 1 Each
437,488,000 (Previous year Nil} Preference Shares of USD 1 Each

in Jointfy Controlfed Entity:

ONGC Mittal Energy Limited
24,010,000 Shares of USD 1 each (Previous year
500 Shares of Cyprus Pound 1 each)

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-9

INTEREST ACCRUED

(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)

Interest Aceruad On
Deposits with Banks
Carry Finance
Others

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-10

INVENTORIES
(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)

Finished Goods

Stores and Spares

Lass: Provision for Non-moving Stores
(In respact of Joint Verture)

Stores & Spares - Farsi Block, Iran
Lass: Written-off to Net Realisabla Valug

TOTAL

As at
31" March,
2007

29,871.14

6.94
0.0
0.56
20,190.07

1,074.68

91,148.40

As at
31" March,
2007

0.78
0.00
10.88

11.66

As at
31" March,
2007

410.19
1,523.84

0.88 1,522.96

53 452
1,937.67

e
ST
L

. o i

A
A _'1'. .4
W L

(Rupees In milllon}

As at
31" March,
2006

20,877.14

6.94
6.94

0.00
0.00

0.05

29,891.07

(Rupees in million}

As at
31" March,
2006

0.88
651.17
8.28

(Rupees In milllon)

As at
31" March,
2006

33.63
569.95

151 568.44

49.19

0.00 49.19

691.26
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SCHEDULE-11

SUNDRY DEBTORS

(Unsecured)

Debts gutstanding for a period exceeding six months:
Considered Good
Considerad Doubtful

Other Debis:

Considered Good
Considered Doubtful

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-12

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

A. Cash Balances

a)

At New Delhi

B. Balances with Scheduled Banks

a)
b)

On Current Account
On Deposit Accounts

C. Balances with Non-Schedulad Banks

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

h)

On SB Account (USD) with Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam, HCMC,Vietnam
(Maximum balance during the year RS.756.34 Million Previous year Rs. 590.75 Million)
On SB Account (VND) with Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam, HCMC, Vietnam
(Maximum balance during the year RS.752.01 Million Previous year Rs. 593.03 Million)
On Current Accounts (USD) with Citl Bank, HCMC, Vietnam

{Maximum balance during the year RS.0.78 Million Previous year Rs.3.6% Million}

0On Gurrent Account (VND) with Giti Bank, HGMC, Vigtnam

(Maximum balance during the year Rs.95.66 Million Previous year Rs. 81.67 Million)
On Gurrent Account with Bank of Moscow, Sakhalin

{Maximum balance during the year Rs.0.22 Million Previous year Rs. 0.71 Million)

On Deposit Account (VND) with Citi Bank, HCMC, Vietnam

(Maximum balance during the year Rs.90.11 Million Previous year Rs.44.86 Million)

On Current Account (USD) with ABN Amre Bank, Sakhalin

(Maximum balance during the year Rs 931.22 Million Previous year Rs 1215.18 Million)
On Gurrent Account (RBL) with ABN Amro Bank, Sakhalin

{Maximum balanca during the year Rs 11.13 Million Previous year Rs 0.27 Million)

On Current Account (USD) with Bank of Commerce and Development, Libya
{Maximum balance during the year Rs 2.82 Million Previous year Rs 5.08 Million)

0On Gurrent Account (LD) with Bank of Commerce and Developmant, Libya

{Maximum balance during the year Rs.2.22 Million Previous year Rs.2.23 Millian)

On Current Account (QAR) with HSBC Bank, Qatar

(Maximum balance during the year Rs.5.56 Million Previous year Nil)

On Gurrent Account (USD) with Banco Fincerio Internacionle SA, Cuba

(Maximum balance during the year Rs.1.59 Million Previous year Nil)

D. Cash and Bank Balances
(In respect of Joint Venture)

TOTAL

(Rupess in million)

As at As at

31" March, 31° March,
2007 2006

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
5,408.40 1,827.06
0.00 0.00
5,408.40 1,827.06

(Rupees In milllan)

art M::n:f n M:rsnllif
2007 2006
0.12 0.08
467.64 142,89
1,848.75 61.00
0.04 0.03
0.02 0.14
0.06 044
0.29 0.30
0.00 022
0.00 42,06
81.18 §0.89
0.1D 015
1.35 1.94
0.24 222
0.50 0.00
1.30 0.00
1,565.32 1,310.11
4,066.91 1,642.47




SCHEDULE-13

LOANS AND ADVANCES

A. Secured - Considered Good
Loans and Advances to Employees

B. Unsecured - Considered Good

Carry Finance to SMNG-S, Russia

Carry Finance to RN ASTRA, Russla

Carry Finance to Sudapet, Sudan

Loans and Advances to Employees

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Receivable from ONGC Nilg Ganga BV (Subsidiary Company)

Advance against share capital to ONGC Mittal Energy Limited

Advance against share capital to ONGC Nile Ganga BV (Subsidiary Company)
Loan to ONGC Narmada Limited (Subsidiary Company)

Other Deposits
VAT Receivable
Investment in Lease

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for valug to be received

(In respect of Joint Venture)

Taxes (Income Tax, Wealth Tax and Fringe Benefit Tax) :
Advance Payment of Income Tax

Less: Provision

Unsecured - Considered Good (B)

C. Unsecured - Conslderad Doubtiul
Carry Finance to Sudapet, Sudan

Loan te il India Limited

Less: Provisions for Doubtful Loans and Advances
Unsecured - Considered Doubiful (C)

LOANS AND ADVANCES (A-+B+C)

SCHEDULE-14

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Creditors for Supplies/ Works

Small Scale Undertakings

Other than Small Scale Undertakings

Deposlis
Advance from Customers

Payable to 0il and Natural Gas Gorporation Limited

Other Liabliities

Amount Payable to Operators
Deferred Credit on Gas Sales
Sundry Creditors for Supplies/ Works

(In respect of Joint Venture)

TOTAL

(Rupees in million)

Asat As at

31" March, 31" March,

2007 2006
28.86 26.05
0.00 30,917.66
0.00 22,834.75
1,083.65 912.96
14.25 743
138.22 69.29
731.79 214.01
1,908.65 446,55
5,106.64 0.00
749.06 0.00
2.05 1.44
257.33 83.13
6,573.59 7.446.57
1,877.40 291190

4,994.13 1,271.98

1,725.80 3,268.33 148.04 1,123.94
21,710.96 66,969.63
78.27 21.35
0.00 372.16
78.27 393.51
78.27 383.51
0.00 0.0
21,739.82 66,995.68

(Rupeas in million)

As at As al

31" March, 31" March,

2007 2006

0.00 0.00

975.98 459.42

037 0.85

66.14 54.96

55.72 131.31

859.92 776.96

81.72 368.24

0.00 092

4,116.69 5,394.14

6,156.54 7,186.80
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SCHEDULE-15

PROVISIONS

Gratuity
Leave Encashment

Post Retirement Medical Benefits/Other Terminal Benefits

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-16

SALES

Crude Qil
Gas
Condensate

Construction Contract Revenue

TOTAL

SCGHEDULE-17

OTHER INCOME

Income from Dividend from Subsidlary

Interest Income on:
On Deposits with Banks

Balance as at
1* April, 2006

19.18
18.14
0.00

37.32

(Tax deducted at source Rs. 0.16 Million previous year Rs. 0.78 Million)

Garry Finance

Loans and Advances to Employees

Others
Lease Income

Profit on sale of Investment In Subsidlary

Miscoellaneous Receipis

TOTAL

Provision made UWilisation during
for previous the year
years ont of

General Reserve

0.00 177
0.00 4.30
13.42 0.00

13.42 6.07

2006-07

18,789.87
8,004.31
1,840.76

0.00

28,634.94

2006-07

0.00
295.14

1,493.42
1.30
48.41
435.14
0.46

{Rupeas in million})

Provision made Balance as ai
fortheyear 31" March,

2007

118 2460
15.57 2941
3.99 17.41
26.75 71.42

{Rupees in million)
2005-06

1,799.25
6,507.38
1,465.78
2,173.53

11,945.94

{Rupees In million})
2005-06

5112.09
51.81

2.872.11
1.32
18.11
271.26
0.00
569.65

8,897.35



SCHEDULE-18

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN STOCK (FINISHED GOODS)

Closing Stock
Qpening Stock
Less: Adjustment

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE} IN STOCK

SCHEDULE-19

PRODUCTION, TRANSPORTATION, SELLING AND
DISTRIBUTION EXPENDITURE

Transportation Expenditure
Production Expenditurg
Royafty

Value Added Tax

Service Tax and Other Levies
Pipeline Construction Expenses
Staff Expenditure

Rent

Repair & Maintenance
Insurance

Others

TOTAL

Note: The above expenses have been reclassified in accordance with Part Il of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 and exhibited in Note -17 of Schedule ‘26",

2006-07

410.19
33.63

20.01 13.62

396.57

2006-07

2,662.86
3,122.28
1,356.87
1,063.02
315.72
0.00
206.86
B.83
11.35
42.86
248.20

(Rupees in million)

2005-06
33.63

19.21
— 8.4
14.42

(Rupees in millign)
2005-06

1,825.35
1,025.89
141.29
927.24
9.24
2,699.29
224.05
17.30
9.20
49.79
2921

7,157.85
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SCHEDULE-20

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND AMORTISATION

Depreciation Others
Amortisation - Intangibles
Less: Capitalised

Depletion

Survey Expenditure

Dry Wells Written Off
Acquisition Cost Written Off
Pre-Acquisition Expenses

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-21

FINANCING COSTS

A. Interest On
Loan fram Oil Industry Development Board
Loan from Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited
Less: Capitalised
Finance Lease
Others
Sub-Total

B. Exchange Fluctuation
Net Exchange Variation for the Year
Less: Capitalised

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-22

PROVISIONS AND WRITE-OFFS (NET)

Provisions for Doubtful Debts

Other Write Off

Provision for Wells drilled under Service Contract
Excess Provisions Written Back

TOTAL

2006-07

5,409.98
7.66
3,440.69 2,066.95
4,944.67
1,784.52
942.35
0.00
791.89

10,530.38

2006-07

0.21

147.39
2.67 144.72
0.00
0.57
145.50

(2,021.19)
{11.29) (2,009.90)

(1,864.40)

2006-07

56.92
378.79
1,287.30
(372.79)

1,350.22

{Rupees in million)
2005-06

1,402.55
0.19

1,192.30 210.44

1,603.18
730.09
1,215.36
21.44
1,125.12

4,905.63

{Rupees in million)
2005-06

471

0.00
3.80
0.38
8.89

(1,267.87)

(5.33) (1,262.54)

(1,253.65)

{Rupees In million})
2005-06

380.57
0.07
0.00

(1.24)

379.40

Mode: The above expenses have been reclassified in accordance with Part Il of Schedule V1 to the Companies Act, 1956 and exhibited in Note -17 of Schedule '26'.



SCHEDULE-23

(Rupees in million)

2008-07 2005-06

ADJUSTMENTS RELATING TO PRIOR PERIOD (NET)
A. Expense

Survey Expenses (334.76) 669.53

Dry Wells Expenses (1353.69) 414,08

Other Expenses 20.16 46.72
Sub-Total (1668.29) 1130.33
B. Income

Miscellaneous Items 0.00 717
Sub-Total 0.00 117
TOTAL (A - B) (1668.29) 1123.16

SCHEDULE-24

(Amount In Rupees)

As at As at
31" March, 31" March,
2007 2006
EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE
Baslc and Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share 142.03 216.48

(Per Share of Rs. 100 each)

Mata: Eamings Per Equity Share has been computed by dividing the net profit after taxation of Rs.10,525.56 Million (Previous Year Rs.6,494.50 Million) by weighted
average numberof equity shares of 74,109,581 (Previous year 30,000,000).

bl
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SCHEDULE -25

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

2.1

2.2

2.3
231

232

233

24

2.5

3.2

5.1
5.2

Accounting Conventions:

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost conventions in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). The company follows Successful Efforts Methed as perthe Guidance Note on Accounting for Oil and Gas Producing
Activities issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Generally, revenues
are recognized on accrual basis with provision made for known losses and expenses.

Acquisition, Exploration, Development, Abandonment and Production Costs:

Acquisition Cost:

Acquisition costs of an oil and gas property in exploration/development stage is taken to capital work in progress. Such costs are
capitalized by transferring to Producing Property when itis ready to commence commercial production, In case of abandonment of the
property, such costs are expensed. Acquisition ¢osts of a producing oil and gas property are capitalized as Producing Property.

Survey Costs:
Cost of Surveys and prospecting activities conducted in the search of oil and gas are expensed in the yearin which these are ingurred.
Exploratory/Development Wells in Progress Cosls:

Exploration costs involved in drilling and equipping exploratory and appraisal wells, cost of drilling exploratory type stratagraphic test
wells are initially taken to capital work in progress as exploratory wells in progress till the time these are either capitalized to producing
properties when ready to commence commercial production or expensed in the year when determined to be dry or of no further use, as
the case may be.

All costs relating to development wells, development fype siratagraphic test wells, service wells, are initially taken to capital work in
progress as development wells in progress and capitalized to producing properties when ready to commence commercial production.

Exploratory wells in progress which are more than two years old from the date of completion of drilling are charged to Profit and Loss Account
except those wells which have proved reserves and the development of the fields in whigh the wells are located has been planned.

Abandonment Costs:

Costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring well sites and allied facilities are provided as abandonment costs based on the
provisions under respective agreements goveming company's activities in the field/ projects.

Production Costs:

Production costs include pre-wellhead and post-wellhead expenses including depreciation and applicable operating costs of support
equipment and facilities.

Producing Properties:

Producing properties are created in respect of a field/project having proved developed oil and gas reserves when any well in the
field/project is ready to commence commercial production. Development wells are capitalized to producing properties when ready to
commence commercial production.

All acquisition costs, cost of successful exploratory wells and of all development wells, all related development costs including
depreciation on support equipment and facilities and estimated future abandonment costs relating to producing properties are
capitalized as Producing Properties.

Depletion of Producing Properties:

Producing properties are depleted using the “Unit of Production Method™. The raie of depletion for all capitalized costs is computed with
reference to the field/project/amortization base by considering the related proved and developed reserves excepting for acquisition costs
which are depleted by considering the proved reserves. These reserves are estimated annually.

Impairment:

Impairment loss is determined for each field/project and adjusted forin the carrying cost.

At each balance sheet date, an assessment of the recoverable amount based on the value in use method is carried out in respect of each
individual field/project and compared with the carrying amount and if a permanent diminution in value is identified, the asset is impaired
tothe netrecoverable amount. However, provision for impairment being carried forward, is reviewed for write back, if any.
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Joint Ventores:

The Company has entered into overseas joint ventures with others. In such joint ventures as per the contractual arrangements, the
Company shares control with other venturers. The financial statements reflect the share of the Company's assets and liabilities as well as
income and expenditure of Joint Venture Operations which are accounted for as per various joint venture agreements on a line by line
basis along with similar items in the Company's financial statements, except in cases of [eases, abandonment, impairment, depletion and
depreciation which are accounted based on accounting policies of the Company.

The reserves of hydrocarbons in the joint vertures aretakenin proportion to the participating interest of the Company.
Flxed Assets:

Fixed assets (including those taken on finance lease, support equipment and facilities) are stated at historical cost.

All costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets till the time of commissioning of such assets are capitalized.

Costs incurred on intangible assets, resulting in future economic benefits are capitalized as intangible assets and amortized on written
down value method beginning from the date of capitalization.

Dapraciation:

Depreciation on fixed assets (including those taken on finance lease) is provided for under the written down value method in accordance
with Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

Leasehold land is amortized overthe lease period.

Depreciation on adjustments to fixed assets on account of exchange differences and price variation is provided for prospectively over the
remaining useful life of such assets.

Depreciation on fixed assats (including those taken on finance lease, support equipment and facilities) used for exploration and drilling
activities and on facilities is initially capitalized as part of exploration or development costs and expensed/depleted as stated in policy
2 and3 above.

Inventories:

Crude oil and condensate are valued at cost or netrealizable value, whichever is lower.
Natural gas in pipeling and crude oil/condensate stock in flow lines/Gathering Stations are notvalued.
Inventory of stores and spares is valued at Weighted Average Cost or netrealizable value, if available, whichever is lower.

Investmants:

Long-term investments are valued at cost. Provision is made for any diminution, otherthan temporary, in the valug of such investments.
Currentinvestments are valued at lower of cost or fairvalue.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Foreign Operations;

Foreign currency transactions on initial recognition in the reporting currency are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of transaction.

At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the average of the exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date and non-monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date
when the fairvalue of such item was determined.

Losses or gains relating to the loans/deferred credits utilized for acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted to the carrying cost of the relevant
assets. All other exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were nitially recorded during the period, or reported in previous financial statements are recognised as income
Or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

In respect of the Company's integral foreign operations:

(@  Theforeign currency transactions on initial recognition in the reporting currency are recorded following the policy statedin 11.1.
For practical reasons, the average exchange rate of the relevant month is taken for the transactions of the month in respect of
jointventure aperations, where actual date of transaction is not available.

() At each Balance Sheet date, monetary and non-monetary items are translated following the policy stated in 11.2.
(€) Allexchange differences are treated following the policy stated in 11.3.
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The financial statements of the non-integral foreign operations of the company are incorporated in the financial statements using the
following principles:

{a)  theassetsand liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of the non-integral foreign operation are translated at the average of
the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the balance sheet;

() income and expense items of the non-integral foreign operation are translated at the average exchange rates for the period to
which the financial statements relate; and

(© all resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a foreign currency franslation reserve until the disposal of the net
investmentin the non-integral foreign operafion.

Exchange differences arising on the company's net investment in a non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in a foreign currency
translation reserve until the disposal of such investment, atwhich time they are recognized as income or as expenses.

Assets given on Lease:

Assets given on finance lease are accounted for as per Accounting Standard {(AS) 19 “Leases” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India. Such assets are Included as a receivable at an amount equal to the netinvestmentin the lease.

Initial direct costs incurred in respect of finance leases are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such costs
areincurred.

Resvenue Recognition:

Revenue from sale of products is recognized on transfer of custody fo customers. Any difference as of the reporting date between the
entitiement quantity minus the quantities sold in respect of crude oil (including condensate), if positive is treated as inventory and, if
negative, is adjusted to revenue by recording the same as liability.

Sales are inclusive of all statutory levies and any tax liability of the Company that may be paid by the government based on the provisions
under agreements goveming Company's activities in the respective field/ project.

Any payment received in respect of short lifted gas quantity for which an obligation exists to supply such gas in subsequent periods is
recognized as Deferred Revenue in the year of receipt. The same is recognized as revenue in the year in which such gas is actually
supplied for the quantity supplied or in the year in which the obligation to supply such gas ceases, whichever is earlier.

Revenue in respect of fixed price contracts is recognized for the quantum of work done on the basis of percentage of completion method.
The quantum of work done is measured in proportion of cost incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the contract or based on
reports of physical work done.

Finance income in respect of assets given on finance lease is recognized based on a pattem reflecting a constant periodic rate of return
on the netinvestment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

Revenue in respect of interest on delayed realizations is recognized when there is reasonable certainty regarding ultimate collection.
Transporiation Cosls:

Any payment made in respect of the quantity of gas short transported, for which the right exists to transport such gas in subsequent
periods at no charge, is treated as Deferred Expenditure in the year of payment. The same is freated as costin the yearin which the gas is
actually transported for the quantity transported or in the year in which the right to transport such gas ceases, whicheveris earlier.

Employee Benefits:
Confribution to Provident Fund and Composite Social Security Scheme is made as per the rules of the parent company. The same is paid

to funds administered through trusts.

Provisions for gratuity, leave encashment and other employee benefits are made as per actuarial valuation at the end of the financial year.
The same are not funded.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing Costs specifically identified to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of such assat till such
time when all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. A qualifying asset is
one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and
Loss Account.
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SCHEDULE-26

NOTES TO THEACCOUNTS

1. Accounting Policies:

a) During the year, the Company has reflected its accounting policy in respect of costs incurred on intangible assets and the
amortization thereof (Significant Accounting Policy 7.3 of Schedule -25). This has no impact on the results.

b} During the year, the Company has reflected its accounting policy in respect of valuation of stores and spares (Significant
Accounting Policy 9.3 of Schedule -25). This has no impact on the results.

c) During the year, the Company has reflected treaiment in its accounting policies on revenue recognition for;
i) Underlift / overlift quantity of crude oil (including condensate) as of the reporting date {Significant Accounting Policy

13.1 of Schedule -25). This has no impact on the results.

i} Tax Liability of the Company paid by the host government based on the provisions under agreements governing
Company's activities in the respective field/ project (Significant Accounting Policy 13.2 of Schedule -25). This has no
impact onthe results.

d) During the year, the Company has reflected basis of provision for valuation of other employee benefits in its accounting policy for
other employee bengfits (Significant Accounting Policy 15.2 of Schedule -25). An amount of Rs 13.42 Million has been adjusted
against the reserves of the previous year for the provision made during the year in respect of pravious years. The net impact on
the results for the year amounted to Rs 3.9 Million, being provision for the year.

2. Details of Joint Ventures:
The details of Gompany's significant joint ventures as on 31* March, 2007 are as under:

Sr.  Name of the Projact and Company's participating = Other Consorlium Project
No. Couniry of Operation shara (%) Members Status
1. | Block 06.1 Project, 45% British Pefroleum - 35% | The project is under
Vigtnam, Offshore Petrovietnam - 20% production.
2. | Sakhalin -1 Project, 20% Exxon Mobil - 30% The project is under
Russia, Offshore SODECO - 30% production and development.
SMNG - 11.5%
RN Astra - 8.5%
3. | Block 5A Project, 24.125% Petronas - 68.875% The project is under
Sudan, Onshora Sudapet - 7% exploration, production
and development.
4,  Block A-1 Project, Myanmar, 20% Daewoo - 60% The project is under
Offshore KOGAS - 10% exploration and appraisal.
GAIL - 10%
5. | Block A-3 Project Myanmar, 20% Daewoo - 60% The project is under
Offshore KOGAS - 10% exploration and appraisal.
GAIL - 10%
6. | Farsi Block Project, 40% 10C - 40% The project is under
Iran, Offshore OIL - 20% exploration.
7. | Block NC-188 & NC-189 49% TPOG - 51% The project is under

Project, Libya, Onshare

exploration.
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8. | Block XXIV Project, 60%
Syria, Onshore

9. | Block 5B Project, 23.5%
Sudan, Onshora

10. | Block 8 North Ramadan 70%
Project, Egypt, Offshore

11. | Block 25-29, 35 (Part) & 30%

36 Project, Cuba, Offshore

12. ' Khartoum - Port Sudan Pipeline 90%
Project, Sudan

IPR - 40%

Pefronas - 41%
Lundin - 24.5%
Sudapet - 11%

IPR Red Sea - 30%
Repsol YPF - 40%
Hydro - 30%

OIL - 10%

The Project is under
exploration.

The project is under
exploration.
The project is under

exploration.

The project is under
exploration.

The pipeline has been
completed and is under Leass.

*Abbroviations used: British Petroleum - BP BExploration Operating Comparty Limited; Daewoo - Dagwoo International Gorporation; Exxon Mobil - Boon Neftagas
Limtted; GAIL - GAIL {indla) Limited; I0C - Indlan Oll Gorporation Limited; IPR - IPR Mediterrangan Exploration Limited; IPR Red Sea - IPR Energy Red Sea Inc.; KOGAS -
Korea Gas Corporation; Lundin - Lundin Muglad Limited; OIL - Oil India Limited; Petronas - Petronas Carigall Overseas Sdn Bhd; Petrovietnam - Vietnam Oil and Gas
Corporation; Repsol - Repsol YPF Cuba SA; SMNG - Sakhalinmomeftegas Shelf, SODECO - Sakhalin il Development Company Limited; Sudapet - Sudapet Limited;

TPOC - Turkish Petroleum Overseas Company Limited.

3. Company's Share in Joint Ventures:

The Company's share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the Joint Ventures as furnished by the operator has been incorporated

inthe financial statements as given below:

Project NetFixed Net Producing = Capltal Work
Assots Proparty = in Progress

A. Auditod as of

the Reporting Date

Block 5A , Sudan 3,554.50 473432 -

Block A-1 Myanmar 59.84 - 3246

Block A-3 Myanrmar 0.26 - 38.88

Farsi Block , Iran 1.34 -

Block 5B, Sudan 1.02 - 1,046.95

Sudan Pipeline - - -

Total (A) 3,562.96 4,734.32 1,118.29

B. Audited as of

31" Dacember 2006

Block 06.1 Vietnam 785.42 4,495.49 1,412.50

C. Unaudited

Sakhalin-1, Russta 43,305.09 22,588.19 7,403.74

Block NC-188 &

NC-189, Libya 1.46 -

Block XXV, Syria 3.32 - 19.81

Block Cl-112, Gote Dlvoire - - -

Block 6 North Ramadan,

Egypl 7 - .76

Blocks 25-29, 35 (Part) &

36, Cuba - - 346.91

Total (C) 43,317.08 22,588.19 7.802.22

Grand Total (A+B +C) 47,665.46 31,818.00 10,332.01

Exploratory and
Development
Wells in progross

854.90
1,184.07
443.41

2,2086.46
13.34
1.96
A76.19
54.35

2,752.30
5,234.68

(Rupees in million)

Current
Assets & Bank
1,918.08 107.55
4741 8.08
5.13 209.05
9.17 129.62
- 46.14
7,156.45 0.04
9,137.14 | 500.46
79.62 64.83
2,683.47 99345
20.15 6.58
54.26 -
B7.73 <
2.825.61  1,000.03
12,042.37 1,565.32

Liablities Income Expendiiure
728.51 - 2,242.99
0.77 - (705.45)
33.58 - 69.34
158.33 - 1,287.83*
33.95 551.53
2,179.34 0.55 204.51*
3,134.98 0.65 3,650.55
514.63 - 1,205.38
9,343.97 - 7,255.06
6.67 - 0.00
18.56 - 79.19
0.21 - 1.13
2541 - 738
415 - 320.80
9,380.97 - 7,663.56
13,049.58 055 12,609.49

*Reprasants expenditure as per jolnt venture statement. In the accounts of the Company, the amount Is reflected after netting off as per the Accounting Standard (AS) 27 viz. Fnanclal

Reporting of interests in Joint Ventures.

The Company's share of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses have been converted into the reporting currency at the average
exchange rates over the period for which the details are provided by the Operators. Generally the details are provided by the operators on
monthly basis exceptin respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project, where the details are provided by the Operator on quarterly basis.
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Title to Fixed Assets under Production Sharing Agreements

The Company in consortium with other partners (Consortium} carries on its business in respect of exploration, development and
production of hydrocarbons under agreements with the host governments. In several of these agreements governing Company's
activities in the fields / projects, the agreements provide that the title to the fixed assets and other ancillary installations shall pass to host
government or its nominated entities either upon acquisition / first use of such assets or upon 100% recovery of such costs through
allocation of “Cost 0il” and “Cost Gas” or upon relinquishment of the relevant contract areas or termination of the relevant agreement,
However, as per the terms of the agreements, the Consortium and/ or Operator has the custody of all such assets and is entitled to use,
free of charge all such assets for Petroleum Operations till the full term of the respective agreements. The Consortium also bears the
custody and maintenance of such assets and all risks of accidental loss and damage and all costs necessary to maintain such assets and
to replace or repair such damage or loss. Under the circumstances, such assets are keptin the records of the Company till the full term of
the respective agreements.

Khartoum - Port Sudan Pipeline Project:

The Company had completed the execution of the 127 X 741 Kms multi-product pipeline from Khartoum Refinery to Port Sudan for the
Ministry of Energy and Mining of the Government of Sudan (MEM) on Build, Own, Lease and Transfer (BOLT) basis and handed overthe
same to MEM during the previous financial year. The project was implemented in consortium with Qil India Limited, Company's share
being 90%.

The EPC Contragtor executing the project ¢laimed additional costs aggregating to Rs 1,614.79 Million (Previous Year 1,659.00 Million)
{Company's share being Rs 1,453.31 Million, Previcus Year Rs 1,493.10 Million), which have not been accepted by the Company.
However, the ¢laims have been forwarded to MEM for their approval for an aggregate amount of receivables from MEM of Rs 2,007.30
Million (Previous Year Rs 1,524.20 Million), Company's share being Rs 1,806.57 Million (Previous Year Rs 1,371.78 Million). Pending
settlement with the EPC Contractor, an amount of Rs 998.74 Million (revalued from Previgus Year Rs 1,026.08 Million, being the
Company's share out of Rs 1,109.71 Million (revalued frem Previous Year Rs 1,140.08 Million) has been shown as liability based upon
the advicas received by the Company from its consultant. The Cempany's share of the balance amount has been shown as claims not
acknowledged as debt. No revenue in this respect has been recognised pending final approvals by MEM.

The payment under the contract would be received over a period of 10 years with a moratorium of one year from the date of the contract
i.e. 30" June, 2004 in 18 equal semi-annual instalments along with lease rental. The lease period commenced from the date of handing
over of the pipeline system and will continue ill all payments by MEM are completed. All titles in the works and the transportation system
shall vest in the Company and the titie shall pass to MEM in proportion to the payments made by MEM against total payments due to
Company under the contract. Further, subject to regular payments on due dates by MEM to the Company, MEM shall have the exclusive
right to use and operate the pipeline system and the Company shall not assign, transfer, sub-let, sub-contract, mortgage or create any
rights to any third party or encumbrances or make any disposition to any third party. Accordingly, the amount of net investment in the
lease {i.e. aggregate of Minimum Lease Payments MINUS Unearned Finance Income} is recognised and recorded as receivablgs under
the lease. The finance income thereon has been recognised based upon the pattern reflecting the constant periodic rate of return onthe
outstanding netinvestment in the lease.

The firsttwo installments under the contract due on 30" December, 2005 and 30" June, 2006 had been received as of the reporting date.
However, since the third installment due on 30" December, 2006 was received after the reporting date, the same has been shown as
advance recoverable.
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The disclosure in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) 19 viz. Leases is as under;

(M

(i

(i)

(iv)

Sale

(Rupees in million)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

Gross Net Gross Net

a) Reconciliation between the total
gross investment in the lease and
the present value of minimum lease

payments as at year end
- Not later than one year 1,097.60 13.48 1,127.64 693.03
- Later than one year and not |ater 4,390.37 3,323.42 4,510.56 3,214.70
than five years
- Later than five years 2,743.98 2,536.69 3,946.74 3,538.84
Total 8,231.95 6.573.59 9,584.94 7,446.57
by Unearned Finance Income 2.138.37
¢} Unguaranteed residual value accruing Nil Nil
to Company's bengfit
d) Accumulated provision for uncollectible NIl Nil
minimum lease payments receivable
e) Contingent rents recognised in the statement Nil Nil
of profit and loss for the period
f) General description of the significant As described In As described in
leasing arrangement para abhove para above
g) Accounting Policy followed in respect As per Accounting As per Accounting
of initial direct costs Policy 12.2 Policy 12.2

Sakhalin-1, Russia:

The sales of Grude 0il and Gas to the domestic (Russian) buyers had commenced during the finangial year 2005-06 while the sales
of Grude Qil to intemational buyers commenced during the year in respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project. During the current year,
receipts on account of Crude Oil and Gas Sales (including receivables) were Rs 16,558.88 Million and Rs 511.23 Million (Previous
year Rs 1,799.25 Million and Rs 217.10 Million) respectively after adjustment of Rs 0.91 Million received during the previpus year
against take or pay provisions of the contract owing to lesser nomination of Gas by the buyer. The Closing Stock of Crude Oil till the
Delivery Point has not been considered in view of the contractual arrangement that it remains the property of the State until the
Delivery Point.

The Consortium had acquired the Early Production Facility (EPF) under a contract for lease for the basic term upto 15 September,
2006 in financial year 2005-06 with an option for renewal. The Contract also provided an option to the Consortium to purchase the
EPF by provision of 45 days written notice at the price and in accordance with the provisions of the contract. Further the title and risk
of damage to the EPF shall pass to the Consortium upon payment of the purchase price. Under the circumstances, the Company had
recognised the lease as an asset for an amount of Rs 428.13 Million and a liability at an arnount equal to the present value of minimum
lease payment and purchase price during the previous financial year. The EPF has been purchased by the Gonsortiurn during the year.

During the financial year 2005-06, the Company had made provision for the Company's share amounting to USD 7.1¢ million
(Rs 317.09 Million) in respect of past costs reimbursable to a consortium partner recoverable from the hydrocarbons after the
developmentinvestments have been fully recovered. Since the obligation to pay arises in future out of the future praduction, the same
has been written back during the year,

The amount of Rs 7,403.75 Million representing Capital Work-in Progress (Schedule-7) in respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project
would be capitalised to fixed assets and producing properties after completion of Chayvo Phase-1 of the project.
Pending capitalization due to non-availability of break up of the amount from the operator, the same has been shown under Capital
Work-in Progress.

Block 5A and Block 5B, Sudan:

s of Grude Qil commenced during the year in respect of Block 5A, Sudan Project. During the current year, receipts on account of Grude

0il Sales (including receivables) were Rs 2,230.99 Million (Previous year Rs nil). Sales include the amount adjusted in kind by the
transporter on account of transportation charges, which has been accounted as transpartation charges. However, the Sales exclude the
quality adjustment carried out by the transporter amongst the joint shippers by way of quantity adjustments. Pending finalization of the
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fransportation agreement with the transporters, the adjustments in respect of transport charges and quality have been carried out based
uponthe invoices of the transporter.

The Company carries the share of investment of Sudapet, a company owned by the Government of Sudan, for its 3.375% share in Block
5A and 3.72% in Block 5B till the commencement of first commercial production. The carried amounts are repayable without interest out
of the production share of Sudapet as per the terms of the Exploration and Production Sharing Agreement (EPSA}. Currently, Block 5A is
under production and development and due to certainty of the recovery, the net carried amount of USD 24.93 Million equivalent to
Rs. 1,083.89 Million (Previous year Rs. 912.96 Million) has been shown as a loan. However, since Block 5B is under exploration,
additional provision for the amount carried during the year of USD 1.27 Million equivalent to Rs. 56.92 Million (Previous year Rs. 8.41
Million) including revaluation has been made during the year making the aggregate provision of Rs. 78.27 Million (Previous Year
Rs. 21.35 Million), equal to the carried amount as on date.

FarsiBlock, Iran:

In respect of Farsi Block, Iran, the Company in consortium with other partners has entered into an Exploration Service Contract (ESC)
with National Iranian Oil Company (NIOC). In pursuance to the committed work program, the Company drilled exploratory wells in the
Block during the year. Although the Company has encountered hydrocarbons, a provision has been made in respect of the expenditure
incurred on exploratory wells (Rs. 1,287.30 Million) pending declaration of commerciality and award of development service contract
by NIOC.

AFPC, Syria:

During the year, the Company accepted the transfer of AFPC, Syria Project from Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGG) with
effect the economic date of its acquisition by ONGC i.e. 1" July, 2005. The structuring of the advance for shares / loans with ONGBV and
OMEL has since been agreed. However, the formal agreements amongst the shareholders are yet to be finalised and executed. Pending
execution of requisite agreements, obtaining required approvals and issuance of shares by ONGBV and OMEL, the investments made by
ONGG for the acquisition of the project by way of advance for shares / loans to ONGC Nile Ganga BV (ONGBV) and ONGC Mittal Energy
Limited (OMEL) amounting to Rs. 9,799.69 Million were accepted by the Company as loans from ONGC and the advances to ONGBY and
OMEL (net of repayments by ONGBY and OMEL) have been shown as advance for shares in accordance with the understanding reached
between the relevant parties.

Detalls of Reserves:
{2) Company's share of Proved Reserves in respect of different projects as on 31 March, 2007 is as under:

Project Details Crude Oil* Gas Total Oil
(Million Tonne) {Billion Cubic Meter) Equivalent**
{Million Tonne)

Block 06.1, Vietnam Opening 0.683 16.450 17.133
Addition - - -
Deductions - - -
Production 0.030 1.842 1.872
Closing 0.653 14.608 15.261
Sakhalin-1, Russia Opening 61.222 96.917 158.139
Addition - - -
Deductions 6.791 12.558 19.309
Production 0.955 0.306 1.261
Closing 53.516 84.053 137.569
Block 5A, Sudan Opening 5.180 - 5.180
Addition - - -
Deductions - o -
Production 0.270 - 0.270
Closing 4910 - 4.910

* Grude Qil includes Gondensate.
** For calculating “Oil Equivalent” 1,000M® of Gas has been taken to be equal to 1 Tonne of Crude Oil.
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(b) Company's share of Proved and Developed Reserves in respect of different projects as on 31" March, 2007 is as under:

Project Detalls Crude OII* Gas Total Ol
{Million Tonne}) (Blillon Cublc Melter) Equivalent**
(Million Tonne)

Block 06.1, Vietham Opening 0.676 12.895 13.571

Addition = - -

Deductions - o -

Production 0.030 1.842 1.872

Closing 0.646 11.053 11.699

Sakhalin-1, Russia Opening 1.422 0.557 1.979

Addition 7534 2.286 9.820

Deductions - - -

Production 0.955 0.306 1.261

Closing 8.001 2.537 10.538

Block 5A, Sudan Opening - - -

Addition 4580 - 4,580

Deductions - - -

Production 0.270 - 0.270

Closing 4310 - 4310

* Crude Oil includes Condensate.
** For calculating “Oil Equivalent”, 1,000M* of Gas has been takento be equal to 1 Tonne of Crude Oil.

The consultant engaged by the Company in financial year 2004-05 had suggested net downward revision of Ol Equivalent Reserves to
the extent of 1.99 Million Tonne {comprising reduction of 0.42 Million Tonnes condensate and 3.71 Billion Gubic Meters gas in Proved
Reserves, increase of 0.06 Million Tonnes condensate and 1.10 BCM gas in Probable Reserves and (.17 Million Tonnes condensate and
0.81 Billion Cubic Meters gas in Possible Reserves) in respect of Block 06.1, Vietnam Project. The reduction in Proved and Developed
Qil Equivalent Reserves suggested by the Consultant was 2.99 Million Tonnes comprising 0.42 Million Tonnes of Condensate and
2.57 Billion Cubic Meters of gas. The revision was not accepted by the Operator. The Operator is carrying out separate Reserve
assessment based on pressure/ production studies. Appropriate adjustments, if any, will be made on receipt of Operator's assessment.

The Reserves in respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project based on the Declaration of Commerciality accepted by Consortium members and
approved by Russian authorities have been revised downwards during the year in respect of Chayvo field by 19.309 Million Tonne
{i.e. 6.751 Million Tonne of Crude Oil and 12.558 Billion Cubic Meter of gas) deleting the reserves beyond the license area as the proposal
submitted by the Operator for extension of the area to cover the entire field has not been agreed by the regulatory authority and for
accounting the suggestions of the regulatory body regarding changes in parameters for making the firm development plan.

The consultant engaged by the Company during financial year 2004-05 had suggested downward revision of total hydrocarbon volume
(Proved plus Probable plus Possible Reserves plus Contingent Resources) by 3.13 Million Tonne of Oil Equivalent comprising increase in
ulimate recoverable volume of oil by 5.17 Million Tonne and decrease in ultimate recoverable volume of gas by 8.30 Billion Cubic Meter.

The consultant had placed Chayvo Phase-1 reserves only in Proved category i.e. 11.0 Million Tonne of oil and 11.4 Billion Cubic Meter of
gas because in his view, for other phases/fields, firm export contract and approval for export pipeline does not exist at present,
The Consortium is, however, confident of making tie-ups for gas, get approval for pipeline and has initiated efforts towards that. Further,
the development plan in respect of the entire Proved Reserves shown above has already been approved by the Russian authorities.
Forthese reasons, the Company has not accepted the consultant's categorization.



11.  Segmentinformation:

{Rupees in million)

Particulars Asla FSU Gountries Latin America Ahica Unallocaled Grand Total
200607 200506 | 2008-07 = 2005-08 | 2008-07 2005-06  2006-07 200506 200807 2005-08  2006-07 2005-08
REVENUE
Extemal sales 0332083 775697 1707102 201544 0.00 NA 223009 217353 0.00 000 2883494 1194594
Inter Segment sales 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue 033293 775697 1707102 201544 0.00 NA | 223099 217353 0.00 0.00 2863494 1194594
Results NA
Segment resufts 520356 403071 | 7,033.50 (1,123.90) 0.00 NA | (441.18)  (425.90) 0.00 0.00 1268597 2,480.91
Unallocated corporate 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 000 90571 283305 9051 283305
Expenses (Net)
Operating profit or (Loss) = 5,208.56  4,030.71 | 793350 | (1,123.90) 0.00 NA | (441.18) (425.80)  (905.71) (2,833.05) 1179026  (343.14)
Interest expanses 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.80 0.00 NA .00 0.00 14550 500 14550 8.89
Interest and other .01 897 | 11835 34.34 0.00 NA 44188 27384 219206 858220 2760.30 8,897.35
Income
Incom & other Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 0.00 367054 205082 387954 205082
Proftt/ {loss) from 521157 404668 | 505194 | (1,003.36) 0.00 NA 070 (15206) (2736.60) 369324 1052552  G5,40450
ordinary activiles
Extraordinary [osses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net profit / {Loss) 521157 404668 | B,051.94  (1,093.36) 0.00 NA 070 (15206) (2738.60) 369324 1062552 649450
Cher Information NA
Segment Assats 11,122.35 5,890.06 8335772 | 7190129 401.42 NA | 2031880 1740342 0.00 0.00 11520128 98,194.79
Unallocated Corporate
Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 000 | B6,574.07 8644543 B6,574.07 8644643
Total Assels 1112335 883008 6335772 7190129 401.42 NA 2031880 17,40342 B6,574.07 B6446.43 18177538 184,641.22
Segment Liabiltias 132892 79891 | 934397 690474 416 NA | 297445 2340417 0.0 0.00 1365150 10,133.82
Unallocaled Gorporatz 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 0.00 |136,130.43 160,409.17 135,130.43 160,409.17
Liablities
Total 132882 79891 | 0,34387 690474 415 NA | 297445 234017 13513043 160,409.17 149,781.93 170,542.99
Capital Exponditurs 406078 41734 14596.87 2251384 40126 NA | 278414 278062 1942009 142 4126314 2571322
Recouped cost 160083 77080 @ 515741 103720 32080 NA | 2254.10 000 | 119744 309763 10,530.38 490563
Non cash Exp. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Information about Secondary Business Segments (Product-wise):

{Rupees in million)
Revenue from 2006-07 2005-06
Crude Qil* and Natural Gas 28,634.94 9,772.41
Construction Contracts - 2,173.53
Lease Financing Income 435.14 271.25

*Crude Qil includes Condensate.

Notes;

@i  Segments have been identified and reported taking into account, the organization and management structure for internal reporting and
significantly different risk and return perception in different geographical regions. These have been re-organized into five segments viz.
Asia, FSU Countries, Latin America, Africa and Unallocated. Australia, which had been recognised as a separate segment until [ast year is
included inthe Unallocated segment in view of the nil activity during the year.

Fiij]
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(i

(i)

12.

13.

The segment revenue in the business segment (Product-wise) is gross revenue from sale of Crude Oil and Natural Gas, Construction
Contracts and Lease Finance Income.

Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and amount
allocated on a reasonable basis. “Unallocated” includes commaon expenditure incurred for all the segments and expenses incurred at
corporate level.

Taxatlon:
{a) Deferred Tax Provision:
(i) The Net Deferred Tax Liability of the Company as at 31% March, 2007 is Rs. 6,702.86 Million {Previous year Rs. 4,391.42 Million).
The difference of Rs. 2,311.43 Million has been charged to the current year's Profit and Loss Account.

(ii) The item wise details of Net Deferred Tax Liability as on 31" March, 2007 accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard
(AS) 22 viz. Accounting for Taxes on Income are as under:

{Rupees in million)
As at 31% March, 2007 = As at 31" March, 2006

Deferred Tax Asseis :

Garried Forward Expenditure U/S 42 of Income Tax Act, 1961 5,671.76 4,551.36
Garried Forward Fee U/S 35 D of Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.24
Amount disallowable U/S 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 19.39 13.87
Total Defarred Tax Assels 5,691.15 4,565.47
Deferred Tax Liahility :

Difference in Net Block of Fixed Assets for Tax 12,394.01 8,956.89
Total Deferred Tax Liability 12,394.01 8,956.89
Net Daferred Tax Liability 6,702.36 4,391.42

In the financial statements provided by the operator of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project, an amount of USD 63.45 Million (equivalent to
Rs. 2,758.17 Million) has been indicated as Deferred Tax Liability based upon the losses camied forward and differences in book
value and tax value of assets and liabilities under Russian tax laws. The tax rates in Russia are lower than the tax rates in India, the
Deferred Tax Liability as indicated in the Operator's financial statements has not been recognised.

(b) Currant Tax provision:

The provision for tax has baen made for Rs. 1,568.06 Million (Previous year Rs. 556.53 Million) after considering the deemed tax
paid of Rs 988.57 Million (Previous year Rs. 873.63 Million) in respect of Block 06.1, Vietnam Project under the double taxation
avoidance agreement between India and Vietnam. The provision includes Rs. 13.55 Million on account of wealth tax for the year
in respect of leasehold land for which the assessing officer had sought details regarding applicability of the wealth tax thereon.
The Company has denied the applicability of the wealth tax on the leasehold land based upon the advices received.

(¢)  TaxAssessment:

{i) The Company has appealed to Hon'ble High Court of Delhi against the decision of Income Tax Appellate Tribunal for the
Assessment Year 1981-82 to 1987-88 with regard to disallowance of its claim for Rs. 94.04 Million (Previous year Rs. 94.04
Million) on account of depreciation, development allowance and receipt of interest on delayed payments in respect of Iran
Project. However, pending decision the tax demand in this regard has already been paid by the Company.

(iyThe Company has filed three appeals with CIT (Appeals) against the disallowance of depreciation on acquisition costs of the
projects and other expenses amounting to Rs. 3,958.54 Million, Rs. 3,006.17 Million and Rs. 3,470.29 Million in respect of
assessment years 2002-03, 2003-04 and 2004-05 respectively. Since the payment of tax by the Company was under the
provisions of Income tax Act, 1961 relating to Minimum Afternative Tax curing the relevant years and there were adjustable
carried forward losses, there is no tax demand on account of the disallowance on this account.

Loans and Advances to Employees:

Loans and advances to employees include an amount of Rs. 0.98 Million (Previous Year Rs. 0.58 Million) outstanding from whole time
Directors, Maximum outstanding during the yearis Rs .1.02 Million {Previous Year Rs. 0.65 Million).



14.

15.

16.

17.

Wrile-off of Loans:

During the financial year 2005-06, the Company had created provision for loans considered doubtful for an amount of Rs. 372.16 Million,
being the amount of [oan due from a Public Sector Company, which had disputed the liability. The Company has written off the loan during
the year utilizing the provision made lastyear.

Capital Commitments:

{i) The Company either on its own or in consortium with other partners carries on its business in respect of exploration,
development and production of hydrocarbons under agreements with the host governments. Several of these agreements
provide for certain minimum work ohligations/ certain minimum financial commitments over a period of time. The Company's
share of such obligations/ commitments in respect of agreements where such obligations / commitments have not been
completed as of the reporting date amounted to USD 238.07 Million equivalent to Rs. 10,348.92 Million (Previous year
USD 89.75 Million equivalent to Rs. 4,008.42 Million). The actual expenditure incurred by the Company against these
obligations/ commitments, which have some outstanding till 31" March, 2007 is Rs. 1,004.83 Milion (Previous year
Rs. 1,499.29 Million). The Company is confident of meeting the obligations/ commitments.

i) Other Capital Commitments based upon the details provided by the operators: Rs. 265.43 Million {Previous year nil). All known
capital commitments have been indicated except Capital commitments in respect of Sakhalin -1, Russia Project and Block 54,
Sudan projects where such commitments are not ascertainable due to non-availability of details from the operators.

Contingent Liabilities:

{i Liability for payment to contractual workers for regularization of their services is pending with Labour Court under civil suit.
The amount of liability is not ascertainable.

{ii) Claims not acknowledged as debt: Rs. 454.57 Million (Previous Year Rs. 467.03 Million) (Refer note 5 above)

{iy  The Company has executed a guarantee for an amount of USD 4.20 Million equivalent to Rs. 182.57 Million (Previous year nil) in
favour of Joint Development Authority in respect of Block 2, Joint Development Zone, Nigeria/ Sao Tome & Principe on behalf of
its wholly owned subsidiary ONGC Nammada Limited in respect of Minimum Financial Commitments during the Phase |
Exploration Peried underthe Production Sharing Contract for its Participating Interest. The balance outstanding as on 31* March,
2007 is Rs. 182.57 Million. The Company is confident that ONGC Narmada Limited will be able to honour its obligations and the
guarantee may not be resorited to by the beneficiary. In view of this, the question of reimbursement does not arise.

{iv} Al known contingent liabilities have been indicated. The contingent liabilities, if any, in respect of joint ventures, where the
Company s the non-operator, are notascertainable.

(i) Details of Production, Transportation, Selling and Distribution Expenditure (Schedule 19), and Provisions & Write Off (Net)
(Schedule 22);

{Rupees in million)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06
)] (a) Salaries, Wages, Ex-grafia, etc. 471.19 333.60
(b) Contribution to Provident and other Funds 7.64 4.61
(c) Provision for Gratuity 119 4.73
(d) Provision for Leave Encashment 15.57 8.69
(¢) Provision for Medical/Terminal Benefits 3.99 0.00
(f) Staff Welfare Expenses 46.25 21.08
Sub-Total 551.83 872.n
(i)  Rent 22.96 17.30
(i)  Electricity, Water and Power 5.72 2.80
{iv)  Repairs 1o Building 2.78 1.26

(v)  Repairs to Plant and Machinery (14.34) 73:44

203



24

18.

(viy  Other Repairs

(viiy  Hire Charges of Vehicles
(viiiy  Professional Charges

()  Telephone and Telex

) Printing and Stationary

(d)  Training and Seminar

(i)  Business Mesting Expenses
(i)  Traveling Expenses

(xiv)  Pipeline Construction Cost
()  Insurance

(xvi)  Advertisement and Exhibition Expenditure

(xvil)  Statutory Levies

(xviii) Contractual Transportation
(dx}  Miscellaneous Expenditure
(o Other Operating Expenditure
0od)  Provisions for doubtful debts
Godi)  Other Wiite offs

0odii)  Royalty

Total

1.64

4.26
604.58
11.42
1.60
2.95
8.61
156.98
0.00
195.25
16.39
1,378.74
2,662.86
101.20
2,006.55
56.92
1,293.30
1,356.87

10,3849.07

{Rupees in million)
3.76

4.30
62.75
7.99
3.94
3.06
5.22
66.35
2,699.29
49.79
15.11
936.48
1,825.35
57.69
807.97
380.57
(1.17)
141.29

1,537.25

(i) The operating expenditure {no. (xx} above) includes the expenses in respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia project, where the above

details are not made available by the Operator.

Quantiative and other Informatlon pursuantto the provislons In Part Il of Schedule V1 to the Companles Act, 1956:

() Turnover:
Revenue from Unit
Crude Qi * @ Tonne
Gas* 000 M?
Construction
Contracts N.A.
Lease Finance N.A.

2006-07
Quantity Value
{Rupees in milllon)
986,708 20,630.63
1,418,769 8,004.31
NA. NIL
NA. 435.14

2005-06
Quantity Value
(Rupees In milllon)
220,352 3,265.03
1,238,638 6,507.38
N.A. 2,173.53
N.A. 271.25

*Company's entitiement based on actual delivery. In respect of Block 06.1, Vietnam Project, entitiements are reconciled on calendar year
basis. Therefore, the entitiements from January to March 2007 are included based upon the estimate provided by the Operator.

@Crude Qilincludes Gondensate.

(i) Opening and Closing Stock of Goods Produced:

Crude 0il @
Opening Stock

Closing Stock* 10,222

@Crude Oilincludes Condensate
*includes the Underlift quantity of Crude Oil

As at 31*March, 2007

Quantity
(Tonne)

Value
{Rupees in million)

33.63
410.19

As at 31" March, 2006

Quantity
{Tonne)

5221
8,640

Value
{Rupees in million)

19.20
33.63



19.

20.

21.

()  Licensed Capachy, Installed Capaclty and Actual Production
Revenue from Unit 2006-07
Installed
Capacity
Gas* o000 M* Not applicable
Crude Oil *@ Tonne Not applicable

* Company's participating share of production in Joint Ventures.

@

Crude Oil includes Condensate.

Expenditure in Foreign Exchange:

Import

Professional and Consultation Fee
Interest

Others

Earnings in Foreign Exchange:

Export/ Sales {incl. advance received/ adjusted)
Royalty/Technical know-how

Interest

Dividend

Others

Managerial Remuneration:

Salary and Allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund
Other Benefits and Perquisites™®
Total

* excludes provision by the holding company

Notes:

a)

b)

Actual
Production
2,147,253
1,255,508

2006-07
Nil
494.28
Nil
95,110.94

2006-07
23,356.70
Nil

72.28

Nil
68,899.29

2006-07
1.89
0.19
0.30
238

Not applicable
Notapplicable

Actual
Production
1,755,037
214,075

(Rupees in million)
2005-06
Nil
344.17
Nil
33,704.14

(Rupees in million)
2005-06
11,859.95
Nil
2,917.99
5,112.09
480.67

{Rupees In millien)

20035-06
1.24
012
0.13
1.49

In addition, Whole-time Directors are also allowed the use of Company car for private purposes up to 1000 Km/per month on

payment of Rs. 520 per month for air-conditioned cars below 16 H.P
The remuneration does not include provision for gratuity and leave encashment since the same is not available for

individual employee.
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22.

23.

24.

Auditors' Remuneration:

Audit Fee

Tax Audit Fee
Certification Fee
Total

(Rupees In million}

2006-07
0.67***
0.02
0.69

2005-06
0.50*@
0.03**

0.53

*Includes Rs. 0.10 Million for incremental audit fees, Rs. 0.05 Million for incremental consolidated accounts audit fees and Rs. 0.02
Million forincremental Cash Flow Statement Certification fee for the financial year 2004-05.

@includes Rs. 0.10 Million for Consolidated accounts for 2005-06.
**includes Rs. 0.01 Million for incremental tax audit fee for 2004-05.
***includes Rs. 0.17 Million for half yearty audit for 2006-07.

The expenditure incurred by Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC}), ONGC Nile Ganga BV (ONGBY) and ONGC Narmada Limited
(ONL), on behalf of the Company are accounted for on the basis of debits raised by them for which supporting documents are held by

ONGC, ONGBY and ONL respectively.

Information as per Accounting Standard (AS) 18 viz. Related Party Disclosures {excluding with State Controlled Entitles):

Subsidiarles
Income from rendering services 269.52
Bxpenses onreceiving services o
InterestIncome 36.26
Loans Given 749.07
Remuneration -
Capital Contribution* @ 25,297.27

* includes advance given for shares to be allotted.

(Rupees In milllon}

Jointventures  Key Managerial Total
personnel 2006-07

117.54 - 387.06

20.00 - 56.26

- - 749.07

- 2.38 2.38

2,536.74 - 27.834.01

Total
2005-06

661.23
231
20.20

1.48

460.47

@ includes advance for shares given by ONGG last year and transferred to the Gompany during the current year consequent to the

transfer of projectto the Company (Refer Note 9 above)
Nots:

Name of related parties and description of relationship (excluding State Controlled Entities):

Subsidiaries

Joint Ventures

ONGC Nile Ganga BY, Netherlands

ONGC Narmada Limited, Nigeria

ONGC Amazon Alkananda Limited, Bermuda
ONGC Campos Holdings Ltda.

ONGC Do Brasil Explorancao Petrolifera Ltda.
Block 06.1 Project, Vietnam

Sakhalin-1 Project, Russia

Block 5A Project, Sudan

Block A-1 Project, Myanmar

Block A-3 Project, Myanmar

Farsi Block Project, Iran

Block & North Ramadan Project, Egypt
Block NC-188 & NC-189 Project, Libya
Block XXIV Project, Syria

Block 5B Project, Sudan

Block Cl-112 Project, Cote D Ivoire

Block 25-29, 35 (Part) & 36 (Part), Cuba



Khartoum - Port Sudan Pipeline Project, Sudan
ONGC Mittal Energy Limited, Cyprus
Key Management personnel Shri R. S. Butola, Managing Director
Shri D. K. Sarraf, Director {Finance)
Shri A. Mathur, Director (Commercial)
Shri J. Thomas, Director (Exploration)

25.  Previgus year figures have been re-grouped/re-arranged and nomenclature re-named wherever necessary to make them comparable with

current year classification.
{Jagdish Prasad) (D. K. Sarraf) (R. S. Butola) (R. S. Sharma)
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Managing Director Chairman
As per our report of even date attached
For BATRA SAPRA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
New Delhl (K. 5. KAMATH)

21*Juna, 2007 Partner (M. No.44492)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2007

(Rupees in million)

Year Ended Year Ended
31" March, 2007 31° March, 2006
A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before tax and prior period Hems 12,736.77 9,668.48
Adjustments For:
- Recouped Costs 10,530.38 4,905.63
{Represented by Depreciation, Depletion and Amortisation)
Less : Cash Outflows 3,506.29 3,065.64
7,024.09 1,839.99
- Interest on Borrowings 145.50 8.88
- Provision for Gratuity 5.42 3.66
- Provision for Leave Encashment 11.27 522
- Provision for Terminal Benefits 3.99 0.00
- Provision for Doubtful Debt 56.92 380.57
- Exchange (Gain)/Loss on Carry Finance 0.00 (843.17)
- Dividend from Subsidiary 0.00 (5,112.09)
- Forsign Exchange Translation Reserve 383.09 0.00
- Interest Income (1,838.78) 5,791.50 (2,944.39) (6,661.28)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 18,528.27 3,007.20
Adjustments for:-
- Debtors (3,581.35) (1,007.62)
- Loans and Advances 1,541.36 (841.45)
- Inventories (1,286.40) (301.78)
- Trade Payable and Other Liabilities {1,030.26) (4,356.65) 1,105.8% (1,044.96)
Cash generated from Operations 14,171.62 1,962.24
Dirgct Taxes Paid (3,712.45) (1,008.27)
Cash Flow before Prior period items 10,459.17 953.97
Prior perlod ttems 314.60 (709.08)
Net Cash Flow from Opsrating Activities 'A' 10,773.77 244.89
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net) (45,038.28) (7,262.75)
Expenditure on Projects 26,849.45 (16,768.76)
Invesiment in Subsidiaries/Jv (21,258.33) (0.05)
Loan/Advance to Subsidiaries (7,835.58) (537.61)
Advance to SMNG-S, RN ASTRA & Sudapet 55,669.41 (20,531.41)
Dividend Received 0.00 4,600.88
Intsrest Received 342.86 123.01
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 'B* 8,729.54 (40,376.69)
G. CASH FLOW FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital 7,000.00 0.00
Net Long Term Borrowings from ONGC (23,827.93) 39,300.57
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings from QIDB (61.25) (95.87)
Cash Credit (44.18) 4418
Dividend paid 0.00 (1,050.00)
Tax on Dividand 0.00 (147.26)
Interest Paid {145.50) (8.89)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 'C' (17,070.86) 38,042.73
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {A+B+C) 2,424.45 (2,089.07)
Cash and CGash Equivalents as at 15t April, 2006 1,642.47 3,731.54
(Opening Balance)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March, 2007 4,066.92 1,642.47
(Closing Balance)

Notes:

1. Theabove Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as setoutin the Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statements issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountarts of India,
2. Bracketindicates cash outflow.

3. Previous yearfigures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conflrm the current year's classiication.

4, Adjustment have not been made to purchase of fixed assets etc. (investing activities), on account of increase/ decrease in Capital Creditors. The impactofthe aboveis not readily ascertainable.

{Jagdish Prasad) {D. K. Sarraf) (R. 5. Butala) (R. . Sharma)
Gompany Secretary Director (Finance) Managing Diraclor Ghairman
As per our report of even date attached
For BATRA SAPRA & GOMPANY
Chartersd Accountanis
New Delhl {K. S. KAMATH)
21*June, 2007 Partner (M. No.44492)
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE
L REGISTRATION DETAILS
Registration No. 55-04343 State Code 55
Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2007
. CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSANDS)
Public Issue Right Issue
NIL 7000000
Bonus Issue Private Placement
NIL NIL
. POSITION OF MOBILIZATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS (AMOUNT IN RS.THOUSANDS)
Total Liabilities Total Assets
175547395 175547395
Sourca of Funds Paid -up Gapital Reserves & Surplus
10000000 219934M
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans
NIL 132347576
Deferred Tax Liability Provision for Abandonment Cost
6702856 4503492
Application of Funds Net Fixed Assets (including Producing Properties, Development
& Exploratory Wells in progress and Gapital Work in Progress) Invesiments
97461493 51149399
Net Gurrent Assets Misc. Expenditure
26936503 NIL
Accumulated Losses
NIL
V. PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSANDS)
Turnover (Gross Revenue) Total Expenditure
31791812 17386757
Profit/(Loss} Before Tax Profit/(Loss) After Tax
14405055 10525555
Eaming per Share (of Rs.100 each) in Rs. Dividend Rate %
142.03 NIL
v GENERIC NAME OF THREE PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS/SERVICES OF COMPANY (AS PER MONETARY TERMS)
1. ltem Code No. 27090000
Product Description Crude Gil
2. ltem Code No. 2112100
Product Description Natural Gas
3. ltem Code No. 27111900
Product Description Natural Gasollne
(Jagdish Prasad) (D. K. Sarraf) (R. S. Butola) (R. S. Sharma)
Gompany Secratary Director (Finance) Managing Diractor Ghairman
New Delhi

21" Juna, 2007
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ONGC VIDESH LIMITED ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ONGC VIDESH LIMITED, AND IT3 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURE

1. We have audited the attached Gonsolidated Balance sheet of ONGC Videsh Limited and its subsidiaries and joint venture as at
31"March,2007 ,the consolidated Profit and Loss Account and consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date.
These Financial Statements are the responsibility of the ONGC Videsh Limited's management and have been prepared by the
management on the basis of separate financial statements and ather financial information regarding components. Our responsibility
is 10 express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in India. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We did not audit the financial statements of ONGC Nile Ganga BV, the subsidiary company, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 67,277.95 Milion and total liability of Rs. 23,754.75 Million as at 31% March, 2007 and total revenues of
Rs. 85,444.31 Million and total expenditure of Rs. 65,019.25 Million and Cash flow arising therefrom for the year ended on that
date. The financial statements of the subsidiary have been audited under Dutch GAAP by other auditors, viz. Emst & Young,
Accountants, whose report has been furnished to us and our opinion, in so far it relates to the amounts included in respect of the
subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

4, We did not audit the financial statements of ONGC Mittal Energy Limited, the joint venture company, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 5,024.94 Million and total liability of Rs. 139.71 Million as at 31* March, 2007 and total
revenues of As. 30.40 Million and total expenditure of Rs. 32.55 Million and Gash flow arising therefrom for the year ended on that
date. The financial statements of the joint venture Company has been prepared as per International Financial Reporting
Standard (IFRS) and Cyprus Companies Law and have been certified by the management whose certificate has been furnished to
us and our opinion, in so far it relates to the amounts included in respect of the subsidiary is based solely on the certificate of
the management.

5. We did not audit the financial statements of ONGC Narmada Limited, the subsidiary company, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. 583.23 Million as 31% March, 2007 and total liability of Rs. 13.27 Million and total revenues of Rs. 4.06 Million
and total expenditure of Rs. 197.65 Million and Cash flow arising therefrom for the year ended on that date. The financial
statements of the subsidiary have been audited under Nigerian GAAP by the other auditors, viz, Ernst & Young Accountants, whose
report has been furnished to us and our opinion, in so far it relates to the amounts included in respect of the subsidiary is based
solely on the report of the other auditors.

B. We did not audit the financial statements of ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited, the subsidiary company, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 21,014 Million and total liability of Rs. 1,850.86 Million as at 31% March, 2007 and total revenues of
Rs. 1,738.96 Million and total expenditure of Rs.1, 269.81 Million and Cash flow arising therefrom for the year ended on that date.
The financial statements of the subsidiary have been audited under US GAAP by other auditors, viz. M/s BDO Audit AGE, S.A.,
Accountants, whose report has been furnished to us and our opinion, in so far it relates to the amounts included in respect of the
subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

T. We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements of
the Accounting Standard (AS) 21, “Consolidated Financial Statements” and Accounting Standard (AS) 27, “Financial Reporting of
Interest in Joint Ventures”, issued by the Institute of Charterad Accountants of India., read with note 14(ii) of schedule 25.

8. Categorization of expenditure on project in Development & Exploratory Well-In-Progress, Producing Properties and Capital Work-In
Progress, allocation of cost incurred on them, depletion of producing properties including goodwill amortization, provision for
abandonment cost and impairment, allocation of depreciation on fixed assets {including support equipments and facilities) are
made according to evaluation by the management, technical and/or otherwise on which, we have placed reliance.

9, (a) The incorporation of Company's share of Assels, Liabilities and Expenses in the Joint Ventures is based on unaudited
financial stalements as provided by the respective operalors of Joini Ventures, excepl in case of Farsi Block (Iran),
Sudan Pipeline, Block A-1 (Myanmar), Block A-3 (Myanmar), Block 5A (Sudan) and Block 5B (Sudan) which are audited
as per the respective joint operating agreements (Refer Note No. 9 of the Sehedule-25).

(b) As reported by Auditors of ONGC Nile Ganga BV, Unaudited financial statements of ONGC Campos Lid and its group
companies included in the consolidaled financial statements of ONGC Nile Ganga BV reflect total assets of
Rs. 2,609.94 Million and tolal liability of Rs 1,237.98 Million and total expenditure of Rs 745.14 Million.



{c) The financial statements of ONGC Mittal Energy Limited {joint venture Company) which has been consolidated here are
unaudited. (Please refer Para 4 above).

Subject to our comments In paragraph 9 (a), 9(b) and 9(c) ahove, we report that on the basis of information and explanation
given to us and on the consideration of the separate audit reports on financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries,
we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated Financial Statements read together with the notes in Schedule - 25 give a true
and fair view:

a) In case of consolidated Balance sheet of the consolidated state of affairs of ONGC Videsh Limited and its subsidiaries and
Joint Venture as at 31*March, 2007 and

b) In the case of consolidated Profit and Loss, of the consolidated results of operations of ONGC Videsh Limited and its
subsidiaries and Joint Venture for the year ended on that date and

c) Incase of consolidated Gash Flow Statement of the consolidated Cash Flow of ONGC Videsh Limited and its subsidiaries and
Joint Venture for the year ended on that date.

For BATRA SAPRA & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

New Delhl (K.S. Kamath})
21" June, 2007 Partner

M.No. 44492
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DNGE VIDEEH
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH, 2007
{Rupees in million)
Schedule As at As at
31" March, 31" March,
2007 2006
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital 1 10,000.00 3,000.00
Reserves and Surplus 2 33,735.65 43,735.65 18,977.47 2197747
MINORITY INTEREST 0.00 6,708.24
LOAN FUNDS 3
Secured Loans 0.00 44.18
Unsecurad Loans 132,347.57 132,347.57 159,197.66 159,241.84
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY {Refor Note 18 of Scheduls 25) 9,781.21 6,634.78
LIABILITY FOR ABANDONMENT COST 4,503.49 2,518.82
TOTAL 190,367.92 197,081.15
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS 4
Gross Block 73,823.43 28,012.96
Less: Depreciation 23,048.71 10,765.88
Net Block 50,774.72 17,247.08
PRODUCING PROPERTIES (NET) 5 56,056.26 36,805.76
DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATCRY WELLS IN PROGRESS 6 12,241.78 10,711.02
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 7 14,148.78 43,746.20
GOODWILL 33,004.30 18,856.88
Less: Goodwlll Amotisation 5318.41 27,685.89 4,684.72 14,172.16
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Interest Accrued 8 99.57 694.33
Inventories 9 3,648.90 2,163.22
Sundry Dabtors 10 11,202.97 3,943.55
Cash and Bank Balances 1 12,125.22 2,563.37
Loans and Advances 12 21,206.73 76,889.45
48,283.38 86,253.92
LESS: GURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 13 18,735.12 11,817.67
Provisions 14 110.00 37.32
18,845.12 11,854.99
NET CURRENT ASSETS 29,438.27 74,398.93
DEFERRED COLOMBIAN TAXES 2.2 0.00
TOTAL 190,367.92 197,081.15
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 25
Schedules referred to abova form an Integral part of the Accounts
(Jagdish Prasad) (D. K. Sarraf) (R. 5. Butola) (R. 5. Sharma)
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Managing Director Chairman

As per our report of even date attached
For BATRA SAPRA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountanis

New Delhl {K. 5. KAMATH)
21" June, 2007 Pariner (M. No.44492)



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS AGCCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2007

INCOME

Sales
Other Income
Increase/(Decrease) in Stocks

EXPENDITURE

Production, Transportation, Selling and Distribution Expenditure

Depreclatlon, Depletion and Amertisation
Financing Gosts
Provisions and Write-Offs (Net)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Adjustments relating to Prlor Perlod (Net)
Provision for Taxation

Current Year Tax

Deferred Tax

Fringe Benefit Tax

Wealth Tax

Earlier Years Tax

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

LESS : Share of Profit / (Luss) - MINORITY INTEREST
GROUP PROFIT AFTER TAX

Add: Profit brought forward from last year
Balance Available for Appropriation
Transfer to General Reserve

Balance Garried 1o Balance Sheet

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NOTES TO THE AGCOUNTS

Schedules referrad to above form an Intagral part of the Accounts

{Jagdish Prasad) (D. K. Sarraf)
Company Secretary Director (Finance)
New Delhi

21* June, 2007

(Rupses in million)

Schedule 2006-07 2005-06
15 115,539.95 77,921.87
16 3.073.03 3,770.99
17 396.57 14.42
119,009.55 81,707.28
18 65,039.50 49,951.88
19 21,335.02 11,204.13
20 (2,209.59) {965.25)
2 1,400.37 39417
85,574.30 60,584.93
33,435.25 21,122.35
22 4,167.28 4,185.34
9,830.25 5,975.16
2,776.21 2,347.79
15.08 8.40
13.55 13.59
0.00 {110.73)
16,632.87 B,702.84
0.00 (309.12)
16,632.87 9,011.96
19,234.65 10,872.14
35,867.52 15,884.10
1,052.55 649.45
34,814.97 19,234.65
_35,867.52 _19,884.10
24
25
(R. 8. Butola) {R. 5. Sharma)
Managing Director Chalrman

As per cur report of even date attached
For BATRA SAPRA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountanis

(K. S. KAMATH)
Partner (M. No.44492)
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SCHEDULE-1

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
100,000,000 (Previous year 50,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100 each

Issued, Subscribed, Called and Paid Up

100,000,000 (Previous year 30,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100 each
fully paid up in cash (The entire share capital is held by 0il and Natural Gas
Gorporation Limited and its nominegs)

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-2

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve

General Reserve

Opening balance

Less: Adjustment for Employess Benefits
Add:Transfer from Profit and Loss Account
Forelgn Exchange Translation Reserve
Profit and Loss Account

Opening Balance

Adjustment

Add: Addition during the year

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-3

LOANS

SECURED LOANS

Overdraft from Bank

(Secured by Fixed Deposits with Bank}
UNSECURED LOANS

Long Term Loans

Indian Rupee Loans

From Oil Industry Development Board
(Guararteed by Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited)
From il and Natural Gas Corporation Limited
Foreign Currency Loans

Non- Recourse Deferred Credit

(In respect of Joint Venture)

TOTAL
Repayable within one year

As at
31* March,
2007

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

Az al
31" March,
2007

174.08

1,781.95
13.42

1,052.55 2,521.08

(3,320.32)

19,234.66
(754.16)

15,580.32 34,060.81

33,735.65

As at
31* March,
2007

130,941.59

1,405.98

132,347.57
240.90

{Rupeas in million)

As at
31° March,
2006

5,000.00

3,000.00

{Rupees in million}

As at
31" March,
2008
174.08
1,132.50
0.00
£548.45 1,781.95
(2,213.21)
10,872.14
0.00

8,362.51 19,234.65

18,977.47

{Rupesas In milllon}

As at
31" March,
2006

4418

0.00
61.25

157,617.69

1,518.72

159,241.84
206.68



BROSE BLOCK
Additions Foraign
duringthe | Currency
year | Translation
Ad|ustment
0.00 0.00
1,387.6¢ (37.97)
40,354.80 | (306.89)
36.21 36.48
86.03 (35.32)
3,583.12 Fakul
4542185  (271.46)
757 0.00
543542 (271.48)
7441.43 243.79
45,034.19 0.00
7,258.82 0.00

Doletions/
Adjustments
during the
yoar

(729.08)
(3.56)
(3.00)

89.09
{848.53)

0.00
{848.53)

12.28

67.09

11.58

Transfer from Development & Exploratory Wells-in-Progress

SCHEDULE-4
FIXED ASSETS
PARTICULARS
Asat
1% Aprll,
2008
Land {Leasshold) 1,354.16
Bullding 618.77
Plant & Machinery 26,296.18
Compulers 162.01
Vshicles 282.52
Fumiture & Fittings
and Equipmanis 297.97
2801251
Intangibles - Software 0.45
TOTAL 28,012.08
Pravious year 20,340.02
The above Includes
the Company's Share
in Joint Venture Asseiz  13,637.42
Previous year 6,390.08
SCHEDULE-5
PRODUCING PROPERTIES
Gross Cost
Opening Balance
Acquisition Cost
Expenditure during the year
Estimated Abandonment Costs
Adjustment
Forelgn Currency Translatlon Adjustment
Total Gross (A)
Less: Depletion
Opening Balance
Depletion for the year
Adjustment

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Total Depletion (B)

NET PRODUCING PROPERTIES (A - B)

As at

31" Mareh,
2007
1,354.16
1,968.49
66,074.35
23817
31623

3,883.01
73,815.41

8.02
73,823.43

28,012.96

08,614.62

13,637.42

DEPRECIATION

Upt te

31" March,
2006

000

B67.73
10,385.00
97.83
119.10

86.00
10,785.66

0.22
10,785.88

8,326.76

6,A48.95

4,056.87

For the
Yoar

0.00
6311
5,028.49
28.49
46.58

14451
511118

7.66
B 11884

2,362.57

5,602.95
1,397.52

Forelgn = Daletlona /
Currency Adjustments

Transiation
Adustmant

0.00
(42.80)
(89.36)

46.39
(26.67)

7113
{#1.31)

0.00
{11.31)

82.58

As at
31" Margh,
2007

82,013.58
2,333.17
21,106.94
8,787.40
1,984.67
(588.80)
(117.18)
84,920.38

15,207.82
12,589.83
1,399.80
(333.33)
28,864.12

yoar
0.00
0.00

(6,152.44)
{13.32)
{19.94)

20.40

{8,205.30)

0.00

{8,205.30)

6.03

641
5.44

e
ST
o o i

- .;‘H‘ &Y

(Rupees In milllon)

NET BLOCK
Upto 31" Asat  Asal
Mareh, | 31" £l
2007 March,  March,
| 2007 2006
0.00 | 135416 1,354.18
604 188045 55104
2231657 | 43,757.78 14911.18

18603 5314 6508

15885 15728 16342

209124 | 357177 20197
23,040.83 | 50,774.58 17,248.84

T.58 | 0.14 0.23

2304871 | 50,774.72 17,247.08

10.765.‘! 17,247.08 12,013.26

10,046.40 | 47,660.03 B,188.47
5,448.5! 8,188.47 2,333.21

(Rupees In mlillion)

As at
31" March,
2006

26,355.30
11,495.52
7,640.83
3,610.31
2,518.82
0.00
392.80
52,013.58

10,408.14
4,615.23
0.00
184.45
15,207.82

36,805.76

27
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SCHEDULE-6

DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATORY WELLS IN PROGRESS

A. Development Wells in Progress
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Adjustments during the year
Less: Transfer to Producing Properties
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment
Development Wells in Progress (A)

B. Exploratory Wells In Progress
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Adjustments during the year
Wells written back during the year
Less: Transfer to Producing Properties
Less: Wells written off during the year
Less: Provision for Wells drilled under Service Gontract
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment
Exploratory Wells In Progress {(B)

DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATORY WELLS IN PROGRESS {A--B)

SCHEDULE-7

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Block 06.1, Vietnam

Block 127, Vietnam

Block 128, Vietnam

Sakhalin-1 Project, Russia
Block-XXIV, Syria

Block 5A, Sudan

Block 5B, Sudan

Block 6, North Ramadan, Egypt
Block A1, Myanmar

Block A3, Myanmar

Black 81/1, Libya

Najwat Najam Oil Structurs, Qatar
Block 25, 28, 27, 28, 29, 36 and P35 (Part), Cuba
Block BG-10, Brazil

GNPOC, Sudan

Others

TOTAL

As at
31* March,
2007

8,013.50
5,758.85
(2,989.98)
T482.17
(61.12)
3,238.88

2,697.52
8,953.53

(0.63)
1,353.69
1,305.23
1,402.40
1,287.30

(6.28)
9,002.90

12,241.78

As at
31% March,
2007

1,412.50
92.54
92.54

1.403.75
19.81

0.00

1,046.95
31.76
32.46
38.88

268.92
3271.75
346.91
1,644.28
338.39
1,051.34

14,148.78

{Rupeas in million)

As at
31° March,
2006

3,400.81
3.710.07
4,505.54
3,610.31

7.39
8,013.50

3,129.37
1,848.20
(676.48)
0.00
0.00
1,630.37
0.00
35.80
2,607.52

10,711.02

{Rupees in million)

As at
31" March,
2006

223.63
0.00
0.00

36,307.15
19.81
5,294.38
1,046.95
31.76
0.00
24.56

268.92

327.75
0.00
0.00

201.29
0.00

43,746.20



SCHEDULE-8

INTEREST ACCRUED

{Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)

Interest Accrusd On
Deposits with Banks
Carry Finance
Others

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-9

INVENTORIES
{As taken, valued and certified by the Management)

Finished Goods

Stores and Spares

Less: Provision for Non-moving / Surplus Stores
{In respect of Joint Venture)

Stores & Spares - Farsi Block, Iran

Less: Written off io Net Realisable Value

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-10

SUNDRY DEBTORS

{Unsecured)

Debts outstanding for 2 period exceeding six months:
Consldered Good
Considered Doubtiul

Other Debts:
Considered Good
Considered Doubtful

TOTAL

Ag at
31" March,
2007

48.69
0.00
10.868

99.57

Ag at
31" March,

2007

656.07
3,097.69

109.38 2,988.31

5.33 4,52

3,648.90

As at
31" March,
2007

11,202.97
0.00

11,202.97

(Rupees in million)

As al
31" March,
2006

34.88
§51.17
8.28

694.33

(Rupees in million)

As at
31" March,
2006
33.63
2,132.39
51.99 2,080.40
49.19
0.00 49.19
2,163.22

{Rupees in million)

As al
31" March,
2006

15.84
0.00

3,927.71
0.00
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SCHEDULE-11

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

A. Gash Balances

a)
b)
c)

At New Delhi
At Khartoum
At Amsterdam

B. Balances with Scheduled Banks

a)
b)

On Current Account
On Deposit Accounts

C. Balances with Non-Scheduled Banks

a)
b)
¢)
d)
€)
f)

o
h)
i)

)i

k)
)

m)
n)
0)
p)
a
U]

y

On SB Account (USD) with Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam, HCMC, Vietnam
{Maximum balance during the year Rs.756.34 Million Prgvious year Rs. 590.75 Million)

0n SB Account (VND) with Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam, HCMC, Vietnam
(Maximum balance during the year Rs.752.01 Million Previous year Re. 593.03 Million)
On Current Accounts (USD) with Giti Bank, HCMG, Vietnam

{Maximum balance during the year Rs.0.78 Million Previous year Rs.3.69 Million)

On Current Account (VND) with Citi Bank, HCMC, Vietnam

{Maximum balance during the year Rs.85.66 Million Pravious year Rs. 8§1.67 Million)
0On Current Account with Bank of Moscow, Sakhalin

(Maximum balance during the year Rs.0.22 Million Previous year Rs. 0.71 Million)

On Deposit Account (VND) with Citi Bank, HCMC, Vietnam

{Maximum balance during the year Rs.90.11 Million Previous year Rs.44.86 Million)
On Current Account (USD) with ABN Amro Bank, Sakhalin

(Maximum balance during the year Rs 931.22 Milllon Previous year Rs 1215.18 Milllon)
On Gurrent Account (RBL) with ABN Amro Bank, Sakhalin

{Maximum balance during the year Rs 11.13 Million Previous year Rs 0.27 Million)
On Current Account (USD) with Bank of Commerce and Development, Libya
{Maximum balance during the year Rs 2.82 Million Previous year Rs 5.08 Million)

On Gurrent Account {LD) with Bank of Gommerce and Development, Libya

(Maximum balance during the year Rs.2.22 Million Previous year Rs.2.23 Million)

On Current Account (QAR) with HSBC Bank, Qatar

{Maximum balance during the year Rs.5.56 Million Previous year Nil)

On Current Account (USD) with Banco Fincerio Internacionle SA, Cuba

(Maximum balance during the year Rs.1.59 Million Previous year Nil)

On Gurrent Account (EURO) with Deutsche Bank Amsterdam

{Maximum balance during the year Rs. 49.52 Million Previous year Rs 157.37 Million)
On Current Account (GBP) with Deutsche Bank Amsterdam

{Maximum balance during the year Rs 1,482.39 Million Previous year Rs 1,422.18 Million)

On Gurrent Account (GBP} with ICIGI London
(Maximum balance during the year Rs 6.85 Million Previous year Rs 8.53 Millien)

On Gurrent Account (USD) with Mashreq Bank, Khartoum, Sudan

{Maximum balance during the year Rs 21.57 Million Previous year Rs 21.71 Million)
On Current Account (Sudanees Dinar) with Mashreq Bank, Khartoum, Sudan
{Maximum balance during the year Rs 4.81 Million Previous year Rs 0.02 Millon)
On Current Account (USD) with Citi Bank, Lagos, Nigeria

(Maximum balance during the year Rs 26.69 Million Pravious year Nil)

On Current Account ( Naira) with Citi Bank, Lagos, Nigeria
(Maximum balance during the year Rs 4.63 Million Previous year Nil)

D. Cash and Bank Balances
{In respect of JoInt Ventura)

TOTAL

{Rupeas in million)

31" M::c:f " M:r’l:;f
2007 2006
825.54 0.08
1.95 208
0.02 0.01
517.45 23458
7,528.58 61.00
0.04 0.03
0.02 0.14
0.06 0.44
0.28 0.30
0.00 0.22
0.00 42.06
a1.18 80.89
0.10 0.15
1.35 1.94
0.24 222
0.50 0.00
1.30 0.00
0.16 0.52
6.18 0.48
0.04 370
4.70 067
23.00 0.65
26.66 0.00
2.29 0.00
3,103.57 2131.21
12,125.22 2,563.37




SCHEDULE-12

LOANS AND ADVANCES

A. Secured - Considered Good
Loans and Advances to Employees

B. Unsecured - Considered Good
Carry Finance to SMNG-S, Russla
Carry Finance to RN ASTRA, Russia
Carry Finance to Sudapet, Sudan
Loans and Advances to Employees
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for valug to be received
Receivable from ONGC Mittal Energy Ltd.
Other Receivable
OMEL - Loan for Nigeria Project
Other Deposits
VAT Receivable
Investment in Lease
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
{In respect of Joint Vienture)
Income Tax :
Advance Payment of Income Tax
Less: Provision
Unsecured - Considered Good (B)

C. Unsecured - Considered Doubiful
Carry Finance fo Sudapet, Sudan
Loan to Oil India Limited

Less: Provisions for Doubtful Loans and Advances
Unsecured - Consldered Doubtful (C}

LOANS AND ADVANGES {A+B+C)

SCHEDULE-13

GURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Craditors for Supplies/ Works

Small Scale Undertakings

(Other than Small Scale Undertakings

Deposits

Advance from Customers

Payable fo 0il and Natural Gas Corporation Limited
Other Liabilities

Amount Payable to Operators

Deferred Gredit on Gas Sales

Tax Payable by Subsidiary and Jont Venture Companies in foreign country

Sundry Craditors for Supplles/ Works

{In respect of Joint Venture)

Interest Free Advance from ONGC Mittal Energy Limited
Short term advance from Mittal Investments Sarl
Interest Payable to ONGC

TOTAL

(Rupees in million)

Ag at As al
31" March, 31" March,
2007 2006
3286 __ 2605
0.00 30,917.66
0.00 22,834.75
1,083.65 912.96
14.25 10.57
201.76 387.28
0.00 7531
1,031.26 0.00
82.59 0.00
474.43 6,362.09
257.33 83.82
6,573.59 7.446.57
8,186.88 6,708.45
4,994.13 1,271.98
1,725.80 3,268.23 148.04 1,123.94
21,174.07 76,863.40
135.06 21.35
0.00 372.16
135.06 393.51
_ 135.06 _ 39351
0.00 0.00
21,206.73 76,889.45
(Rupeas in million)
As at As at
31 March, 31 March,
2007 2006
0.00 0.00
1,729.31 461.27
25.61 0.85
83.22 54.96
b5.72 131.31
4,224.22 763.09
81.72 368.24
0.00 0.92
747.48 0.00
11,787.84 9,958.94
0.00 4491
0.00 3.89
0.00 29.29
18,735.12 11,817.67

Frd
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SCHEDULE-14

{Rupeas in million)

Balance as at Provigion made Ulilisation during Provigion made Balance as at
1° April, 2006 for previous the year for the year 31" March,
years out of 2007
General Reserve

PROVISIONS
Gratuity 19.18 0.00 1.77 7.19 24.60
Laave Encashmert 18.14 0.00 430 15.57 25.41
Post Retirement Medical Benefits/Other Terminal Benefits 0.00 13.42 0.00 42.57 56.99
TOTAL 3732 13.42 6.07 65.33 110.00

SCHEDULE-15

SALES

Crude Oil

Gas

Condensate

Construction Contract Revenue
Transportation and Cther Services

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-16

OTHER INCOME

Interest Income on:

On Deposits with Banks

(Tax deducted at source Rs. 0.16 Million previous year Rs. 0.78 Million)
Carry Finance

Loans and Advances to Employees

Others

Laase Income

Prafit on Sale of Investment

Miscellaneous Receipis

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-17

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN STOCK (FINISHED GOODS)
Glosing Stock

Opening Stock

Less: Adjustment

NET INCREASE/{DEGREASE) IN STOCK

{Rupess in million}

2006-07 2005-06
102,426.16 64,415.49
8,004.31 6,668.00
1,640.76 1,465.78
0.00 2,173.53
3,268.72 3,198.07
115,539.95 71,921.87

{Rupees In milllon}

2006-07 2005-06
498.39 233.94
1,493.41 2,872.11
1.80 132
279.69 19.48
435.14 271.26
0.46 Q.00
364.14 372.90
3,073.03 3,770.99

{Rupees in million)

2006-07 2005-06
410.19 33.63

33.63 19.21
20.01 13.62 0.00 19.21
_ 396.57 _ 144



SCHEDULE-18

PRODUCTION, TRANSPORTATION, SELLING AND
DISTRIBUTION EXPENDITURE

Transportation Expenditure
Production Expenditure
Royalty

Valug Added Tax

Service Tax and Other Lavies
Pipeline Construction Expenses
Staff Expenditure

Rent

Repair & Maintenance
Insurance

Others

TOTAL

2006-07

2,662.86
8,339.25
51,130.17
1,063.02
315.73
0.00
32099
56.92
2
43.34
1,072.31

65,039.50

(Rupees in million)
2005-06

1,826.35
4,376.00
39,060.77
927.24
9.24
2,699.29
452.90
57.63
19.36
50.87
473.23

48,951.88

Hote: The above expenses have been reclasstiad In accordance with Part Il of Schedule VI to the Companles Act, 1958 and exhibited In note - 22 of Schedule '25.

SCHEDULE-19

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION AND AMORTISATION
Depreciation

Less: Capitalised

Depletion

Survey Expenditure

Dry Wells Whitten Off

Acquisition Gost Written Off

Pre-Acquisition Expenses

Amortisation of Goodwill

TOTAL

SCHEDULE-20

FINANCING COSTS

A. Interest On
Loan from Oil Industry Development Board
Loan from Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited
Less: Capitalised
Finance Lease
Others
Sub-Total

B. Exchange Fluctuation
Net Exchange Variation for the Year
Less: Capitalised

TOTAL

6,118.84
3,440.69

147.39
2.67

(2,538.53)
(11.29)

2006-07

2,678.15
12,589.43
2,617.85
1,402.40
0.00
791.89
1,254.90

21,835.02

2006-07

021
144.72
0.00

172.11
317.65

{2,927.24}

{2,209.59)

(Rupees in million)
2005-06

2,362.57

1,192.30 1,170.27

4,615.23
1,010.17
1,639.37

21.44
1,125.12
1,622.53

_11,204.13

(Rupees in million)
2005-06

47

0.00
3.80
31.36
39.87

(1,010.45)

(5.33) (1,005.12)

{965.25)

228
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SCHEDULE-21

{Rupeas in million)

2006-D7 2005-06
PROVISIONS AND WRITE-OFFS (NET)
Provisions for Doubtful Debts 116.06 380.57
Other Write Off 378.80 0.07
Provision for Wells drilled under Service Contract 1,287.30 0.00
Provision for Non Moving Inventory 0.00 14.77
Excess Provisions Written Back (372.79) (1.24)
TOTAL 1,400.37 39417

Hols: The above expenses have been reclassified In accordance with Part Il of Schedule V1 to the Gompanles Act, 1956 and exhibltted In Note - 22 of Schedule ‘25",

SCHEDULE-22

{Rupees in million}

Z2006-07 2005-06
ADJUSTMENTS RELATING TO PRIOR PERIOD (NET)
A. Expense
Survey Expenses (334.76) 669.53
Dry Wells Expenses (1353.68) 414.08
Amortisation of Goodwill (621.21) 3062.18
Other Expenses 20.16 46.72
Depreciation 6456.78 0.00
Sub-Tatal 4167.28 4192.51
B. Income
Miscellaneous tems 0.00 717
Sub-Total 0.00 117
TOTAL {A - B) 4167.28 4185.34

SCHEDULE-23
(Amount in Rupees)

As at As at
31* March, 31° March,
2007 2006
EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share 224.44 300.40

(Per Sharg of Rs. 100 gach)

Mote: Earnings Per Equity Share has been computed by dividing the net profit after taxation of Rs. 16,632.87 Million (Previous Year Rs. 9,011.96 Million) by weighted average number
of aquity shares of 74,109,581 (Pravious year 30,000,000)
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SCHEDULE-24

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

2.1

2.2

2.3

231

232

233

24

Principles of Consolldation:

The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to ONGC Videsh Limited (Company), ONGC Nile Ganga B.V., Netherlands (Subsidiary),
ONGC Narmada Limited, Nigeria (Subsidiary), ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited (Subsidiary) and jointly controlled entity ONGC
Mittal Energy Limited, Cyprus (Joint Venture Company). The Financial Statements of the Gompany, its Subsidiaries and Joint Venture
Company have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised profits or
losses, unless indicated otherwise.

The financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries and Joint Venture Company have been incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements by translating to Indian rupees following the principles for translation of the financial statements of Non-integral Foreign
Operation as |aid down in Accounting Standard (AS) 11 viz. Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates (revised 2003).

Accounting Policies:

Accounting Conventions:

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost conventions in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). The company follows Successful Efforts Method as per the Guidance Note on Accounting for Oil and Gas
Producing Activities issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.
Generally, revenues are recognized on accrual basis with provision made for known losses and expenses.

Acquisition, Exploration, Development, Abandenment and Production Cosis:

Acquisition Cost:

Acquisition costs of an oil and gas property in exploration/development stage is taken to capital work in progress. Such costs are
capitalized by transferring to Producing Property when it is ready to commence commercial production. In case of abandonment of
the property, such costs are expensed. Acquisition costs of a producing oil and gas property are capitalized as Producing Property.

Survey Costs:

Cost of Surveys and prospecting activities conducted in the search of oil and gas are expensed in the year in which these are
incurred.

Exploratory/Development Wells In Progress Costs:

Exploration costs involved in drilling and equipping exploratory and appraisal wells, cost of drilling exploratory type siratagraphic test
wells are initially taken t0 capital work in progress as exploratory wells in progress till the time these are either capitalized to
producing properties when ready to commence commercial production or expensed in the year when determined to be dry or of no
further use, as the case may be.

All costs relating to development wells, development type stratagraphic test wells, service wells, are initially taken to capital work in
progress as development wells in progress and capitalized to producing properties when ready to commence commercial
production.

Exploratory wells in progress which are more than two years old from the date of completion of drilling are charged to Profit and
Loss Account except those wells which have proved reserves and the development of the fields in which the wells are located has
been planned.

Abandonment Gosts:

Costs relating to dismantling, abandoning and restoring well sites and allied facilities are provided as abandonment costs based on
the provisions under respective agreements governing company's activities in the field/ projects.
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2.5

3.1

3.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

71

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

8.3

Production Costs:

Production costs include pre-wellhead and post-wellhead expenses including depreciation and applicable operating costs of support
equipment and facilities.

Producing Properiies:

Producing properties are created in respect of a field/project having proved developed oil and gas reserves when any well in the
field/project is ready to commence commercial production. Development wells are capitalized to producing properties when ready to
commence commercial production.

All acquisition costs, cost of successful exploratory wells and of all development wells, all related development costs incluging
depreciation on support equipment and facilities and estimated future abandonment costs relating to producing properties are
capitalized as Producing Properties.

Depletion of Producing Properties:

Producing properties are depleted using the “Unit of Production Method”. The rate of depletion for all capitalized costs is computed
with reference to the field/project/amortization base by considering the related proved and developed reserves excepting for
acquisition costs which are depleted by considering the proved reserves. These reserves are estimated annually.

Impalrment:
Impairment loss is determined for each field/project and adjusted for in the ¢arrying cost.

At each balance sheet date, an assessment of the recoverable amount based on the valug in use method is camried out in respect of
each individual field/project and compared with the carrying amount and if 2 permanent diminution in value is identified, the asset is
impaired to the net recoverable amount. However, provision for impairment being carried forward, is reviewed for write back, if any.

Joint Vanturas:

The Company has entered imto overseas joint ventures with others. In such joint ventures as per the contractual arrangements, the
Company shares control with other venturers. The financial statements reflect the share of the Company's assets and liabilities as
well as income and expenditure of Joint Venture Operations which are accounted for as per various joint venture agreements on a
line by line basis along with similar items in the Company's financial statements, except in cases of leases, abandonment,
impairment, depletion and depreciation which are accounted based on accounting policies of the Company.

The reserves of hydrocarbons in the joint ventures are taken in proportion to the participating interest of the Gompany.
Fixed Assels:

Fixed assets (including those taken on finance lease, support equipment and facilities) are stated at historical cost.

Al costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets till the ime of commissioning of such assgts are capitalized.

Costs incurred on intangible assets, resulting in future economic benefits are capitalized as intangible assets and amortized on
written down value method beginning from the date of capitalization.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on fixed assets (including those taken on finance lease) is provided for under the written down value method in
accordance with Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

Leasehold land is amortized over the lease period.

Depreciation on adjustments to fixed assets on account of exchange differences and price variation is provided for prospectively
over the remaining useful life of such assets.
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11.1

11.2

11.3
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11.5

11.6
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Depreciation on fixed assets (including those taken on finance lease, support equipment and facilities) used for exploration and
drilling activities and on facilities is initially capitalized as part of exploration or development costs and expensed/depleted as stated
in policy 2 and 3 above.

Inveniories:

Crude oil and condensate are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower.

Natural gas in pipeline and crude oil/condensate stock in flow lines/Gathering Stations are not valued.

Inventory of stores and spares is valued at Weighted Average Cost or net realizable value, if available, whichever is lower,
Investments:

Long-term investments are valued at cost. Provision is made for any diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such
investments.

Current investments are valued at lower of cost or fair value.
Foraign Currency Transactions and Foraign Operations:

Foreign currency transactions on initial recognition in the reporting currency are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on
the date of transaction.

At gach Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are franslated using the average of the exchange rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date and non-monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction or on the
date when the fair value of such item was determined.

Losses or gains relating to the loans/deferred credits utilized for acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted to the carrying cost of the
relevant assets. All other exchange differences arising on the settliement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported in previous financial statements are
recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

In respect of the Company's integral foreign operations:

(a)  The foreign curency fransactions on initial recognition in the reporting currency are recorded following the policy stated in
11.1, For practical reasons, the average exchange rate of the relevant month is taken for the transactions of the month in
respect of joint venture operations, where actual date of transaction is not available.

{b)  Ateach Balance Sheet date, monetary and non-monetary items are translated following the policy stated in 11.2.
{c) Al exchange differences are treated following the policy stated in 11.3.

The financial statements of the non-integral foreign operations of the company are incorporated in the financial statements using the

following principles:

(@) the assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of the non-integral foreign operation are translated at the
average of the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the balance sheet;

({b) income and expense items of the non-integral foreign operation are translated at the average exchange rates for the period to
which the financial statements relate; and

{c) all resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a foreign currency franslation reserve until the disposal of the net
investment in the non-integral foreign operation.

Exchange differences arising on the company's net investment in a non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in a forgign
currency translation reserve until the disposal of such investment, at which time they are recognized as income or as expenses.

227
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12.  Assets given on Lease:

12.1  Assets given on finance lease are accounted for as per Accounting Standard (AS) 19 “Leases” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India. Such assets are included as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the ease.

12.2  |Initial direct costs incurred in respect of finance leases are recognised in the statement of profit and 10ss in the year in which such
costs are incurred.

13.  Revenue Recognition:

13.1  Revenue from sale of products is recognized on transfer of custody to customers. Any difference as of the reporting date between
the entitiement quantity minus the quantities sold in respect of crude oil (including condensate}, if positive is treated as inventory
and, if negative, is adjusted to revenue by recording the same as liability.

13.2  Sales are inclusive of all statutory levies and any tax liability of the Company that may be paid by the govemment based on the
provisions under agreements governing Company's activities in the respective field/ project.

13.3  Any payment received in respect of short lifted gas quantity for which an cbligation exists to supply such gas in subsequent pariods
is recognized as Deferred Revenue in the year of receipt. The same is recognized as revenue in the year in which such gas is
actually supplied for the quantity supplied or in the year in which the obligation to supply such gas ceases, whichever is earlier.

13.4 Revenue in respect of fixed price coniracts is recognized for the quantum of work done on the basis of percentage of completion
method. The quantum of work done is measured in proportion of cost incurred to date to the estimated tofal cost of the contract or
based on reports of physical work done.

13.5 FHnance income in respect of assets given on finance lease is recognized based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

13.6  Revenue in respect of interest on delayed realizations is recognized when there is reasonable certainty regarding ultimate collection.

14. Transportation Costs:

Any payment made in respect of the quantity of gas short transported, for which the right exists to transport such gas in subsequent
periods at no charge, is treated as Deferred Expenditure in the year of payment. The same is treated as cost in the year in which
the gas is actually transported for the quartity transported or in the year in which the right to transport such gas ceases, whichever
is earlier.

16. Employea Banafils:

151  Contribution to Provident Fund and Composite Social Security Scheme is made as per the rules of the parent company. The same is
paid to funds administered through trusts.

15.2  Provisions for gratuity, leave engashment and other employee benefits are made as per actuarial valuation at the end of the financial
year. The same are not funded.

1E. Borrowing Costs:
Borrowing Costs specifically identified to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of such asset till
such time when all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. A qualifying
asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to
Profit and Loss Account.

C. Dther significant accounting policies:

These are set out under “Significant Accounting Policies” of the respective Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries
and Joint Venture Company.



SCHEDULE - 25
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1)

2)

3)

4)

The Gonsolidated Financial Statements represent consolidation of Accounts of the Company (ONGC Videsh Limited), its Subsidiaries
and Joint Venture Company. The consolidated accounts incorporate financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries and the
Joint Venture Gompany for the year ended 31 March, 2007 as detailed below:

Name of the Subsidiarles / Country of Proportion of Status of Audht
Jointly Controlled Entity Incorporation Ownership Interest ason
31" Mareh, 2007

31" March, 2007 = 31" March, 2006
ONGC Nile Ganga BY (ONGBV) Netherlands 100% 100% Audited
ONGC Bonny Brahamputra Limited {OBBL) Nigeria NA 100% NA
ONGC Narmada Limited {ONL) Nigeria 100% 100% Audited
ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited (OAAL) Bermuda 100% NA Audited
ONGC Mittal Energy Limited (OMEL) Cyprus 50% 50% Unaudited

The Company incorporated one Subsidiary (viz. ONGC Amazon Alaknanda Limited, Bermuda) during the year. The Subsidiary ONGC
Bonny Brahamputra Limited, Nigeria was divested during the year.

In view of different set of envirenment in which the Subsidiaries and the Joint Venture Company operate, the accounting policies
followed for treatment of depreciation on fixed assets by the Subsidiary, OAAL and sales revenue and royalties by the Subsidiary,
ONGBYV, are different from the accounting policies of the Company. Such different accounting policies have been adopted in respect
of the following:

(@) Depreciation on Fixed Asset:
The Subsidiary - DAAL provides depreciation on fixed assets as per US GAAP The amount involved is Rs 25.22 Million
{Previous year nil) shown as depreciation under Schedule 19.

{b) Revenue Recognition:
The Subsidiary - ONGBV follows the entitliement method for revenue recognition associated with sale of crude oil and liquids
for its share of petroleumn production as specified in the Exploration Production Sharing Agraement (EPSA) and Grude Qil
Pipaline Agreement (COPA). The amount involved is Rs 81,989.34 Million (Previous year Rs 61,005.04 Million) shown as
sales under Schedule 15.

{c) Royalties:
The Subsidiary - ONGBV conducts its operations in Sudan jointly with the national oil company of Sudan (Sudapet) among
others. All government stakes other than income taxes are considered to be royalty interest. Royalties on production
represents the entitlement of the government of Sudan to a portion of ONGBV's share of crude oil and liquid production and
are recorded using the rates in effect under the terms of the contract at the time of production. Royalties / taxes in Syrian
concession are accourted similarly by ONGBV. The amount involved is Rs 49,773.30 Million (Previous year Rs 38,919.47
Million) under the head Royalty in Schedule 18.

{d The Subsidiaries and the Joint Venture Company provide for the retirement benefits in accordance with the laws of their
respective jurisdictions. The net impact on account of the difference in accounting policy is not ascertainable.

Accounting Policies:

a) During the year, the Company has reflected its accounting policy in respect of costs incurred on intangible assets and the
amortization thereof. This has no impact on the results.

b) During the year, the Company has reflected its accounting policy in respect of valuation of stores and spares. This has no
impact on the results.

c) During the year, the Company has reflected treatment in its accounting policies on revenue recognition for:

i) Underlift / ovenriift quantity of crude oil (including condensate) as of the reporting date. This has no impact on the results.
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6)
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iy Tax Liability of the Company paid by the host government based on the provisions under agreements governing
Company's activities in the respective field/ project. This has no impact on the results.

d} During the year, the Company has reflected basis of provision for valuation of other employee benefits in its accounting
policy for other employee benefits. An amount of Rs 13.42 Million has been adjusted against the reserves of the previous
year for the provision made during the year in respect of previous years. The net impact on the results for the year amounted
to Rs 3.99 Million, being provision for the year.

e) The Subsidiary ONGBY changed the method of providing depreciation on its pipeline and corporate assets from Straight Line
Value Method to Written Down Value Method with retrospective effect. Accordingly, depreciation on such assets is USD
155.99 Million equivalent to Rs 7,062.45 Million including USD 142.61 Million equivalent to Rs 6,456.67 Million for earlier
years. The net impact on the results for the year is the decrease in profits by Rs 6,068.68 Million and cormresponding
decrease In net block of fixed assets.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve:

The Gompany has followed the Accounting Standard (AS) 11 viz. Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (revised 2003)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for incorporating in the consolidated financial statements following the
principles for transiation of the financial statements of Non-integral Foreign Operation. Accordingly, the resulting exchange loss of
Rs. 1,107.12 Million (Previous Year Rs 738.57 Million exchange gain) has been accounted as foreign currency translation reserve
and shown in Schedule 2 as per details given below:

(Rupees In million)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06
Opening Balance 2,213.21 2,951.78
Additions during the current year 1,107.12 (738.57)
Closing balance 3,320.33 2,213.21

Title to Fixed Assels under Production Sharing Agreements:

The Company, the Subsidiaries and Joint Venture Gompany in consortium with other partners (Consortium) carry on their busingss
in respect of exploration, development and production of hydrocarbons under agreements with the host governments. In several of
these agreements governing activities in the fields / projects, the agreements provide that the title to the fixed assets and other
ancillary installations shall pass to host government or its nominated entities either upon acquisition / first use of such assets or
upon 100% recovery of such costs through allocation of “Cost Qil” and “Cost Gas” or upon relinquishment of the relevant contract
areas or termination of the relevant agreement. However, as per the terms of the agreements, the Gonsortium and/ or Qperator has
the qustody of all such assets and is entitled to use, free of charge all such assets for Petroleum Operations fill the full term of the
respective agreements. The Gonsortium also bears the custody and maintenance of sugh assets and all risks of accidental loss and
damage and all costs necessary to maintain such assets and to replace or repair such damage or loss. Under the circumstances,
such assets are kept in the records of the Company, Subsidiaries or the Joint Venture Company, as the case may be, till the full term
of the respective agreements.

Amorlization of Goodwill:

In March 2003, the Company had acquired 100% shares of Talisman Greater Nile B.V. (TGNBV). TNGBV had 25% Participating
Interest in Greater Nile Qil Project (GNOP), Sudan and was later rechristened as ONGC Nile Ganga B.V. (ONGBV). The difference
between the purchase consideration and net assets of TGNBY on the date of acquisition, amounting to Rs 11,660.63 Million, had
been reflected as goodwill in the consolidated accounts of the Gompany since the year 2002-03. Following prudent accounting, the
Company had, during the previous financial year, started amortizing the goodwill with retrospective effect from the year 2002-03
based on Unit of Production Method. Goodwill amortized during the year by the Company amounted to Rs 1,254.90 Million
{Previous year Rs 4,063.51 Million, including Rs 3,062.18 Million for the past years) representing Rs 784.15 Million in respect of
GNOP, Sudan and Rs 470.75 Million in respect of MECL, Colombia.

The Company had amortized goodwill amounting to Rs 621.20 Million in respect of AFPC, Syria Project of Subsidiary ONGBVY during
the financial year 2005-06 in the absence of consolidated accounts. The Subsidiary ONGBY in its consolidated accounts has
allocated the acquisition costs over the assets and accordingly, the goodwill amortized during the financial year 2005-06 (Rs 621.20
Million) has been written back during the year.
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Details of Joint Ventures:
The details of Company's and its Subsidiaries significant joint ventures as on 31% March, 2007 are as under:

Sr.
No.

1.

10.

11.

12.

13

14.

Name of the Project and
Country of Operation

Block 06.1 Project,
Vietnam, Offshore

Block 1a, 1b, 2a, 2b & 4
{GNOP) Project,
Sudan, Onshore

Sakhalin -1 Project,
Russia, Offshore

AFPG Project
Syria, Onshore
{Through Himalaya
Energy Syria B.V)

MECL, Colombia, Onshore
{Through Mansarovar Energy
Colombia Limited)

Block 5A Project,
Sudan, Onshore

Block BC-10 Project,
Brazil, Offshore

Block A-1Project, Myanmar,
Offshore

Block A-3 Project Myanmar,
Oftshore

Farsi Block Project,
Iran, Offshore

Block NG - 188 & NC - 189
Project, Libya, Onshore

Block XXIV Project,
Syria, Onshore

Block 5B Project,

Sudan, Onshore

Block 6 North Ramadan
Project, Eqypt, Offshore

Company's participating
share (%}

45%

25%

20%

38.75%

50%

24.125%

15%

20%

20%

40%

49%

60%

23.5%

70%

Other Consortium

British Petroleum - 35%
Petrovieinam - 20%

CNPC - 40%
Petronas - 30%
Sudapet - 5%

Bxoion Mobil - 30%

SODECO - 30%
SMNG - 11.5%
R N Astra - 8.5%

Fulin - 50%
Mittals - 11.25%

Sinopec - 50%

Petronas - 68.875%

Sudapet - 7%

Shell - 50%
Petrobras - 35%

Daewoo - 60%
KOGAS - 10%
GAIL - 10%

Daewoo - 60%
KOGAS - 10%
GAIL - 10%

10C - 40%
OIL - 20%

TPOC - 51%

IPR - 40%

Petronas - 41%
Lundin - 24.5%
Sudapet - 11%

IPR Red Sea - 30%

Project
Status

The project is under
production.

The project is under
production.

The project is under
production and development.

The project is under
production.

The project is under
production and development.

The project is under
exploration, production
and development.

The project is under
development.

The project is under

exploration and appraisal.

The project is under
exploration and appraisal.

The project is under
exploration.

The project is under
exploration.

The Project is under
exploration.

The project is under

exploration.

The project is under
exploration.

Fry
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15. ' Block 2, Joint Development 13.5% Sinopec JDZ/ The project is under
Zone, Nigeria / Sao Tome Addax/ERHC - 65% exploration.
Principe (STP), Offshore Equator - 9%
A & Hatman Ltd. - 2.5%
Foby - 5%
Momo - 5%
16. | Block 25-29, 35 (Part) & 30% Repsol - 40% The project is under
36 Project, Cuba, Offshore Hydro - 30% exploration.
17.  Khartoum - Port Sudan Pipeline 90% OIL - 10% The pipeline has been

Project, Sudan completed and is under Lease.
*Abbreviations used: Addax - Addax Energy Nigera Limited; British Pefroleum - BP Exploration Operating Company Limited; CNPC - China National Petroleum
Corporation; Daewoo - Daewoo International Corporation; EMO - EMO Exploration & Production Limited; Equator - Equator Exploration JDZ Block 2 Limited;
ERHC - Energy Nigeria JDZ Block 2 Limited; Ex¢on - Mobil Exxon Neftegas Limited; Foby - Foby Energy Company Limited; Fulin - Fulin Investments Sarl; GAIL - GAIL
(Indla) Limited; Hydro - Hydro Ol and Gas; I0C - Indian Oll Comporation Limited; IPR - IPR Mediterrangan Exploration Limited; IPR Red Sea - IPR Energy Red Sea Inc.;
KOGAS - Korea Gas Corporation; Lundin - Lundin Muglad Limited; Mittals - Mittal Investments Sarl; Momo - Momo Deepwater JDZ Limited; OIL - il India Limited;
Petrobras - Petroleo Brasileiro S.A.; Petronas - Petronas Carigali Overseas Sdn Bhd; Petrovietnam - Vietnam Qil and Gas Corporation; Repsol - Repsol YPF Guba SA; Shell
- Shell Brazll Lida; Sinopac - Sinopac Overseas Oll and Gas Limitad; Sinopec JDZ - Sinopec JDZ Block 2 Limited; SMNG - Sakhallnmomafiagas Shalf; SODECO - Sakhalin
Qil Development Company Limited; Sudapet - Sudapet Limited; TPOC - Turkish Petroleum Overseas Company Limited.

Gompany's shara in Joint Vantures:
1) The Company, its Subsidiaries' and the Joint Venture Company's share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the
Joint Ventures as furnished by the operator has been incorporated in the financial statement as given below
{Rupees in million)
Project Net Fixed = Net Producing = Capltal Work Exploratory and | Current Assets Cash & Bank Liabliities = Income  Expenditure
Assets Property  In Prograss Development
Wolls In Progress

A. Audited as of
the Reporting Date
Block 54 , Sudan 3,554.50 4,734.32 854.90 1,918.98 10755  728.51 - 224299
Block 1a, 1b, 2a, 2b & 4,
Sudan 1,647.38 17,082.85 338.4 1,771.98 | 2422863 599140 22,701.65 - 44,080.79
AFPC, Syria - 5212.20 55.98 - 6,306.58 307 57276 21,6598  20,208.94
MECL, Colombla B1.31 1,933.11 396.56 - 1,068.97 1,001.59  1,850.86 - 1,268.81
Block BC-10, Brazil - - 1,644.28 1,451.71 84.77 20546 480.34 - 72952
Block A-1 Myanmar 5.84 3248 1,184.07 47.41 8.06 .77 - (705.45)
Block A-3 Myanmar 0.26 38.88 443.41 513 20905 3358 - 68.34
Farsi Block , Iran 1.34 - - 817 12062 15833 - 1,287.83*
Block 5B, Sudan 1.02 1,046.95 - - 4814 3395 - 551.53
Sudan Pipeline - - - 7,156.45 0.04 2,179.84 0.55 204.51*
ONL 13.65 484.91 16.53 26.77 3138 1327 - 197.65
Total (A) 5,285.30 24,972.58 4,048.41 572260  40,852.86 7,733.36 28,753.86 21,1665  70,137.26
B. Audited as of
31° December 2006
Block 06.1 Vietnam 785.42 4,495.49 141250 - 79.62 6483 51463 - 120538
C. Unaudited
Sakhalin-1, Russia 43,305.00 23,588.18 7,403.74 2,206.46 2,683.47 99345 9,343.97 - 725506
Block NC - 188 &
NG - 189, Libya 148 - - 13.34 20.15 6.58 8.67 - -
Block XV, Syria 3.32 19.81 1.96 54.26 18.56 - 78.19
Block CI - 112, Cole D'lvoire - - - - - 0.21 - 113
Block & North Ramadan,
Eqypt 7.21 31.78 476.19 67.73 - s - 7.38
Blocks 25-29, 35 (Parf) &
36, Cuba - - 691 54.35 - - 415 - 320.80
Tolal (C) 43,317.08 22,588.19 7,802.22 2,752.30 2,825.61 1,000.03 9,399.97 - 7,68358
Grand Total (A+8+C) 49,387.80 56,056.26  13,263.13 847480 43,758.09 8,798.22 38,668.46 21,166.53  79,095.20

*Represents expanditure as per joint ventura statament. In the accounts of tha Company, the amount is refiacted after netting off as per the as per tha Accounting Standard (AS) 27 viz.
Financlal Reporting of Interests In Joint Ventures.

The Company's share of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses have been converted into the reporting currency at the averaga exchange rates over the period for which the details
are provided by the Operators. Generally the detalls are provided by the operators on monthly basls except In respect of Sakhalln-1, Russla Project, where the detalls are provided by
the Operator on quarterly basis.
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iy The Company's share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses incorporated in the financial statements in respeet of Joint
Veniture Company is given below:

{Rupees in million)
Particulars Amount
a) Net Fixed Assets 14.15
b} Net Producing Property -
c) Capital Work in Progress 3.614.97
d} Exploratory & Development Wells-in-Progress -
e} Current Assets 570.41
f) Cashand Bank 825.41
g) Liabilities 139.71
h) Incomes 30.40
i) Expenditure 216.37

Kharioum - Port Sudan Pipeline Project:

The Company had completed the execution of the 12°X741 Kms multi-product pipeline from Khartoum Refinery fo Port Sudan for
the Ministry of Energy and Mining of the Government of Sudan (MEM) on Build, Own, Lease and Transfer (BOLT) basis and handed
over the same to MEM during the previous financial year. The project was implemented in consortium with Qil India Limited,
Company's share being 90%.

The EPG Contractor executing the project claimed additional costs aggregating to Rs. 1,614.79 Million (Previous Year 1,659.00
Million) {Company's share being Rs. 1,453.31 Million, Previous Year Rs. 1,493.10 Million), whigh have not been accepted by the
Company. However, the claims have been forwarded to MEM for their approval for an aggregate amount of receivables from MEM of
Rs 2,007.30 Million (Previous Year Rs. 1,524.20 Million), Company's share being Rs. 1,806.57 Million (Previous Year Rs. 1,371.78
Million). Pending settlement with the EPC Centragtor, an amount of Rs. 998.74 Million (revalued from Previous Year Rs. 1,026.08
Million, being the Company's share out of Rs. 1,109.71 Million {revalued from Pravious Year Rs. 1,140.08 Millien) has been shown
as liability based upon the advices received by the Company from its consultant. The Company's share of the balance amount has
been shown as claims not acknowledged as debt. No revenue in this respect has been recognised pending final approvals by MEM.

The payment under the contract would be received over a period of 10 years with a moratorium of one year from the date of the
contract i.e. 30 June, 2004 in 18 equal semi-annual instalments along with lease rental. The lease period commenced from the date
of handing over of the pipeline system and will continue till all payments by MEM are completed. All titles in the works and the
transportation system shall vest in the Company and the title shall pass to MEM in proportion to the payments made by MEM
against total payments due to Company under the confract. Further, subject to regular payments on due dates by MEM to the
Company, MEM shall have the exclusive right to use and operate the pipeline system and the Company shall not assign, transfer,
sub-let, sub-contract, mortgage or create any rights to any third party or encumbrances or make any disposition to any third party.
Accordingly, the amount of net investment in the lease (i.e. aggregate of Minimum Lease Payments MINUS Unearned Finance
Income) is recognised and recorded as receivables under the lease. The finance income thereon has been recognised based upon
the patter reflecting the constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the lease.

The first two installments under the contract due on 30" December, 2005 and 30" June, 2006 had been received as of the reporting
date. However, since the third installment due on 30" December, 2006 was received after the reporting date, the same has been
shown as advance recoverable.
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The disclosure in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) 19 viz. Leases is as under:

(Rupees In milllon)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

a)

b)

d)
8)
f)

g)

Reconciliation between the total
gross investment in the lease and
the present value of minimum lease

payments as at year end

Not later than one year _ 1,097.60 113.48 1,127 .64 693.03
Later than one year and not later 4,390.37 3,323.42 4,510.56 3,214.70
than five years

Later than five years 2,743.98 2,536.69 3,946.74 3,538.84
Total _ §,231.95 6,573.59 9,584.94 7,446.57
Unearned Finance Income 2138.37
Unguaranteed residual value accruing ' Nil Nil

to Company's benefit

Accumulated provision for uncollectible Nil Nil

minimum lease payments receivable _

Contingent rents recognised in the statement Nil Nil

of profit and loss for the period

General description of the significant As describad in As described in
leasing arrangement para above para above
Accounting Policy followed in respect As per Accounting As per Accounting

of initial direct costs Policy 12.2 Policy 12.2

Sakhalin-1, Russia Project:

{

(it}

(iii

)

The sales of Crude Qil and Gas to the domestic (Russian) buyers had commenced during the financial year 2005-06 while the
sales of Crude Qil to international buyers commenced during the year in respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project. During the current
year, receipts on account of Crude 0il and Gas Sales (including receivables) were Rs. 16,558.88 Million and Rs. 511.23 Million
{Previous year Rs. 1,799.25 Millicn and Rs. 217.10 Million) respectively after adjustment of Rs. 0.91 Million received during the
previous year against take or pay provisions of the confract owing fo lesser nomination of Gas by the buyer, The Closing Stock of
Crude Qil till the Delivery Point has not been considered in view of the contractual arrangement that it remains the property of the
State until the Delivery Point.

The Consortium had acquired the Early Production Facility (EPF) under a contract for lease for the basic term upto 15 September,
2006 in financial year 2005-06 with an option for renewal. The Coniract also provided an option to the Consortium to purchase
ihe EPF by provision of 45 days written notice at the price and in accordance with the provisions of the coniract. Further the itle
and risk of damage to the EPF shall pass to the Consortium upon payment of the purchase price. Under the circumstances, the
Company had recognised the lease as an asset for an amount of Rs 428.13 Million and a liability at an amount equal to the
present value of minimum lease payment and purchase price during the previous financial year. The EPF has been purchased by
the Consortium during the year.

During the financial year 2005-06, the Company had made provision for the Company's share amounting to USD 7.10 million
(Rs 317.09 Million) in respect of past costs reimbursable fo a consortium partner recoverable from the hydrocarbons after the
development investments have been fully recovered. Since the obligation to pay arises in future out of the future production, the
same has been written back during the year.

The amount of Rs. 7,403.75 Million representing Gapital Work-in Progress (Schedule-7) in respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project
would be capitalised to fixed assets and producing properties after completion of Chayvo Phase-1 of the project. Pending
capitalization due to non-availability of break up of the amount from the operator, the same has been shown under Capital Work-in
Progress.

Block 5A and Block 5B, Sudan:

Sales of Grude Qil commenced during the year in respect of Block 5A, Sudan Project. During the current year, receipts on account of
Crude Oil Sales {including receivables) were Rs. 2,230.99 Million (Previous year Rs nil). Sales include the amount adjusted in kind by the
transporter on account of fransportation charges, which has been accounted as transportation charges. However, the Sales exclude the



13)

14)

15)

16)

quality adjustment carried out by the transporter amongst the joint shippers by way of quantity adjustments. Pending finalization of the
transportation agreement with the ransporters, the adjustments in respect of transport charges and quality have been carried out based
uponthe invoices of the transporter.

The Company carries the share of investment of Sudapet, a company owned by the Government of Sudan, forits 3.375% share in Block
5A and 3.72% in Block 5B till the commencement of first commercial production. The carried amounts are repayable without interest out
of the preduction share of Sudapet as per the terms of the Exploration and Production Sharing Agreement (EPSA}. Currently, Block 5A is
under production and development and due to certainty of the recovery, the net carried amount of USD 24.93 Million equivalent to
Rs. 1,083.83 Million (Previous year Rs. 912.96 Million) has been shown as a loan. However, since Block 5B is under exploration,
additional provision for the amount carried during the year of LKSD 1.27 Million equivalent to Rs. 56.92 Million (Previous year Rs. §.41
Million) ingluding revaluation has been made during the year making the aggregate provision of Rs. 78.27 Million (Previous Year
Rs. 21.35 Million), equal to the carried amount as on date.

Farsi Block, Iran:

In respect of Farsi Block, Iran, the Company in consortium with other partners has enteredinto an Exploration Service Contract (ESC) with
National Iranian Qil Gompany (NIQOC}. In pursuance to the committed work program, the Gompany drilled exploratory wells in the Block
during the year. Although the Company has encountered hydrocarbons, a provision has been made in respect of the expenditure incurred
on exploratory wells {Rs. 1,287.30 Million) pending declaration of commerciality and award of development service contract by NIOC.

AFPC Project, Syria:

)] During the year, the Gompany accepted the transfer of AFPC, Syria Project from Qil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGGC)
with effect the economic date of its acquisition by ONGC i.e. 1* July, 2005. The structuring of the advance for shares / loans with
ONGBV and OMEL has since been agreed. However, the formal agreements amaongst the shareholders are yet to be finalised and
executed. Pending execution of requisite agreements, obtaining required approvals and issuance of shares by ONGBV and
OMEL, the investments made by ONGG for the acquisition of the project by way of advance for shares/ loans to ONGG Nile Ganga
BV (ONGBV) and ONGC Mittal Energy Limited (OMEL) amounting to Rs. 9,799.69 Million were agcepted by the Company as
loans from ONGC.

(ii) In view of the participating interest in the project being held through ONGBV (55%) and OMEL (22.5%) (and since OMEL has not
consolidated the results of the project in its consolidated accounts), the total effective participating interest (77.5%) of the
Company has been consclidated (by reducing 22.50% interest of other venturers) on line by ling basis from the accounts for the
project provided by ONGBV.

Block BG-10, Brazil:

The Subsidiary ONGBV acquired 50% of the shara capital of One Acadia Holdings BV (OABV) at a consideration of USD 170.31 Million
during the year. OABV and its wholly owned subsidiary Two Acadia Holdings BV (TABV) at the time of their acquisition by ONGBV, held
in aggregate the entire share capital of Esso Exploracao Campos Lida {Esso Campos), a company incorporated in Brazil, which in turn
owned 30% participating interest in Block BG-10, offshore Brazil. Esso Campos has been split into two companies namely ONGG
Campos Ltda (OCL) and Shell Campos Lida (SCL), ONGBY being beneficially entitled to OCL only. OABY/ TABV made distribution of
their entire reserves wherein all the shares of OCL were distributed to ONGBV. According to the information available with the
ONGBV management, OABV/ TABY have no income, expenses, assets or liabilities of material amounts. OABY/ TABV will be liquidated in
due course.

Details of Reserves:
(a) Company and its Subsidiaries' share of Proved Reserves in respect of different projects as on 31* March, 2007 is as under:

Project Details Crude Qil* Gas Total Qil
(Million Tonne) (Billion Gubic Metar) Equivalent**
{Million Tonne)

Block 06.1, Vistnam Opening 0.683 16.450 17.133
Addition - - -
Deductions - - -
Production 0.030 1.842 1.872
Closing 0.653 14.608 15.261
Sakhalin-1, Russia Opening 61.222 96.917 158.139
Addition - - -
Deductions 6.751 12.558 19.309
Production 0.955 0.306 1.261

Closing 53.516 84.053 137.569
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Block 1a, 1b, 2a,
2h & 4 (GNOP),
Sudan

Block 5A, Sudan

AFPC, Syria

MECL, Columbia

BC-10, Brazil

* Grude Oil includes Gondensate.

** For calculating “ONl Equivalent” 1,000M’ of Gas has been taken 1o be equal to 1 Tonne of Crude Oll.

Opening
Addition
Deductions
Production
Closing

Opening
Addition
Deductions
Production
Closing

Opening
Addition
Deductions
Production
Closing

Opening
Addition
Deductions
Production
Closing

Opening
Addition
Deductions
Production
Closing

23.465
2.700

3.157
23.008

5.180

0.270
4910

2.274
0.238

1.095
1.417

11.037

0.297
10.740

1.500

1.500

23.465
2.700

3157
23.008

5.180

0.270
4910

2274
0.228

1.085
1.417

11.037

0.297
10.740

1.725

1.725

(b) Company's share of Proved and Developed Reserves in respect of differant projects as on 31% March, 2007 is as under:

Project

Block 06.1, Vietnam

Sakhalin-1, Russia

Block 1a, 1b, 23,
2h & 4 (GNOP),
Sudan

Block 5A, Sudan

Details

Opening
Addition
Deductions
Production
Closing

Opening
Addition
Deductions
Production
Closing

Opening
Addition
Adjustment
Deductions
Production
Closing

Opening
Addition
Adjustment
Deductions
Production
Closing

Crude 0il*
{Million Tonne)

0.676

0.030
0.646

1.422
7.534

0.955
8.001

17.667
3470

3.157
17.980

4.580

0.270
4.310

Gas
(Billion Cubic Meter)

12.895

1.842
11.053

0.557
2.286

0.306
2537

Total Oil
Equivalent**
(Million Tonne)

13.571

1.872
11.699

1.979
9.820

1.261
10.538

17.667
3470

3.157
17.980

4.580

0.270
4.310



AFPC, Syria Opening 1.697 - 1.697
Addition 0.238 - 0.238
Deductions - - -
Production 1.095 - 1.095
Closing 0.840 - 0.840
MECL, Golumbia Opening - - -
Addition 2.102 - 2102
Deductions = = =
Production 0.297 - 0.297
Closing 1.805 - 1.805

* Crude Oll Includes Gondensate.
** For calgulating “0il Equivalent® 1,000M° of Gas has been taken to be aqual to 1 Tonne of Cruda Oil.

The consultant engaged by the Company in financial year 2004-05 had suggested net downward revision of 0il Equivalent Reserves
to the extent of 1.99 Million Tonne (comprising reduction of 0.42 Million Tonnes condensate and 3.71 Billion Cubic Meters gas in
Proved Reserves, increase of 0.06 Million Tonnes condensate and 1.10 BCM gas in Probable Reserves and 0.17 Million Tonnes
condensate and 0.81 Billion Gubic Meters gas in Possible Reserves) in respect of Block 06.1, Vietnam Project. The reduction in
Proved and Developed Oil Equivalent Reserves suggested by the Consultant was 2.99 Million Tonnes comprising 0.42 Million Tonnes
of Condensate and 2.57 Billion Cubic Metres of gas. The revision was not accepted by the Operator. The Operator is carrying out
separate Reserve assessment based on pressure/ production studies. Appropriate adjustments, if any, will be made on receipt of
Operator's assessment.

The Reserves in respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project based on the Declaration of Commerciality accepted by Gonsortium members
and approved by Russian authorities have been revised downwards during the year in respect of Ghayvo field by 19.308 Million
Tonne (i.e. 6.751 Million Tonnes of Crude Oil and 12.558 Billion Cubic Metres of gas) deleting the reserves beyond the license area
as the proposal submitted by the Operator for extension of the area to cover the entire field has not been agreed by the regulatory
authority and for accounting the suggestions of the regulatory body regarding changes in parameters for making the firm
development plan.

The consultant engaged by the Company during financial year 2004-05 had suggested downward revision of total hydrogarbon
volume (Proved plus Probable plus Possible Reserves plus Contingent Resources) by 3.13 Million Tonnes of Oil Equivalent
comprising increase in ultimate recoverable volume of il by 5.17 Million Tonnes and decrease in uftimate recoverable volume of gas
by 8.30 Billion Cubic Metres.

The consultant had placed Chayvo Phase-1 reserves only in Proved category i.e. 11.0 Million Tonne of oil and 11.4 Billion Cubic
Meter of gas because in his view, for other phasesffields, firm export contract and approval for export pipeline doas not exist at
present. The Consortium is, however, confident of making tie-ups for gas, get approval for pipeline and has initiated efforts towards
that. Further, the development plan in respect of the entire Proved Reserves shown above has already been approved by the Russian
authorities. For these reasons, the Company has not accepted the consultant's categorization.
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17)  Segment information:

(Rupees in million)

Particulars Asia F5U Countries Latin America Mirica LUnallocated firand Total

2006-07 200506  2008-07 2005-08  2006-07 2005-08  2006-07 200508 200807 | 200508  2008-07 | 2005-06
REVENUE
Extomal sales 30,4881 9528.80 1707102 201544  1,731.54 NA 6623648 66,377.63 0.00 0.00 | 115,539.95 | 77,921.87
Inter Segrent sales 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0 cd0
Total Revenue 0ASeE1 052880 1707102 201544 A7HS4 NA 6523848 B8,377.63 0.00 | 0.00 115,589.85 |77,921.87
Results ' ' 000 |
Segment resuits B76130 3879.66 793350 (1,12580)  475.04 NA 12,34552  13,283.16 0o 000 27,696.95 | 16,038.94
Unallocated corporate | | [
Expenses (Net) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 000 0571 | 283305 80571 | 2,833.05
Operating profit or (Loss) 676130 367955 793350 (112390)  A75.04 NA 12,34552 1328315  (905.71) | (2,833.05) 26,630.24 |13,205.80
Interest expenses 000 2952 0.00 380 1331 NA 158.84 145 14550 | 509 785  39.87
Interest and ' ' '
other incoma 7480 8665  118.35 3434 (722.10) NA  1,29219 680.62  2,192.06 296538 2,855.28 3,770.99
Income Tax 195714 33067 0.00 000 | 290.69 NA 650753 585268 987854 205082 1263510 823417
Profit/ (loss) ' ' '
from ordinary activities 400054 360614 B05184 (1093.35)  (551.26) NA  BET134 | 810954 (2738.80)  (1,919.58) 1A,832E7 | §,702.84
Extraordinary losses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 00| oo
Mot profit / {Loss) 489954 360614 B,05194 (1,00336)  (551.26) NA 697134 5810954 (2738.69) (1,919.58) 16,632.87 | 570284
Other Information ' 0.00 | ' 0.00
Segment Assets 18,637.67 19,326.44 B3357.72 71,901.29 24,801.63 NA 82,304.39 61,304.20 0.00 | 0.00 |209,101.41 %52.611.93
Unallocated ' '
Corporale Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 0.00 89.41 | 55,338.16 89.41 ‘56,339.16
Total Assets 18,637.67 1932644 ©3357.72 71,901.20 24,801.63 NA 8230439 61,384.20 89.41 | 54,330.16 208,190.82 %08,951.09
Sogmoant Liabiites 1.001.68 45748 034307 65M7T: 2163 NA JSRIROE W 831388 000 | 0.00 | 3841008 | 19,856.20
Unallocated ' ' '
Corporale Llabllijes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .04 NA 0.00 0.00 126,045.08 |167,117.42 126,045.08 ﬁsr,117.41
Tooka! 1M168 454748 D34307 699474 233535 NA 25820008 3,312.08 126,045.08 167,117.42 16646516 188,973.62
Capital Expenditure 537689 1336.84 1450687 22513.84 2244068 NA 827178 10600.84 19,420.08 142 | 70,106.35 | 34,455.04
Recoupad cost 603893 158581 515741 103720 142295 NA 751830 548349 119743 | 309753 21,335.02 1120413
Mon cash Exp. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NA 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 ¢.00

Information about Secondary Business Segmenis (Product-wise):
{Rupees in million)

Revenue from 2006-07 2005-06
Crude Oi* and Natural Gas 112,271.24 72,549.27
Construction Contracts - 2,173.53
Transportation Income 3,268.71 3,199.07

*Crude Ol Ingludes Condensate.

Hodes:

1] Segments have been identified and reported taking inte account, the organization and management structure for internal reporting and significantly different risk
and retum perception In differant gaographical reglons. These ara organtzed Into five segmants viz. Asla, FSU Countrias, Latin Amerca, Africa and Unallocatad.
Australia, which had been recognised as a separate segment until last year is included in the Unallocated segment in view of the nil activity during the year.

(i The segment revenus in the business segment (Product-wiss) is gross revenus from sale of Crude Ol and Natural Gas, Crude Oil Transportation Income and

Construction Contracts.

(iil) Sagment Revenue, Rasults, Assets and Liabilities include the respsctive amounts idantifiable to each of the sagments and amount allocated on 2 reascnable
basls. “Unallocated” Includes common expenditure Incurred for all the segments and expenses Incurred at corporate level.
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Taxation:

@

®)

)

Deferred Tax Provision:

(i} The Net Deferred Tax Liability of the Company as at 31* March, 2007 is Rs. 9,781.21 Million (Previous year
Rs. 6,634.78 Miliion). Qut of the difference, Rs. 2,776.21 Million (Previous year Rs. 2,347.79 Million) has been
charged to the current year's Profit and Loss Accounts and Rs. 370.22 Million (Previous year Rs. 34.24 Million) has
been adjusted to foreign currency translation reserve.

(ii) The item wise details of Net Deferred Tax Liability as on 31" March, 2007 accounted for in accordance with
Accounting Standard {AS) 22 viz. Accounting for Taxes on Income are as under;

(Rupees in million)

As at 31" March, 2007 | As at 31" March, 2006
Deferrod Tax Assels: '
Carried Forward Expenditure U/S 42 of Income Tax Act, 1961 5,671.76 ' 4,551.36
Carried Forward Fee U/S 35 D of Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.24
Amount disallowable U/S 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 19.39 13.87
Total Deferrad Tax Assets 5,691.15 4,565.47
Deferred Tax Liability: '
Difference in Net Block of Fixed Assets for Tax 12,394.01 8,956.89
Total Deferred Tax Liability 12,394.01 8,956.89
Nat Deforred Tax Liability of the Company 56,702.86 ' 4,391.42
Deferred Tax Liahility of ONGBV 2,629.82 ' 2,243.36
Net Deferred Tax Liability of OAAL 448.53 -
Total 078121 6,634.78

In the financial statements provided by the operator of Sakhalin-1, Russia Project, an amount of USD 63.45 Million
(equivalent to Rs 2,758.17 Million) has been indicated as Deferred Tax Liability based upon the losses carried forward and
differences in book value and tax value of assets and liabilities under Russian tax laws. The tax rates in Russia are
lower than the tax rates in India, the Deferred Tax Liability as indicated in the Operators financial statements has not
been recognised.

Current Tax Provision:

The provision for tax has been made for Rs. 9,858.90 Million (Previous year Rs. 5,975.16 Million) after considering the
deemed tax paid of Rs. 988.57 Million (Previous year Rs. B73.63) in respect of Block 06.1, Vietnam Project under the
double taxation avoidance agreement between India and Vietnam. The provision includes Rs. 13.55 Million on account of
wealth tax for the year in respect of |easehold land for which the assessing officer had sought details regarding applicability
of the wealth tax thereon. The Company has denied the applicability of the wealth tax on the leasehold land based upon the
advices recelved.

Tax Assessment:

{i) The Company has appealed to Hon'ble High Court of Delhi against the decision of Income Tax Appellate Tribunal for
the Assessment Year 1981-82 to 1987-88 with regard to disallowance of its claim for Rs. 94.04 Million {Previous
year Rs. 94.04 Million) on account of depreciation, development allowance and receipt of interest on delayed
payments in respect of Iran Project. However, pending decision the tax demand in this regard has already been paid
by the Company. The case of the Company is listed for hearing.

(ii} The Company has filed three appeals with CIT (Appeals) against the disallowance of depreciation on acquisition
costs of the projects and other expenses amounting to Rs. 3,958.54 Million, Rs. 3,006.17 Million and Rs. 3,470.29
Million in respect of assessment years 2002-03, 2003-04 and 2004-05 respectively. Since the payment of tax by
the Company was under the provisions of Income tax Act, 1961 relating to Minimum Altemative Tax during the
relevant years and there were adjustable carred forward losses, there is no fax demand on account of the
disallowance on this account.

Write-off of Loans:

During the previous year, the Company had created provision for loans considered doubtful for an amount of Rs. 372.16 Million
being the amount of loan due from a Public Sector Company, which had disputed the liability. The Company has written off the loan
during the year by utilizing the provision made |ast year.
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20)

21)

22)

Capital Commitment:

0]

(il

The Gompany, Subsidiaries and Joint Venture Company either on its own or in consortium with other partners carries on its
business in respect of exploration, development and production of hydrocarbons under agreements with the host
governments. Several of these agreements provide for certain minimum work obligations/ certain minimum finangial
commitments over a period of time. The Gompany's share of such obligations/ commitments in respect of agreements
where such obligations / commitments have not been completed as of the reporting date amounted to USD 319.34 Million
equivalent to Rs. 13,881.73 Million (Previous year LISD 106.97 Million equivalent to Rs. 4,777.47 Million). The actual
expenditure incurred by the Gompany against these obligations/ commitments, which have some outstanding till 31 March,
2007 is Rs. 1,116.98 Million {Previous year Rs. 1,499.29 Million). The Company is confident of mesting the cbligations/
commitments.

Other Capital Commitments based upon the details provided by the operators: Rs. 1,172.65 Million (Previous year
Rs. 2,104.38 Million}. All known capital commitments have been indicated except Capital commitments in respect of
Sakhalin -1, Russia Project and Block 5A, Sudan projects where such commitments are not ascertainable due to
non-availability of details from the operators.

Contingent Liability:

i) Liability for payment to contractual workers for regularization of their services is pending with Labour Court under civil suit.
The amount of liability is not ascertainable.
{ii) Claims not acknowledged as debt: Rs. 454.57 Million (Pravious year Rs. 467.02 Million) as per details in note 10 above.
{i) Al known contingent liabilities have been indicated. The contingent liabilities, if any, in respect of joint ventures, where the
Company is the non-operator, are not ascertainable.
{i) Details of Production, Transportation, Selling and Distribution Expenditure (Schedule 18) and Provisions & Write Offs
{Net) (Schedule 21):
{Rupees in million)
PARTICULARS 2006-07 2005-06
{ {a) Salaries, Wages, Ex-gratia, efc. 585.32 556.18
{b) Contribution to Provident and other Funds 1.64 7.35
{c) Provision for Gratuity 119 473
{(d) Provision for Leave Encashment 15.57 9.48
{e) Provision for Medical/Terminal Benefits 3.99 0.00
{f) Staff Welfare Expenses 45.25 23.82
Sub-Total (A) 665.96 601.56
{i)  Rent 58.93 57.63
{i)  Electricity, Water and Power 5.73 10.31
{iv)  Repairs to Building 2.78 11.42
{v)  Repairs to Plant and Machinery 28.49 73.44
{vi)  Other Repairs 1.64 3.76
{vi)  Hire Charges of Vehicles 4.26 10.29
{viiy  Professional Charges 721.26 222.79
{t)  Telephone and Telex 8.05 13.55
{)  Printing and Stationary 1.65 453
{x)  Training and Seminar 295 335
{xii)  Business Meeting Expenses 8.61 6.72
{xiii)  Traveling Expenses 161.43 76.58
{xiv)  Pipeline Construction Cost 0.00 2,699.29
{«) Insurance 155.73 50.87
{xvi)  Advertisement and Exhibition Expenditure 16.39 16.66
{xvii)  Contractual Transportation 2,662.86 1,825.35
{wviil) Miscellaneous Expenditure 134.97 108.45
{xi)  Other Operating Expenditure 7,143.33 4,1568.08
{0  Provisions for doubiful debts 116.06 360.57
{od)  Other Write Offs 3718.79 0.07
{xdi) Excess Provision Written Back 3712.79 (1.24)
{odii)  Other Provisions 1,287.30 14.77
fdiv)  Royalty 51,130.17 39,060.77
{ov)  Statutory Levies 1,378.74 936.48
Sub-Total (B) 65,762.91 49,744.49
Total of Operating Expandilure, Establishment
Expenditure and Provigion and Write Off (A-+B) 66,448.87 50,346.05



23)

24)

25)

26)

27)

(ii) The operating expenditure (no. (xix} above) includes the expenses in respect of Sakhalin-1, Russia project, where the ahove
details are not made available by the Operator.

Exchange Difference:

The total net exchange gain during the year was Rs. 1,431.76 Million (Previous year gain of Rs. 1,749.02 Million) of which net
exchange differance (gain) of Rs. 2,527.25 Million (Previous year gain of Rs. 1,005.12 Millien) is charged off in Profit and Loss
Accounts and net exchange gain of Rs. 11.63 Million (Previous year Rs. 5.33 Million) is adjusted to the carrying amount of assets
and loss of Rs. 1,107.12 Million (Previous year gain of Rs. 738.57 Million) has been taken to foreign currency translation reserve.

{Rupees in million)

2006-07 2005-06
Salary and Allowances 13.21 3.79
Contribution to Provident Fund 0.19 0.12
Other Benefits and Perquisites * 0.30 0.13
Total 13.70 4.04

* excludes provision by the holding company
L

a) In addition, Whole-time Directors are also allowed the use of Gompany car for private purposes up © 1000 Kmyper month on payment of Rs 520 per month for
air-conditioned cars bslow 16 H.P

b)  The remuneration does not include provision for gratuity and leave encashment since the same is not available for individual employee.

Auditors' Remuneration (Excluding Subsidiaries and Joint Vanture Company):

{Rupees in million)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06
Audit Fee | 0.67** 050*@
Tax Audit Fee I L2
Certification Fee _ 0.02 -
Total 0.69 0.53

* includes Rs. 0.10 Million for incremental audit fees, Rs 0.05 Million for incremental consolidated accounts audit fees and Rs. 0.02 Million for incremental Cash

Flow Statement Certification fae for the financial year 2004-05.
@ Includes Rs. 0.10 Million for Consolldated accounts for 2005-08.
**  includes Rs. 0.01 Million for incremental tax audit fee for 2004-05.
***  includes Rs. 0.17 Milion for half yearly audit for 2006-07.

The expenditure incurred by Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC}, on behalf of the Company are accounted for on the
basis of debits raised by them for which supporting documents are held by ONGC.

Information as per Accounting Standard (AS) 18 viz. Related Party Disclosures is given below (excluding with State
Controlled Entities):
(Rupees In milllon)

Jolnt ventures Key Managetrial Total Total

personnel 2006-07 2005-06

Income from rendering services 307.94 - 307.94 443.40
Expenses on receiving services - - - -
Interest Income: 20.00 - 20.00 20.20

Remuneration o 13.70 13.70 4.04
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Note:
Name of related parties and description of relationship (excluding State Controlied Entities):

Joint Ventures Block 06.1 Project, Vietnam
Sakhalin-1 Project, Russia
Block 1a, 1b, 2a, 2b & 4 Project, Sudan
Block 5A Project, Sudan
MECL, Colombia
AFPC, Syria
Block BC-10, Brazil
Block A-1 Project, Myanmar
Block A-3 Project, Myanmar
Farsi Block Project, Iran
Block 6 North Ramadan Project, Egypt
Block NC-188 & NC-189 Project, Libya
Block XXIV Project, Syria
Block 5B Project, Sudan
Block 2, JDZ, Nigeria / STP
Block CI-112 Project, Cote D' Ivoire
Block 25-29, 35 (Part) & 36 Project, Cuba
Khartoum - Port Sudan Pipeline Project, Sudan

Key Management personnel Shri R. S. Butola, Managing Director, ONGC Videsh Limited
(excludes Joint Venture Company) Shri D. K. Sarraf, Director (Finance), ONGC Videsh Limited
Shri A. Mathur, Director (Commercial), ONGC Videsh Limited
Shri J. Thomas, Director (Exploration), ONGC Videsh Limited
I. A. R. Baron Mackay Holding BV, Director, ONGC Nile Ganga BV
Dr. C. M. Lamba, Director, ONGC Nile Ganga BV
28)  The figures in respect of Subsidiaries / Joint Venture Gompany, have been regrouped / re-arranged based upon the details obtained
from the managements of the Subsidiaries / Joint Venture Gompany, wherever their audited accounts did not provide the break up
details required for the Gonsolidated financial statements.

29)  Previous year figures have been re-grouped/re-arranged and nomenclature re-named wherever necessary to make them comparable
with current year classification.

Signature to Schedule - '1' to '25'

(Jagdish Prasad) {D. K. Samaf) {R. S. Butola) (R. 8. Sharma}
Company Secretary Director (Finance) Managing Director Chairman

As per our report of even date attached

For BATRA SAPRA & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

New Delhl (K. S. KAMATH)
21* June, 2007 Pariner (M. No.44492)



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2007

(Rupees in million)

Year Ended Yoar Ended
31" March, 2007 31" March, 2006
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before tax and prior period items 33,435.26 21,122.35
Adjustments For:
- Recouped Costs 21,335.03 11,204.13
(Represented by Depreciation, Depletion and Amortisation)
Less : Cash Quiflows 4,799.67 3,769.73
16,535.36 7,434.40
- Imterest on Borrowings 317.65 39.87
- Provision for Gratuity 542 3.66
- Provision for Leave Encashment 11.27 5.22
- Provision for Terminal Benefits 4257 0.00
- Provislon for Doubtful Debt 56.92 380.57
- Exchange (Gain)/Loss on Carry Finance 0.00 (843.17)
- Interest Income {2,273.30) 14,695.89 (3,126.85) 3,893.70
QOperating Proflt before Working Capltal Changes 48,131.15 25,016.05
Adjustments for;-
- Deblors {7,259.41) (1,807.29)
- Loans and Advances 4,075.73 (10,316.63)
- Inventories {1,485.67) (988.17)
- Trade Payable and Other Liabilities §.917.45 2,248.10 3,188.77 (9.923.32)
Cash generated from Operations 50,379.25 15,002.73
Direct Taxes Paid 12,003.28 (6.938.10)
Cash Flow hefore Prigr period items 38,375.97 8,154.63
Prior period items {6,142.17) (709.08)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 'A' 32,233.80 7,445.55
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net) (45,435.41) (7,441.43)
Expenditure on Projects 8,057.22 (24,432.47)
Acquisition of Subsidiaries (20,855.67) (1,086.82)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment (788.68) 395.89
Advance ta SMNG-S, RN ASTRA & Sudapet 55,726.32 (20,531.41)
Imterest Received 72347 271.50
Net Gash Flow from Investing Activilies 'B" {2,572.75) (52,824.74)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Issus of Share Capital 7,000.00 0.00
Net Long Term Borrowings from ONGC {26,676.11) 42.148.73
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings from 0IDB (61.25) (95.87)
Gash Credit (44.18) 4418
Dividend paid 0.00 (1,050.00)
Tax on Dividend 0.00 (147.26)
Interest Paid (317.66) (39.87)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 'C' {20,099.20) 40,859.91
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B-+C) 9,561.85 (4,519.28)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1* April, 2006 2.563.37 7,082.65
(Opening Balance)
GCash and Cash Equivalents as at 31° March, 2007 12,125.22 2,563.37
(Closing Balance)
Holes:

1. Theabove Cash Flow Statement has bean prepared undarthe Incliract Method' as setoutin the Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Fow Statements issued by The Instituts of Charterad Accountants of India.
2. Bracketindicates cash outflow.

3. Previous yearfigures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirmthe current year's ¢lassiication.

4. Adjustment have notbeen madeto purchase of fied assets etc. (Invasting acivitles), on accountofincraase/ decreasaln Capital Creditors. The Impact of tha:above Is notreadlly ascertalnable.

{Jagdish Prasad) (D. K. Samraf) {R. S. Butola) (R. S. Sharma)
Company Secretary Director {Finance) Managing Direclor Chalman
As per aur report of even date atlached
For BATRA SAPRA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
New Delhl {K. 8. KAMATH)
21" June, 2007 Partnar (M. No.44492)
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